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Mutual prosperity with
the regional
As a bank that advances hand-in-hand
with society, in order to win customer
confidence and meet customer
expectations, we maintain a sound and
enterprising bank and work for the
development of regional communities.

CSR Charter (Management Principles)
(Instituted in April 2007)

The Shiga Bank has its own motto of “Be tough
on ourselves, kind to others and serve society,”

Mutual prosperity with
all employees

which forms the starting point for corporate social
responsibility (CSR). As a member of society, the Bank
will work for mutual prosperity with society. The

Respecting the human rights and
individuality of each and every
executive and regular employee,
we will build a satisfying workplace,
and turn our bank into “Clean Bank
Shigagin.”

Bank’s motto carries on the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy,
a management philosophy embraced by Merchants
in the Omi region of central Japan, which means to
bring happiness to three sides: being good for the
seller, the buyer, and society.

Harmonious coexistence
with the environment
The social mission of our company,
which is headquartered next to Lake
Biwa, is environmental management.
We are committed to protection of the
global environment and the building
of a sustainable society.
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kind to others

Taking on the Challenge towards Future Innovation
Challenge to Regional Revitalization

President Shojiro Takahashi

Be tough on ourselves,

Shiga Bank has compiled the integrated report SHIGA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2020. This report links financial information
to non-financial information, such as the Management Principles, environmental, social and governance (ESG) information
by reference to the “International Integrated Reporting Framework” proposed by International Integrated Reporting
Council (IIRC) and “The Guidance for Collaborative Value Creation” by the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry. It serves
as an integrated review of measures for creation of sustainable value for the Bank and in
regional communities.
This report serves also as disclosure materials (briefing documents of status of operations
and assets) pursuant to Article 21 of the Banking Act. The reader is recommended, when
using this document for disclosure purposes, to refer also to the material section and “Financial
Data, Basel III, Column 3 of SHIGA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2020” (both viewable on our website
(https://www.shigagin.com). (Japanese only)
The management team of the Bank confirms that this combined report has been duly
disclosed in accordance with the Disclosure Policy of the Bank.

2

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

58

Value Creation Story

22

Risks and Opportunities

24

Corporate Governance

59

Sustainability Vision (Long-term Vision)

26

Directors and Executive Officers

62

The 7th Medium-Term Business Plan

28

Message from Outside Directors

64

Taking on the Challenge of ESG Regional Financing

30

Promoting Employee Activities and Environment Creation

66

Dialogue - Promotion of ESG Regional Financing
and the Role of Regional Financial Institutions

Stakeholder Communication

70

31

Risk Management

72

Principles for Responsible Banking

34

Compliance

77

Aiming for a Sustainable Society

36

Environmental Management

38

Measures for Climate Change/Global Warming

40

FINANCIAL SECTION

80

SHIGA BANK REPORT 2020

1

TOP ME SS AG E

Shojiro Takahashi

President, Shiga Bank

The world in 2020 is being exposed to a rapid deterioration in economic conditions and radical changes
in the social environment that no one ever could have predicted. The novel coronavirus pandemic has
restricted the movement of people and business activities on a global level, severely impacting the
Japanese and international economies. Although the regional economy has also experienced a sharp
downturn in overall activity and the situation is very difficult, we are working to perform a financial
intermediary function with the determination that this is the time for regional financial institutions to take
the lead. In recent days, the word “Purpose” has been attracting a lot of attention. Purpose refers to the
meaning of existence of a company or its aspirations for society, and at a time when society is undergoing
major changes and a new order is being called for, severe questions are being raised on the very nature of
a company.
The purpose of the Shiga Bank Group is “to bring happiness to people in regional communities through
the circulation of money.” In order to put this aspiration into practice, in February 2020, the Bank became
the first regional bank to sign the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB) (see Page 34), which encourage
bank management that contributes to the SDGs and the Paris Agreement. The Bank is determined to cocreate the future with its stakeholders to achieve sustainable prosperity for the regional community and to
become indispensable to the region.
What is the purpose of our company and what do we aspire to do? I will discuss the efforts of the Shiga
Bank Group to achieve a sustainable society in the environment in which we operate.
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Guidelines required in turbulent times
The coronavirus outbreak has created invisible barriers in
every corner of our globally connected world. Entry into
countries has been restricted, cities have been locked down,
exchanges of people and goods have been interrupted,
supply chains have been cut off, and economic activity has
been significantly reduced as a result of the outbreak. In
Japan, numerous sporting and cultural events, including
the Tokyo Olympic and Paralympic Games, which had
been scheduled to be held in the summer, were forced to
postpone or cancel across the board. There have also been
requests for voluntary restraint on outings and requests for
business closure in cities and other areas, resulting in a sense
of entrapment on a scale never before experienced. This has
cast a dark shadow over the lives of people, the economy,
and cultural activities in local communities, and the public
sector and private sector must work together to rebuild
society and the economy, and design a new society.
A variety of changes have become evident in society
where connections have been cut off through voluntary
restraint on outings, restrictions on movement, and requests

for business closure as a result of the coronavirus outbreak.
There has been a digital shift in various services, including
an expansion of the telework market from telecommuting,
the start of a movement toward enhancement of online
education, and the promotion of consumption behavior via
the Internet. We believe that business patterns and work
styles will be reexamined, and that aspects of society will
change dramatically. In the face of a declining birthrate, aging
population, and population decline, digital transformation
using digital technology to restructure management and
business processes is becoming increasingly important.
Furthermore, as the world tries to work together to address
climate change, values that emphasize the importance of
global sustainability are also steadily spreading.
The way people’s values are measured has diversified
and is changing rapidly over time in the era of drastic social,
economic, and environmental change. I believe that firm
guideposts based on conviction are important in these
uncertain times.

Purpose of the Shiga Bank Group
The aspiration underlying our motto and
Management Principles
The Bank’s motto, “Be tough on ourselves, kind to others
and serve society,” carries on the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy,
a management philosophy embraced by merchants in
the Omi region of central Japan, which means to bring
happiness to three sides: being good for the seller, the
buyer, and society. This motto is the starting point for our
corporate social responsibility (CSR), and we established
our CSR Charter (Management Principles) in April 2007.
We are committed to ensuring “mutual prosperity with the
regional communities, all employees and the environment.”
To summarize the aspirations underlying our motto and
Management Principles in one phrase, it would be “to bring
happiness to people in regional communities.”
For a regional financial institution, living in harmony with
the region is an essential part of its business, and to profit
and survive on its own is out of the question for such an
institution. By sharing our aspiration “to bring happiness to
people in regional communities,” and gaining customer trust,
we supply funds for the development of the region using
the money entrusted to us by our customers. This virtuous

circle allows us to contribute to the asset management and
business of our customers, and establish a framework for
contributing to the development of the regional economy.
On the other hand, it is not easy to earn the trust of
customers. In order to earn this trust, it is important to deliver
peace of mind to people in the regional community. In order
to deliver peace of mind, we must be prepared to support
the regional economy by taking on risks at the critical
moment. To this end, the Bank is responding to regional
risks by building a solid foundation while seeking to secure
adequate profits and a strong capital base.
In order to share our values with the regional community
and create a virtuous circle of peace of mind, trust, and
development, the executives and employees of the Shiga
Bank Group will act as one in identifying the direction
to take in line with our motto, Management Principles,
and aspiration “to bring happiness to people in regional
communities,” with an understanding of these principles.
We believe that this will allow us to create and achieve a
balance between economic value and social value. We are
committed to the development of a sustainable community
by playing this role.
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Principles for Responsible Banking that
are rooted in the same principles as our
aspirations
The Principles for Responsible Banking, which we have
signed, provide a framework for banks to take a leading
role and responsibility as a financial intermediary, with the
recognition that sustainable social prosperity is the key to
the development of the banking industry. These principles
are the same as the aspirations of the Shiga Bank Group.

Under the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan that was started
in April of last year, we set out to create “a society where
everyone can define their future and live happily” as a goal
for regional communities (see Page 26). We will work to
support and solve the problems of customers through our
finance function and consulting function as we build a
business model that creates a virtuous circle for society as a
whole, taking into account the impact we have on regional
communities.

Our strength of environmental finance
The blessings of Lake Biwa
Shiga Prefecture, where the Bank is based, is home to Lake
Biwa, which is one of the world’s most ancient lakes and
rich in biodiversity and endemic species. Rice cultivation
has been practiced in the surrounding fertile wetlands since
long ago, and it has been said that this region boasted one
of the highest agricultural outputs in Japan during the Edo
period. In addition, Lake Biwa also served as the main artery
of the Kinki economic zone as the major transportation route
for goods at that time. Lake Biwa became closely linked
to people’s lives, for uses ranging from growing rice and
fishing to cooking and washing clothes, and the lake was
developed for flood control and water utilization from the
Meiji era and onward. Urbanization and industrialization in
the areas surrounding Lake Biwa led to the deterioration of
the natural and living environment, and a red tide spread
extensively across Lake Biwa in May 1977. In response to this,
a prefectural campaign arose to protect the environment,
which included the Ordinance for the Prevention of
Eutrophication of Lake Biwa (commonly known as the
Lake Biwa Ordinance), which banned the use of synthetic
detergents containing phosphorus that had been one of the
causes of the red tide, and regulated factory effluent. In 1984,
the 1st World Lake Conference, which is an international
conference relating to the protection of world lakes, was held
in Otsu, Japan, at the suggestion of Shiga Prefecture, and
awareness of environmental consideration has been fostered
widely in the region.

Environmental finance initiatives
As a social mission of a company located on the shores of
Lake Biwa, we have a responsibility to pass this environment
on to our children. Part of the Bank’s Code of Conduct is to
promote environmental management. Specifically, the three
pillars of our environmental management are environmental
finance, environmental volunteering, and eco-office creation.
With regard to environmental finance, the Bank has been

4

supporting the environmental initiatives of its customers
through its role as a financial institution, including the
development and provision of environmentally-responsive
financial products and services. In October 2001, the Bank
became the first commercial bank in Japan to sign the
United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative
(UNEP FI) (see Page 34) to demonstrate these principles both
within and outside the Bank.
However, there are limits to what the Bank can do on its
own. For this reason, in December 2005, we established the
“Shiga Bank Principles for Lake Biwa (PLB)” (see Page 38) and
began to offer our own unique PLB rating (see Page 38).
The Shiga Bank Principles for Lake Biwa are a framework for
seeking the understanding and cooperation of customers
to promote environmental management on a communitywide basis, with the aim of ensuring environmentally-friendly
corporate conduct without missing business opportunities,
and we offer preferential interest rates depending on the PLB
rating. As of the end of March 2020, 10,928 customers have
acquired a PLB rating (58.5% of all organizations).

Environmental finance and SDGs
“Think globally, act locally.” Something that is common
to all of the SDGs (sustainable development goals) is
a strong wish to build a bridge between present and
future generations. The SDGs have great affinity with our
philosophy of environmental finance, and we view these
goals from a backcasting perspective and incorporate
a long-term time frame rather than a short-term one to
support the development of the regional economy.
The concept of sustainability in the SDGs is steadily
changing people’s values and standards of behavior.
Companies have come to be aware that areas that were
previously regarded as costs may eventually generate
economic losses over the long term unless measures are
taken in advance, and such measures are now being widely
considered as investments for the future.
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In November 2017, we became the first regional bank
to issue the Shigagin SDGs Declaration (see Page 36),
reiterating our commitment to creating a sustainable
society with the objectives of establishing the regional
economy, sustainability of the global environment, and
training a diversified workforce as areas for priority action.
Furthermore, in July 2018, we announced our endorsement
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD) (see Page 40), and we are taking measures
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to sophisticate our information disclosure to meet
recommendations by the TCFD. We will proactively respond
by incorporating the universal philosophy of sustainability
into our business in order to look back on the history of
the region and apply this experience to current and future
initiatives.

Review of the first year of the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan
Earnings results for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2020
Now I would like to present a progress report on earnings
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, which was the
first year of the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan, and the
initiatives during the first year of the plan. The Bank posted
net income attributable to owners of parent of ¥12.4 billion,
down ¥2.2 billion year-on-year. Deposits (the average
balance of deposits during the period including negotiable
certificates of deposits) increased by ¥127.5 billion yearon-year to ¥4,931.5 billion and loans (the average balance
of loans and bills discounted during the period) increased
by ¥103.4 billion year-on-year to ¥3,800.2 billion, both on
a non-consolidated basis. The capital ratio (consolidated)
was 14.12%, and the total of risk-monitored loans was
¥53.5 billion, accounting for 1.38% of total loans and bills

discounted. We expect net income (consolidated) of ¥5.8
billion in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2021.
The coronavirus outbreak had an impact across all
industries and levels, with consumer-oriented industries
such as food and beverage, services, and tourism being
particularly hard-hit. As there are concerns that the impact
may be prolonged, we have decided to significantly
increase our credit costs for the fiscal year ending March
31, 2021, keeping in mind the sustainability of the regional
economy. In addition, keeping in mind the major social
transformations in the post-coronavirus world, we will
ensure the sustainable development of the region as
a whole, including the Bank, by taking a long-term
perspective and providing prompt sales and marketing
support corresponding to our customers’ challenges.
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Challenge for future innovation
The social and business environment surrounding bank
branches has changed dramatically in recent years. As a
result of factors including a declining population, declining
birthrate, aging population, the spread of convenience store
ATMs, and an increase in smartphone usage, the number
of customers visiting bank branches has been declining
year by year, and the number of visits to our branches have
decreased by 40% over the past ten years. In light of these
changes, we have identified the shift to sustainable earnings
structure as one of the challenges to innovate the future (see
Page 28) in the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan. In particular,
we have decided that we need to make a major shift in
our branch network that is thickly spread both inside and
outside the prefecture, from the wait-and-see approach we
have conventionally adopted to a more proactive stance of
increasing effective contact points with customers.
For this reason, in November 2019, we announced the
branch initiatives to be undertaken during the period of
the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan (see Page 52), and
we began to rebuild our branch network. We have been
shifting from branches offering full branch banking services
to sub-branches*1 and agents*2 while duly noting changing
demographics and regional characteristics and growth
potential. While the main focus has been on downsizing

of branches, this time we will reorganize the number of
branches to about three-quarters of the current number
during the period of the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan.
These measures are designed to improve the efficiency
of operations through the reorganization and reallocation of
personnel to create a structure that will enable us to provide
higher value-added services to customers. In addition to
integrating branches within branches, we will strive to
improve services by restructuring branch functions through
means such as grouping multiple branches in the vicinity
into one block and consolidating financing counters, to meet
the needs for consultations that require specialization such
as inheritance and asset formation.
*1. Focus on deposits and foreign exchange services; business loans are handled by the
mother branch.
 utsource operations to a subsidiary; only handle deposit and foreign exchange services
*2. O

In addition, in October 2019, we established the Sustainable
Development (SD) Team (see Page 49) within the Business
Promotion Department to promote asset management for
our clients. We have increased the number of securities and
insurance advisors with specialized knowledge, and began
activities with reinforced consulting capabilities.
Furthermore, we joined the TSUBASA Alliance (see Page 56)
in May 2019 to create a platform for M&A operations, and we
are now engaged in matching activities across a wide area.

Issues to overcome
There is no simple way to improve profits in a business
environment of prolonged low interest rates combined with
a worsened economic environment due to the impact of the
coronavirus outbreak. There are three issues that we must
overcome in order to decipher the changing times, look to
the future, and realize a sustainable regional community.
They are to restructure our management resources and
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improve our consulting capabilities, promote further
digitalization, and build a value-added network.
The first point is the need to further reorganize our
branch network and streamline branch operations in an
aim to optimize our own costs. In addition, to support the
happiness of individual customers and corporate customers,
we will strive to improve our consulting capabilities,
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including response to asset management and smooth
business succession, as we work to evolve into a problemsolution type financial information services provider.
The second point is the promotion of digitalization. In
addition to improving the efficiency of our operations, it
will be necessary to further improve our services by taking
advantage of digitalization, through means such as using it
as a sales tool and supporting cashless payments to further
enhance customer convenience.
The third point is the need to build a value-added network
to enhance the sustainability of regional communities.
Apart from Shiga, the Bank has sales offices in Kyoto, Osaka,
Nagoya, and other parts of Asia, and it is also a member of
the TSUBASA Alliance, which covers a wide area of Japan. We
will leverage this network to develop value-added products
and services for the next generation, while promoting
digitalization initiatives both within and outside of the Bank,
in order to revitalize the region as a whole.

Promotion of ESG regional financing
ESG investment and financing
The Paris Agreement, an international framework for
combating global warming, was launched in January 2020.
The goals are to limit the temperature increase since the
pre-industrial era to less than 2°C, preferably 1.5°C, and
to achieve decarbonization by reducing greenhouse gas
emissions to virtually zero in the second half of this century.
Regional financial institutions are also required to take a
proactive approach to ESG investment and financing that
takes into account environmental, social, and governance
considerations, in order to have a social impact on the
resolution of environmental and social issues. We have
set “investment and financing to promote Sustainable
Development” as a benchmark challenge under the 7th
Medium-Term Business Plan (see Page 29), in which we will
continue to proactively engage.

Efforts to resolve issues
Life-spans of over 100 years are giving rise to concerns by
customers regarding inheritance and business and asset
succession. Services for the elderly are becoming increasingly
important, and in April this year, the Bank launched trust
services itself (see Page 49). Inheritance, asset succession, and
business succession are important for individual customers
as well as for the maintenance and development of regional
communities, and as a regional financial institution, we will
continue to take a proactive role in this area.

In addition, a Group company, The Shigagin Economic &
Cultural Center, has entered the human resources placement
business (see Page 47). Human resources are one of the most
important management issues for many companies. As we
support our customers, we will focus on this business as an
initiative to strengthen our consulting function, in order to
evolve into a problem-solution type financial information
services provider.
We are also promoting ICT initiatives in line with the
trend toward the digitalization of society (see Page 54). We
fundamentally reviewed our operations and completed the
distribution of tablet devices to all our sales staff this spring,
in order to offer even higher value-added services to our
customers. In addition to improving our sales tools, we will
strive to improve our services by having sales staff think on
their own, and aim to create an organizational culture that
enables them to self-manage their work. We will further
promote collaboration with FinTech companies through APIs
(application programming interfaces) and engage in open
innovation.
In addition, there is an urgent need to develop the
next generation of human resources to take charge of
our business in the new era. As work style reforms are
promoted to keep pace with changes, job satisfaction is
also considered as important as ever. In order to enhance
our problem-solving capabilities, we are making efforts
to support our employees in obtaining professional
qualifications, and providing incentives for those who have
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obtained qualifications so that they can experience a sense
of accomplishment in their work. From the perspective of
diversity, we adopted business casual attire on a trial basis
for the entire Group starting February 2020. We plan to fully
implement this policy from next spring. We will strive to
improve the overall productivity of the entire Group through
a combination of work style reform and job satisfaction
reform by increasing the enthusiasm of our employees for
their work and their satisfaction with the work environment.
Our vision is to become a Sustainability Design Company.
Our commitment is to go beyond the framework of a “Bank”
and become a “Company” that is indispensable to the region
by designing the sustainable development of our customers
and regional communities. Going forward, we will continue
to pursue this aim through flexible thinking.

Corporate Governance
At the Bank, the Board of Directors including Outside
Directors supervises management and the Audit &
Supervisory Board including Outside Audit & Supervisory
Board Members checks the Board of Directors. Recently,
in order to enhance the objectivity and strengthen this
supervisory function, the number of Outside Directors has
been increased from two to three. As a result, the Board of
Directors consists of six Inside Directors and three Outside
Directors. The CSR Committee considers plans to fulfill social
responsibility (SR) to all stakeholders, and works to improve
the effectiveness of governance based on the CSR Charter, or
our Management Principles.

Sustainability is to expand our connections
with a long-term perspective
We have been confronted with the harsh reality that if the
coronavirus pandemic disrupted the exchange and activities
of people and goods, it could drastically change the nature
of society as we know it and the economic environment
in which we live, and we could be faced with extreme
difficulties. On the other hand, wisdom on how to make the
best use of this period of separation has spread, and there
has been growing momentum to seek connections. What we
need now is the imagination to envision what society and
the economy will be like after the crisis is over.
Going forward, we can expect to see major changes not
only in our lifestyles and business environment, but also in
our sense of values and outlook on life. However, there will
be no change in the importance of connecting with our
stakeholders, as connections are actually something that
will become more important. In addition, it will become
even more important to adopt a long-term perspective for
everything we do.
—Strengthen ties among stakeholders and pave the way for
a new future.—
The Bank will act as a bridge and contribute to the
development of sustainable local community by increasing
added value through “imagination”and “creativity” to create
more “connection” and by improving “co-creation power”
with the development of the regional community.
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I look forward to the continued understanding and
support of all stakeholders in this endeavor.

July 2020

Shojiro Takahashi

President, Shiga Bank
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Measures to modernize the Bank’s management

Aiming to reconcile environmental and economic
needs

The Shiga Bank was born in 1933 through the merger of the 133rd National
Bank (Hyakusanjusan Bank), which prided itself on “sound management,”
and the Hachiman Bank, which emphasized a culture of “enterprise.” Since
then we have forged ahead with fulfilling our mission of helping business
partners and local communities to flourish. The “Sampo yoshi” management
philosophy, embraced by merchants in the Omi region of central Japan,
was upheld through our motto of “being tough on ourselves, kind to others
and serving society.” The Bank has made this motto and the “CSR Charter
(Management Principles)” the starting point for our activities.

We believe that the ultimate role of the management of a Bank is
to “take on risk.” For us, this means the risk assumed on behalf of
the development of the regional communities. To contribute to
the development of regional communities, the Bank is pioneering
measures to modernize its management through adoption of an
“In-house corporate credit ratings system,” “Pricing system,” and
Basel II’s Foundation Internal Ratings Base-Approach (FIRB).

The Bank sees CSR as the role of the Bank as a corporate citizen
in fostering sustainable growth of society. The Bank has been
developing CSR activities based on the three key concepts
of “environment,” “welfare,” and “culture.” By implementing
“environmental management” which contributes to the creation
of a sustainable society through “finance,” the life blood of the
economy, the Bank has taken measures to reconcile the twin
imperatives of safeguarding the “environment” and providing
“finance.”

● September 1993 	Hong Kong Representative Office was promoted
to Hong Kong Branch
● July 1996 	First regional bank in the Kinki area to launch a
website
● February 1998 	Published the first issue of “Naruhodo Shigagin,” a
mini-disclosure magazine

● May 1951 C
 ommenced foreign exchange
business

● October 1938 Opened Kyoto Branch

● October 1977
Listed stocks on the Osaka Securities
Exchange (the Second Section) and the Kyoto
Stock Exchange
(moved to the First Section of the Osaka
Securities Exchange in March 1979)

● January 1966 A
 nnounced
the Bank’s
motto

HISTORY

1950
1940

1960

1970
1980

● March 1941 Opened Osaka Branch
● July 1946

Opened Tokyo Branch
● August 1984 	Established the “Shigagin Welfare Fund,” a social welfare
corporation
● September 1987 	Published the first issue of “Current State of Shigagin,” a
disclosure magazine (renamed “SHIGA BANK REPORT” in 1998)
● October 1987 	Listed stocks on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
(the First Section)
● March 1988
Opened the New York Representative Office
● July 1988
Completed the current Head Office building
● May 1989
Opened the Hong Kong Representative Office

● April 1998

Launch of “∞ (Mugen) Net” on trial basis

● December 1998 	Commenced “In-house corporate credit ratings

The 5th Medium-Term Business Plan
From April 2013 to March 2016
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■ Basic vision
A bank journeying into the future together with its customers and region
■ Main theme
Awareness-raising and behavioral improvement for improving customer satisfaction

● August 2010
Established the “Policies for biodiversity preservation”
● February 2012
Opened Bangkok Representative Office
● December 2015 Commenced the “Ratings Simulation Service (Ratings SS)”
● November 2017 Announced Shigagin SDGs Declaration
● April 2019
Started the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan
● May 2019
Joined “TSUBASA Alliance”
● February 2020 	Signed the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB)
(the first for a regional bank)
● March 2020
Obtained approval to engage concurrently in the trust business
● April 2020 	Human resources placement business started at The Shigagin
Economic & Cultural Center Co., Ltd.

system”
● February 1999

Launch of “Pricing system” operations on trial basis

● October 1999

Established the “Environmental Policy”

● December 1999 Launch of “DBM (Database Marketing)” operations

1990

100th
anniversary

2010
2000

● March 2000
Acquired ISO 14001 Certification
● July 2000 	Commenced Shigagin New Business Forum
“Saturday School for Entrepreneurship”
● October 2001 	Became the first commercial bank in Japan to
sign the United Nations Environment Programme
(“UNEP”) Statement by Financial Institutions
● April 2003 	Established “Shigagin Nonohana Prize,” an incentive
system through industrial-academic cooperation
● December 2003 Opened Shanghai Representative Office
● April 2004
Established “CSR Committee” and “CSR Office”
● December 2005 	Established Shiga Bank Principles for Lake Biwa
(PLB) and commenced “PLB rating”

The 6th Medium-Term Business Plan

Evolution of
management plans

Environmental management

For the development of the regional communities

New York Branch (closed down in 1998)

1930

FINANCIAL SECTION

CSR Charter, the Bank’s motto which carries on
the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy

● May 1991 	New York Representative Office was promoted to

● October 1933 Established the Shiga Bank, Ltd.

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

From April 2016 to March 2019

● March 2007 	Basel II’s Foundation Internal Ratings
Based-Approach (FIRB) was approved by the
Financial Services Agency
● April 2007 	Established the “CSR Charter” and the “Code
of Conduct”
● August 2007 	Commenced “Shigagin Ratings
Communication Service (Ratings CS)”
● July 2008 	Became the first financial institution to be
certified as “Eco-First Enterprise”

The 7th Medium-Term Business Plan
From April 2019 to March 2024
■ Vision

Sustainability Design Company
—Realizing mutual prosperity based on the
“Sampo yoshi” philosophy—

■ Main theme

Define the future and realize a dream
—For the future of customers, regional
communities and all employees—

■ Long-term vision
The Regional Bank that innovates the future
■ Main theme
Change & Challenge

2033
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Strengths of Shiga Bank

SHIGA BANK

Passing down organizational culture
beyond time and location

History
of mutual
prosperity

The Shiga Bank was born in 1933 through the merger of the 133rd National
Bank (Hyakusanjusan Bank), which prided itself on “sound management,” and the
Hachiman Bank, which emphasized a culture of “enterprise.” Tracing its roots back to
1879, it is a bank with over 140 years of history. With the motto of mutual prosperity
with customers, it was committed to solid management and gained deep trust
from the region. Meanwhile, with the frontier spirit of merchants in the Omi region
of central Japan, the Bank opened the Kyoto Branch in 1938, well ahead of other
financial institutions. Branches were then opened successively in Osaka and Tokyo,
making us one of the earliest “wide-area regional banks.”
The motto of “being tough on ourselves, kind to others and serving society,”
a Code of Conduct for all employees, upholds the spirit of the “Sampo yoshi”
management philosophy embraced by merchants in the Omi region, which means
to bring happiness to three sides: the seller, the buyer, and society. Positioning this
motto as the starting point for all of our CSR activities, in 2007, we compiled the
CSR Charter (Management Principles) to ensure mutual prosperity with the regional
communities, all employees and the environment.
The Bank’s organizational culture that aims to reconcile economic value and
social value while resolving social issues has been handed down for over 140 years
to the Bank of today, serving as a guidepost for our operations.

Robust
management
foundation

Market superiority × Large share
Toyama
Tokai-Hoku

Ishikawa

Gifu

way

riku Express

Fukui
Fukui
Tsuruga

Tsuruga Port

Hokuriku Expressway
Maizuru Port
Obama

Ichinomiya JCT

Maibara

Shiga

Komaki JCT

Chuo

ssway

Expre

Meishin Exp

Maizuru
Ayabe

Nagano

Kosei Road

Kyoto

Kobe

Okayama
Sanyo Expressway

Kagawa

Otsu

Tokushima

ressway

Shizuoka
Nagoya
Aichi
Nagoya Port
Toyota
Yokkaichi
Tomei Expressway
JCT
Tottori
Isewangan Expressway
Maizuru-Wakasa
Kameyama
Kyoto
Hyogo
Expressway
JCT
Chubu Centrair International Airport
Shin-Meishin
Oyamazaki
Expressway
JCT
Osaka
Yokkaichi Port
Tsu
International Airport
Chugoku Expressway
Suita JCT
Meihan
National
Kobe
JCT
Ise
Himeji
Route
Toyooka

Nara

Osaka
Kobe Port
Hanwa Expressway
Port
Osaka
Nara
Kansai International
Airport
Wakayama

Mie

Characteristics of Shiga Prefecture

100km

Wakayama
200km

Tokushima

Large market share (fiscal year ended March 31, 2020)
Share of loans made within the prefecture 49.34%
Share of deposits within the prefecture

12

Shiga Prefecture, in which the Bank primarily operates, is located at the center of
Japan. Because of its geographical advantage linking the Kinki and Tokai regions
along with the great convenience of excellent transport access, the area boasts
a concentration of mother factories of many global companies, R&D centers,
universities, and other academic institutions. Additionally, the population change rate
of Shiga Prefecture ranks sixth in the nation (0.11% in 2019), which means that it is
one of the few prefectures that are seeing a population increase. Moreover, blessed
with natural environments such as Lake Biwa and verdant mountains, and preserving
various national treasures and important cultural assets in modern city streets, Shiga
incorporates historical heritages, cultures, and a spirit that it has inherited from its
predecessors. In a market with such great superiority, the Bank has obtained the
overwhelming support of regional communities, with a share within Shiga Prefecture
of 49.34% in loans and 45.28% in deposits.

45.28%

● Birthplace of merchants in the
Omi region
● Important transportation hub that
connects eastern and western Japan
● Prosperous economy centered on
manufacturing industry
Ratio of secondary industry
46.6% (ranks No. 1 in Japan)
Cabinet Office “Prefectural Accounts for
Fiscal 2016”; compared to gross product
in the prefecture

● Ranks No. 4 in Japan for birthrate
Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare
“Demographic Survey for Fiscal 2018”

Birth rate of 8.2 per population of 1,000
● Abundant national treasures and
important cultural assets
(as of July 2020)

The number of designations is 823,
which ranks No. 4 in Japan

TOP MESSAGE

High risk
management
capabilities

ABOUT SHIGA BANK

CHALLENGES FOR VALUE CREATION

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

Pioneering management attaching
importance to risk control
We believe that the ultimate mission of the management of a bank is to “take on risk.” For us, this means risk
assumed for the development of regional communities. As a Bank largely responsible for the development of
regional communities, we must demonstrate financial intermediary functions for the sake of supporting each stage
of customers from startup to growth and business rehabilitation, and sustainable development of the regional
communities, without being affected by the financial environment and economic trends. With that recognition in
mind, the Bank has been taking on measures to modernize its management based on rational thinking without undue
reliance on personal intuition or experience, with the aim of enhancing its financial base and capital. Pioneering in
introducing the “in-house corporate credit ratings system” and
“pricing system,” we became the first regional bank to adopt the
Internal Ratings Based-Approach in 2007. This was followed by
the launch of the “Ratings Communication Service” and “Ratings
Simulation Service” (see Page 74) based on the Bank’s own
accumulated data so as to make available its expertise as an FIRB
bank for raising management standards at clients, not just for the
risk management for the Bank. In this and other ways, the Bank is
committed to resolving issues and supporting growth through
“substantial dialogue” with customers.
We have also introduced a “risk appetite framework” (see
Page 72) and use it for business strategies capable of coping
with environmental changes, while improving business plan
transparency and pursuing earnings opportunities.

Promotion of
environmental
management and
SDGs

Resolving issues facing society
through our main business

The award ceremony of the 2nd “Japan SDGs Award” (December 2018)

The Bank sees CSR as the role of the Bank as a corporate
citizen in fostering sustainable growth of society. The Bank
has been developing CSR activities based on the three key
concepts of “environment,” “welfare,” and “culture.” Particularly,
as a social mission of a bank which is headquartered by
Lake Biwa, we position “environmental management,” which
incorporates the environment in management, as the
essence of bank management. Based on this, the Bank has
been a pioneer among banks in implementing “environmental
finance,” which contributes to the creation of a sustainable
society through “finance,” the life blood of the economy. In
2017, the Bank made public the Shigagin SDGs Declaration,
the first for a Japanese regional bank. The Bank has connected
the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) proposed by the
United Nations to our corporate behavior, worked to resolve
social issues without undermining economic growth, and
developed various activities to realize a sustainable society.
In recognition of these initiatives, the Bank has enjoyed high
evaluations from various fields, as represented by the special
award at the 2nd Japan SDGs Award received in 2018 (see
Page 14).
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Major Certification/Award in Fiscal 2019
ESG finance initiatives

The 1st ESG Finance Awards Japan (Hosted by the Ministry of the Environment)
Received the Silver Prize (Minister of the Environment Award)
in the financing category February 26, 2020

Comment from Minister of
the Environment Koizumi
“I was reassured by the fact that so many
people are thinking about and working on
ESG. A representative from Shiga Bank was
here today, and because the significance of
this award is to create a society in which ESG
is discussed commonly both at the local level
and throughout Japan, I hope that we can work
together in the future.”
President Takahashi holding the trophy (left) and Minister of the Environment Koizumi

The ESG Finance Awards Japan recognize and reward investors, financial institutions, and other organizations that have made a positive impact
on the environment and society through their proactive engagement in ESG finance and green projects. We received a Silver Prize (Minister of
the Environment Award) in the financing category.
* E SG finance is an approach that encourages companies and society to take ESG-conscious actions by taking into account environmental, social, and governance information in their
investments and financing, with an emphasis on a long-term perspective in analyzing and evaluating companies.

Creating a workplace where women can thrive

“Eruboshi” certification
Obtained 2 stars (Secretary: The Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare)
January 29, 2020
The Bank received the “Eruboshi” certification (2 stars), which is given
to companies in recognition of their excellent efforts to promote the
advancement of women.
* Eruboshi is a system for certification given by the Minister
of Health, Labour and Welfare to companies in recognition
of their efforts in meeting certain standards and achieving
excellence in promoting the advancement of women based
on the Act on Promotion of Women’s Participation and
Advancement in the Workplace.

Selected as a recommended stock for investment

Sompo Sustainability Index fiscal 2020
The Bank has been selected as an index component of the SOMPO
Sustainability Index established by SOMPO Asset Management Co., Ltd. for
nine consecutive years.
The Index, which is composed of approximately 300 companies with
outstanding ESG-related initiatives, is used for SOMPO Sustainable
Management*, a long-term investment product.

14

*SOMPO Sustainable Management
SOMPO Sustainable Management is an investment product launched in August 2012 that invests
in a wide range of companies with a strong reputation for ESG initiatives.
It is used by multiple pension funds and institutional investors.
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External Evaluation on Management of Shiga Bank
The Shiga Bank owes its long history to the loyal patronage of customers and the regional communities. With the awareness that “the Bank’s
development is unattainable without the development of the region” and guided by the mission to contribute to sustainable growth of the regional
communities, we have been proactively pursuing mutual prosperity with the regional communities, all employees and environment as set forth in the
CSR Charter (Management Principles). Our efforts made to date have received high praise from various external institutes and organizations.
2003

● Awarded the Environmental Management Pearl Prize at the “1st Japan
Environmental Management Award”

2004

● Awarded the Financial Institution Category Prize at the “2nd Integrity Award”
● Awarded the Fujisankei Communications Group Prize at the “13th Global
Environment Award”
● Awarded the Shiga Labor Bureau’s Award
● Certified as “FTSE4Good Global Index”

2007

● Awarded the “Manager of the Year Award” of ZAIKAI for fiscal 2006

First in the
banking industry

Awarded the Fujisankei Communications Group
Prize at the “13th Global Environment Award”

We were awarded as a company proactively engaged in
environmental preservation activities in pursuit of industrial
development and coexistence with the global environment.

● Awarded Minister of the Environment Prize at the “9th Green Purchasing
Award”
2008

● Awarded the Chairman’s Prize from the New Energy Foundation at the “12th
New Energy Award”
● Awarded the Grand Prize at the “5th Corporate Philanthropy Award”
● Registered as a “Work-Life Balance Promotion Company”
● Awarded the Grand Prize at the “BCAO Awards 2007”
● Certified as a company that proactively works to support childcare based on
the “Act on Advancement of Measures to Support Raising Next-Generation
Children”
● Certified as “Eco-First Enterprise” by the Ministry of the Environment
(renewed in 2019)
● Awarded the “Kansai Eco Office Prize” for fiscal 2007

First in the
financial industry

Certified as Eco-First Enterprise

We declared our commitment to
environmental finance, eco-office creation
and coexistence of human and natural
environment as the “Eco-First Commitments.”
We were awarded by the Minister of the
Environment as an industry leader with
visionary and unique environmental initiatives.

● Awarded the “Minister of the Environment’s Commendation for Global
Warming Prevention Activity” for fiscal 2008
2014

● CSR activities of the Bank were included in the Contemporary Ethics
textbook for high schools published by Shimizu Shoin
● Earned double commendations at the “17th Environmental Communication
Award”
Environmental Report Grand Prize in the Environmental Report Category
(Minister of the Environment Prize)
Prize for Excellence in the Environmental Television Commercial Category
(President of Global Environmental Forum Prize)
● Certified for a third time as a company that proactively works to support
childcare based on the “Act on Advancement of Measures to Support
Raising Next-Generation Children”

First for a regional
bank in the Kinki area

As a company that supports good parenting based
on the Act on Advancement of Measures to Support
Raising Next-Generation Children, the Bank was
awarded “Platinum Kurumin certification,” the first for a
regional bank in the Kinki area.

● Awarded the Minister of Health, Labour and Welfare Prize at the “50th
National Convention of the Blood Donation Drive”
● Awarded the Prize for Encouragement at the 2nd “‘Miyako Environmentally
Friendly Building’ Reward System” (Kyoto Branch)
2015

Top Award

● Awarded the Prize for Excellence at the “1st Kaueco GRAND PRIX”
● Awarded the Prize for Excellence in the Environmental Report Category at
the “18th Environmental Communication Award”
● Won the Outstanding Performance Award at the first “Low Carbon ‘Towns
and Buildings’ Contest” (Ritto Branch)
● Won the Outstanding Performance Award at the “Integrity Award 2015”
● Awarded the first prize at the “Kankyo Hito-zukuri Kigyo Taisho 2014”

Awarded “Platinum Kurumin certification”

Awarded the “Bank of the Year,” the top award,
and the “Community Contribution Grand
Prize” at the “6th M&A Bank of the Year”

We received the award because, as measures for business succession of
customers, the Bank has focused on needs for business succession and
M&A in the region from an early stage, developed its organizational system
according to the needs, and strived for promotion activities targeted at
business departments and branches as well as for information development.

● Awarded the Shiga Labor Bureau Director’s award for promotion of equality
and a better work-life balance for fiscal 2015 in the family-friendly corporate
category
● Awarded the first prize in the “2015 UCDA Award”
2016

● Certified as Good Practice at the 4th “Principles for Finance Action towards a
Sustainable Society”
● Adopted “Ikuboss declaration” (239 persons)
● Awarded “Platinum Kurumin certification” based on the “Act on
Advancement of Measures to Support Raising Next-Generation Children”
● Commended as a business operator that excels in environmental protection
at the Shiga Prefecture’s “Environment Protection Chairman’s Prize”

2018

● Awarded the “Supporting Sponsor Prize” at the 2nd Green Ocean Grand
Award 2018
● Awarded the “Bank of the Year,” the top award, and the “Community
Contribution Grand Prize” at the “6th M&A Bank of the Year” hosted by
Nihon M&A Center Inc.
● Awarded the special award “SDGs Partnership Award” at the “2nd Japan
SDGs Award”

2019

● Awarded the Judging Committee’s Special Excellence Award in the
Environmental Report Category at the “22nd Environmental Communication
Award”

First for a financial
institution

Awarded the special award “SDGs Partnership
Award” at the “2nd Japan SDGs Award”

The Bank received recognition for its noteworthy achievements as a
company working to promote SDGs through its businesses with an
emphasis on partnerships.

● Obtained certification as a “Two-star company” by Shiga Prefecture
Certification System for Companies Promoting Women’s Career
Advancement
● Awarded the Minister of the Environment Prize (Regional category) at the
Principles for Financial Action for the 21st Century
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Financial Highlights

SHIGA BANK

(As of March 31, 2020)

Gross operating income (consolidated)
Net income attributable to owners of parent (consolidated)
Gross operating income

(Billions of yen)

80

72.2

69.7

70

Net income

66.9

65.2

56.5
12.4

billion yen
billion yen

64.7

63.4

61.3

58.8

60

56.5

55.6

50
40
30
20
10

4.6

0

11.0

8.2

2011

2012

2013

4,931.5

(Billions of yen)

2014

45. 28

4,931.5

5,000

4,803.9

14.8

14.6

13.8

12.4

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

3,800.2

Average balance of loans
and bills discounted
billion yen
during the period
(non-consolidated)
Share within Shiga Prefecture

49.34 %

(Billions of yen)

4,000
3,696.7

3,800.2

3,532.1

4,630.4
4,379.9

15.5

5.5

Average balance of
deposits during the period
billion yen
(including negotiable
certificates of deposits) Share within Shiga Prefecture
%
(non-consolidated)

4,500

13.6

3,500

4,467.1

3,331.6
3,124.2

3,000
4,000
2,500
3,500

0

2,000

0
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

* Share within Shiga Prefecture excludes JAPAN POST BANK Co., Ltd. and The Shoko
Chukin Bank, Ltd.

Deposits per employee
(non-consolidated)

2.49

billion yen

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

* Share within Shiga Prefecture excludes JAPAN POST BANK Co., Ltd., The Shoko Chukin
Bank, Ltd., and Japan Finance Corporation.

1.95

Loans and bills discounted per
employee (non-consolidated)

billion yen

(Millions of yen)
(Millions of yen)

2,500
2,173
2,000

2,326

2,468

2,499

2,015

2,000

1,500

1,500

1,485

1,634

1,765

1,892

500

500

0
2016

2017

2018

2019

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

* Deposits and loans per employee = Deposits and loans (end of year) / Number of employees excluding part-time staff and seconded staff (end of year)
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1,950

1,000

1,000

0

2,500

2020
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4.5

Actual amount of CSR private
placement bonds / SDGs
private placement bonds
CSR private placement bonds

(Billions of yen)

CHALLENGES FOR VALUE CREATION

billion yen

SDGs private placement bonds

12
10.7

(Billions of yen)

Investment trust

150

7.0

150.6

144.6

163.0

158.2
15.3

24.9

42.5

10.8

133.7

135.2

133.2

134.4

47.4

4.5
100

4.5

4

2016

2017

2018

2019

0

2020

11.0

Fees and commissions
(consolidated)

billion yen

11,047
9,295

2017

2018

Expenses (non-consolidated)

(Billions of yen)

9,561

2016

OHR (non-consolidated)

(Millions of yen)

12,000

45

Expenses

2019

2020

40.5
75.64

billion yen

80
76.80

43

75

41.4

8,000

41.2
72.39

41
6,000

75.64

75.19

42.4

%

(%)

OHR

9,875

9,521

115.5

50

5.5

2

40.5

40.3

70

69.97
39

4,000

65

37

2,000
0

billion yen

Financial instruments intermediary
177.0

6

10,000

163.0

Investment trust /
financial instruments
intermediary balance

10.1

8.3

0

FINANCIAL SECTION

200

10
8
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2016

2017

2018

2019

0

2020

Rating

2016

Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I)

A+
A+

2019

(%)

AAA
AA+
AA
AA−

Shiga Bank

AAA
AA+
AA
AA−

Total capital ratio

A+
A
A−
BBB+
BBB
BBB−
BB+
BB
BB−
B+
B

C
D

C
D

0

%
%

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio

Shiga Bank
18
A+

A
A−
BBB+
BBB
BBB−
BB+
BB
BB−
B+
B

2020

14.12
13.71

Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio (consolidated)
20

A high level of
certainty to honor
the financial
obligations

2018

Total capital ratio (consolidated)

Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. (JCR)

Japan Credit Rating
Agency, Ltd. (JCR)

2017

Rating and Investment
Information, Inc. (R&I)
High creditworthiness
supported by
a few excellent factors

16.45

16.67

16.98
15.68

16

14.12

15.80
14
12

14.79

14.46

13.71

13.28

10
0

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020
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Non-financial Highlights

SHIGA BANK

Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions
Rate of reduction in
greenhouse gas emissions

29.24

%

(As of March 31, 2020)

Number/ratio
of customers
approved for PLB

11, 312

organizations

60. 6 %

Customer ratio

Page 38

(Reduction rate compared to fiscal year 2013. Target of 25%
reduction in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2024)

29.39

Women managers ratio

(Persons)

350

General Manager and
Deputy General Manager

Assistant
General Manager

250

Senior staff member

331

288

300

20
226

Number of employees who have
taken childcare leave

(Persons)

Male

160

persons

Female

200
22
150

62

160

157

155

77

226

68

19

200

%

100

150

141

140
200

100

149

232
50

145
50
0

2018

2019

0.3

Environmental
preservation cost
(Millions of yen)

800

Amount of
investment

Amount
of cost

billion yen

(Fiscal year ended March 31, 2019)

2020

0.43

billion yen

(Fiscal year ended March 31, 2019)

(Millions of yen)

400

11

2019

Economic benefits from
environmental preservation

700

466
390

454

402

433

307

500

300

400
300

2018

500

768

600

16

15

0

2020

349

200

290

261

309

312

281

461

263

200

273

100

100
0

20
2015

59
2016

36

49
2017

2018

2019

0

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

For details, please refer to [Related information] “Environmental accounting” in the “CSR report
2019” on the Bank’s website.
* Capital investment increased during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 owing to repairs
to the administrative center.
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URL https://www.shigagin.com/csr/report

TOP MESSAGE

ABOUT SHIGA BANK

Number of employees with
Financial Planning Grade 1
certification

198

(Persons)

200

CHALLENGES FOR VALUE CREATION

persons

FINANCIAL SECTION

Number of employees certified as
Small and Medium Enterprise
Management Consultant

150

persons

50

172
156

147

42

(Persons)

198

188

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

40

38

39

2017

2018

43

42

2019

2020

35

30
100
20
50

0

10

2016

2017

2018

2019

0

2020

Number of Ratings Communication Service provided

2,164

cases

2016

3,501
22.43

Number and percentage of
new loans not dependent
on manager guarantees

cases

(Cases)

(Cases)

3,000

(%)

6,000

23

2,514

2,500
2,000

2,422

%

22.43

2,575

2,164
1,944

22
4,000

3,569

3,540

3,501

1,500

21

20.76
1,000

2,000
20
19.72

500
0

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

365

Number of customers
receiving business
succession support

customers

0

2018

2019

2020

0

498
375.25

Number of Shigagin Welfare
Fund subsidies and the total
amount of subsidies

cases

million yen

(Customers)

400

365
330
297

300

200

100

0

2018

2019

2020
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Value Creation Story

Risks and Opportunities

The 7th Medium-Term
Business Plan

20

22

Value Creation Story

24

Risks and Opportunities

26

Sustainability Vision
(Long-term Vision)

28

The 7th Medium-Term Business Plan

30

Taking on the Challenge of ESG
Regional Financing

42

Taking on the Challenge towards
Future Innovation
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CSR Charter: Three types of mutual prosperity

FINANCIAL SECTION

Sustainability Design Company

Vision

The Bank’s motto: Be tough on ourselves, kind to others and serve society

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

—Realizing mutual prosperity based on the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy—

Define a future and realize a dream

Main theme

—For the future of customers, regional communities and all employees—

Sustainability vision (Long-term Vision)

Improving corporate value through solution of issues facing society

Creating a sustainable society

Strengths of Shiga Bank

Areas for priority action

History of mutual
prosperity
(Capital
(Capital
to be(Capital
Used)
to be Used)
to be Used)
INPUTINPUT
INPUT

Finance
Finance
capital
Finance
capital
capital
● Diversified
● Diversified
Diversified
earnings
earnings
structure
earnings
structure
structure
●loan
(fiscal
year(fiscal
ended
year
March
(fiscal
ended
year
31,March
2020)
ended
31,March
2020) 31, 2020)
Sound●loan
Sound
assets
Sound
assets
loan
assets
AverageAverage
balance
Average
balance
of loans
balance
ofand
loansofand
loans and
bills discounted
bills discounted
bills
during
discounted
during
the period
during
the period
the period
¥3,800.2
¥3,800.2
billion¥3,800.2
billion billion
Ratio ofRatio
loansofbased
Ratio
loansof
on
based
loans
the Financial
on
based
the Financial
on the Financial
Reconstruction
Reconstruction
Reconstruction
Act
Act
Act 1.36% 1.36% 1.36%
● Adequate
● Adequate
● Adequate
(asBank
of March
(as of31,
March
2020)
(as of31,
March
2020)31, 2020)
Bank
capital
Bank capital
capital
Total capital
Total capital
ratio
Total
(consolidated)
capital
ratio (consolidated)
ratio (consolidated)
14.12%14.12%14.12%
● Unrealized
● Unrealized
● Unrealized
gain
ongain
securities
ongain
securities
on securities
ranks No.
ranks
5 inNo.
Japan
ranks
5 inNo.
Japan
5 in Japan
●
●

(as of March
(as of31,
March
2020,
(as of31,
source:
March
2020,31,
Nikkin
source:
2020,
Report)
Nikkin
source:Report)
Nikkin Report)

Human
Human
capital
Human
capital
capital
● Human
● Human
Human
resources
resources
whoresources
have
who
advanced
have
who
advanced
have advanced
financial
financial
knowledge
financial
knowledge
knowledge
● Number
● Number
● Number
of employees
of employees
with
of employees
financial
with financial
with financial
qualifications
qualifications
ranks
qualifications
high
ranks
among
high
ranks
regional
among
high regional
among
banks regional
banks banks
●

(fiscal year
(fiscal
ended
year
(fiscal
March
ended
year
31,
March
ended
2020)31,
March
2020)31, 2020)

NumberNumber
of employees
Number
of employees
with
of employees
Financial
with Financial
with Financial
persons
198 persons
198 persons
Planning
Planning
GradePlanning
1Grade
certification
1Grade
certification
1 198
certification
NumberNumber
of employees
Number
of employees
with
of employees
Financial
with Financial
Planning
with Financial
PlanningPlanning
1,267 persons
1,267 persons
1,267 persons
Grade 2 Grade
certification
2 Grade
certification
2 certification
NumberNumber
of Small
Number
ofand
Small
Medium
ofand
Small
Medium
Enterprise
and Medium
Enterprise
Enterprise
Management
Management
Consultants
Management
Consultants
Consultants
42 persons
42 persons
42 persons
● Corporate
● Corporate
●
culture
Corporate
culture
that emphasizes
culture
that emphasizes
that emphasizes
regionalregional
contribution
regional
contribution
and
contribution
motivation
and motivation
and motivation
WomenWomen
managers
Women
managers
ratiomanagers
ratio ratio
(as of March
(as of31,
March
2020)
(as of31,
March
2020)31, 2020)
29.39%29.39%
29.39%

Intellectual
Intellectual
Intellectual
capital
capital
capital
● Diversified
● Diversified
Diversified
financial
financial
methods
financial
methods
methods
● Fulfilling
● Fulfilling
● Fulfilling
consulting
consulting
functions
consulting
functions
functions
NumberNumber
of Ratings
Number
of Ratings
Communication
of Ratings
Communication
Communication
ServiceService
clientsService
clients
4,809 clients
4,809 4,809
● Environmental
● Environmental
● Environmental
management
management
and
management
and and
measures
measures
for SDGs
measures
for SDGs
for SDGs
● Responding
● Responding
●
toResponding
digitalization
to digitalization
to digitalization
●

Social
Social
relationship
Social
relationship
relationship
capital
capital
capital
●

Shiga Bank’s

● Contribute to the development
of regional communities; CSR
management

Robust management
foundation
● Market superiority × Large
share

business model

Turning SDGs

● Basic strategies

into business

(Challenges to innovate the future)

High risk
management
capabilities
(in March 2007)

Promotion of
environmental
management and SDGs

Shifting to
sustainable
earnings
structure

Sustainability
of the global
environment

● Business
strategies
Mindset-Work
reforms
(mindset reform
and work style
reform)

Challenge
to regional
revitalization

Strategies
for
individual
customers

● Protect the global
environment through our
main business
The first regional bank to
publish Shigagin SDGs
Declaration
● Received the special award
at the 2nd Japan SDGs
Award
● Received the Silver Prize
(Minister of the Environment
Award) in the financing
category of the 1st ESG
Finance Awards Japan
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Optimization
of
management
resources

Promoting
employee
activities

Training a
diversified
workforce

Strategies
for
corporate
customers
Strengthening
of market
investment
capabilities

Global
support

Strengthening
of ICT
infrastructure
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(Value (Value
to be provided)
(Value
to be provided)
to be provided)
OUTCOME
OUTCOME
OUTCOME

Customers
Customers
Customers
● Improving
● Improving
Improving
profitability
profitability
and
profitability
productivity
and productivity
and productivity
in the region
in the region
in the region
● Formation
● Formation
● Formation
of
assets
of through
assets
of through
assets
practical
through
practical
practical
banking
banking
operations
banking
operations
centered
operations
centered
on the
centered
on the on the
customer
customer
customer
● Helping
● Helping
● Helping
businesses
businesses
through
businesses
through
a wide
through
a wide a wide
range of
range
diversified
of
range
diversified
of
solutions
diversified
solutions
solutions
● Improving
● Improving
● Improving
convenience
convenience
convenience
●

Shareholders
Shareholders
Shareholders
and investors
and investors
and investors
● Creating
● Creating
Creating
mid-to-long-term
mid-to-long-term
mid-to-long-term
shareholder
shareholder
value
shareholder
value value
● Highly
● Highly
Highly
transparent
transparent
disclosure
transparent
disclosure
including
disclosure
including
including
non-financial
non-financial
non-financial
information
information
information
● Promotion
● Promotion
● Promotion
of
engagement
of engagement
of engagement
●
●

Alliance
strategy

Employees
Employees
Employees

Measures
for climate
change/global
warming

● Vigorous
● Vigorous
● Vigorous
corporate
corporate
Group
corporate
Group Group
●

● Organization
● Organization
Organization
that helps
thatambitious,
helps
thatambitious,
helps ambitious,
motivated
motivated
people
motivated
people
realizepeople
realize
their dreams
realize
their dreams
their dreams

●

● Ensuring
● Ensuring
Ensuring
a diversified
a diversified
approach
a diversified
approach
to work
approach
to workto work
and a good
and awork-life
good
and awork-life
good
balance
work-life
balancebalance

●

● Organization
● Organization
Organization
with diversity
with diversity
with diversity

Page 12

●
Main ●bank
Mainrate
bank
Main
by rate
prefecture
bank
by rate
prefecture
by prefecture
ranks No.
ranks
1 inNo.
Japan
ranks
1 inNo.
Japan
1 in Japan

The 7th Medium-Term
Business Plan

(as of 2018,
(as of
source:
2018,
(as Financial
of
source:
2018,Financial
source:
Journal)Financial
Journal) Journal)

● Network
● Network
Network
of branches
of branches
rooted
of branches
in
rooted
the community
in
rooted
the community
in the community
● Asia network
● Asia
Asia network
3 bases
network
3 bases3 bases
● Region
● Region
●
with a moderate
Region
with a moderate
with
rate
a moderate
of population
rate of population
rate of population
declinedeclinedecline
● Clusters
● Clusters
● Clusters
of academic
of academic
centers
of academic
centers
and corporate
centers
and corporate
and corporate
research
research
institutes
research
institutes
institutes
● Regional
● Regional
● Regional
community
community
which
community
carries
which on
carries
which
the on
carries
the on the
“Sampo“Sampo
yoshi”“Sampo
philosophy
yoshi” philosophy
yoshi” philosophy

Increasing
productivity
of the
regional
communities

Evolving into a
problem-solution
type financial
information services
provider

● The first regional bank to
adopt Internal RatingsBased Approach
● Utilizing risk appetite
framework

Establishing
the regional
economy

●
●

StepSutepSutep u
p joip
p
ntjoaip
nptjo
raoipnaptcra
ch
hoptap
ocrhiostsao
u
ueisss, ues,
eissts,o

Natural
Natural
capital
Natural
capital
capital
● Natural
● Natural
Natural
environment
environment
with
environment
rich
with
biodiversity
rich
with
biodiversity
rich biodiversity
represented
represented
byrepresented
Lakeby
Biwa
Lakeby
Biwa
Lake Biwa
● Concentration
● Concentration
● Concentration
of National
of National
Treasures
of National
Treasures
and Treasures
and and
Important
Important
Cultural
Important
Cultural
AssetsCultural
Assets Assets
●

Environment
Environment
Environment
and society
and society
and society
● Creation
Creation
of ●
shared
Creation
of shared
values
of shared
values
(reconciliation
values
(reconciliation
(reconciliation
of economic
of economic
value
of economic
and
value
social
and
value
value)
social
andvalue)
social value)
● Resolving
● Resolving
● Resolving
issues
facing
issues facing
society
issues facing
society
through
society
through
through
our main
ourbusiness
main
ourbusiness
main business
● Realization
● Realization
● Realization
of
social
ofimpact
social
ofimpact
social impact
● Reduction
● Reduction
● CO
2 in
in
Reduction
emissions
CO2 in
emissions
CO2 emissions
●

Structure
Structure
Structure
to support
to support
to creation
support
creation
creation
Corporate
Corporate
Corporate Promoting
Promoting
employee
Promoting
employee
activities
employee
activities
activities
governance
governance
governance
and environment
and environment
and environment
creation
creation
creation
Page 59
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of corporate
of corporate
of corporate
value
value
value
Dialogue
Dialogue
with
Dialogue
with with
stakeholders
stakeholders
stakeholders
Page 70

Risk management/
Risk management/
Risk management/
compliance
compliance
compliance
Page 72
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—Recognition of Issues and Strategic Measures of the Bank—

Recognition of issues and strategic measures of the Bank
Business environment

Risks

Opportunities

Issues

Society
●

●

Depopulation,

●

Progress of aging population

●

Decrease in working age population

low birthrate and

●

aging population

●

● Widening

Regional community stagnation due
to depopulation

●

Financial instability in Japan
Mounting anxiety for the future

regional

disparities

●

Changes in lifestyle
Work style reform

●

Prolonged ultra-low

Society
Growing needs for businesses that
serve as platforms for resolving social
issues

●

Expansion of businesses that create
social impact

●

Increase in businesses for the elderly

●

Advent of regional revitalization
opportunities via cross-industry
collaboration

●

Offering products and services tailored
to lifestyles

●

Advice regarding decent work

●

Identifying social issues and needs

●

Enhancing lineup of new financial instruments
and solutions

● Training “problem-solution

type human
resources” and accumulate expertise

●

Prolonged ultra-low interest rate
environment

●

Expansion of new business domains
such as circular economy

●

Change and contraction of existing
industrial structure

●

Increase in needs for new businesses
and relaunching

●

Regional economic downturn due to
depopulation

●

●

Shortage of successors in SMEs

●

interest rate environment

implementation of fiduciary duty

●

Social requirements for

●

●

Strengthening consulting capabilities

●

Promoting problem-solution type businesses

●

Deepening business assessments

Expansion of environment-related
business such as renewable energy

●

Further cooperation among industry, academia,
government and financial sector

Development of businesses that are
related to business succession such as
M&A

●

Utilizing risk appetite framework

●

Boosting profitability through productivity
improvement

Improving regional productivity

●

Progress of climate change and
global warming

●

Advice on addressing climate change
and global warming

●

Loss of operational foundations due
to deterioration in natural capital

●

Providing ESG investment and
financing, environment-related
products and services

●

Damage caused by large-scale
natural disasters

●

● Tightening

●

Environment

Environment

corporate management

environmental
regulations relative to control of
greenhouse gas emissions and waste
plastics

Expansion of global
environmental issues

●

●

Provide solutions for environmental
regulations
Expansion of the energy-saving market
and needs for new materials and new
technologies

●

Promoting SDGs businesses

●

Spreading and expanding SDGs management
with the use of environmental rating

●

Enriching human resources and solutions toward
achieving a decarbonized society

●

Arranging an environment to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions

●

Technology

Advancement of

●

Rapid progress in digital innovation

●

technology and changes

●

Diversifying settlement methods,
such as cashless payment

Providing new products with the use of
digital technologies

●

Providing diversifying settlement
methods

in industrial structure

●

●

●

24

Entry of different industry players
such as FinTech providers

●

Homogenization of services due to
intensified competition
Loss of existing business domains
due to digital transformation

Collaborative creation with the community

Expanding new business domains
through collaboration with different
industry players

●

Streamlining business operations at
stores, etc.

●

Implementing work style reform

Challenge
to regional
revitalization
Page 44

Strategies
for
individual
customers
Page 48

Strengthening
of market
investment
capabilities
Page 51

Strategies
for
corporate
customers
Page 46

Global
support
Page 50

Optimization
of
management
resources
Page 52

Raising awareness of and promote SDGs literacy

Creation of a resilient society

Technology
●

Realization of recycling-oriented society

Utilization of digital technology

Diversifying settlement
methods

(Turning SDGs into business)

Economy

●

Changes in social and economic
structures due to advancement of
digitalization

Promotion of problem-solution type business

Enriching alliances with professional institutions

● Thorough

Economy

●

Evolve into a problem-solution type
financial information services provider

●

Delivering new values via digital innovation

●

Developing efficient and competitive services

●

Cooperating with other companies to strengthen
settlement functions

●

Utilizing big data

Strengthening
of ICT
infrastructure
Page 54

Promoting
employee
activities
Page 66

Alliance
strategy
Page 56

Measures
for climate
change/global
warming
Page 40
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Linking the economy, environment and people
(Integrated development)
The long-term vision of the Bank which serves as a guidepost for its
business plans is based on the “vision for regional communities the
Bank should aim to materialize.” The reason “an ideal bank” was not
used as the basis for the long-term vision is that we aimed to shift our
perspective from the Bank’s point of view to the point of view of society
and customers. We have the following aspirations under our long-term
vision.

Work first from the sustainable prosperity for the
regional community
As a community-based regional financial institution, we believe that our
development is predicated on the sustainability and sound prosperity of
the regional community in which we operate. Based on the recognition
that the Bank’s development is unattainable without the development
of the region, we believe that the Bank can only be sustainable if we are

Milestones for 2030 (Target 2030)
<Establishing the regional economy>
Investment and financing to promote
Sustainable Development
New investment and financing for a
cumulative total of ¥1 trillion

Sustainability Vision
(Long-term Vision)

<Sustainability of the global environment>

We create and reconcile the twin

<Unchanging spirit>

imperatives of economic value and
benchmark challenges, and achieve

The Bank’s motto: Be tough on ourselves,
kind to others and serve society
CSR Charter: Mutual prosperity with the regional communities,
all employees, and environment

sustainable development of

<Vision for regional communities that the Bank should aim to materialize>

social value through the three

Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions
by 30% or more
(compared to fiscal 2013)

regional communities.

A society where everyone can define
their future and live happily

<Training a diversified workforce>
Activities for promotion and improvement of SDGs
and financial literacy; training of
a next-generation workforce
Aim to target at 10,000 persons

working towards sustainable prosperity for the regional community.

Attach importance to social impact produced by
ESG finance

tn

a
s th

sue

is
ing

eed

to

dre

b

d
ea

—Realization of sustainable society
through co-creation with the community—

)

d
sse

in

With growing awareness of the SDGs and the Paris Agreement, there
has been increasing interest in the importance of the social impact

Ba

indicating the “vision for regional communities the Bank should aim to

M

a

ckc

of finance on the environment and society. The Bank started off by

g
stin

am
(Ex

backcasting approach to formulate our medium-term business plan.

MT

7 t h MT B

To achieve our long-term vision, we have set the Milestones for 2030

P

Filling a gap

materialize,” clarified the social impact we should create, and then took a

Aim to achieve the long-term vision through three
milestones

TB

BP

P

from three perspectives: economic, environmental, and people. Through
initiatives to achieve these milestones, we will create a social impact and

The 7th Medium-Term Business Plan

realize a society where everyone can define their future and live happily.

Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year

2019

Event

The Bank

2020

2021

2022

Next business term and thereafter
Fiscal year

2023

Tokyo
Olympic
Games

90th
anniversary

Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year

2024

2025

Lake Biwa
National
Sports Festival

Osaka
World
Expo

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033

SDGs
target

95th
anniversary

100th
anniversary

Renew core
systems

26
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The 7th Medium-Term Business Plan

Vision
“Sustainability Design Company”
—Realizing mutual prosperity based on the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy—

Outline of the plan and progress
in year one

—For the future of customers, regional communities and all employees—

Our vision is to plan and create sustainable development of the region

Basic strategies

and customers. One year has passed since we launched our 7th
Medium-Term Business Plan to achieve this vision. We have taken up

Main theme
Define a future and realize a dream

Challenges to innovate the future

the challenge of achieving five Sustainable Development targets (“SD
targets”) over a period of five years, and we have generally made good
progress in our first year.
In particular, in activities for promotion and improvement of SDGs
and financial literacy and the training of a next-generation workforce
to develop human resources in the region to co-create a sustainable
society, we exceeded our five-year SD targets as a result of proactive

Increasing
productivity
of the regional
communities

Turning SDGs
into business

human resource development and lecture activities both inside and
outside of the Bank. Going forward, we will continue to promote more
in-depth human resource development, which we will link to the
achievement of other SD targets in an integrated manner.
In addition, we reduced greenhouse gas emissions by 29.24%
compared to levels in fiscal 2013 and also achieved this SD target
ahead of schedule. This was made possible by the reduction of energy

Evolving into a
problem-solution
type financial
information
services provider

consumption through large-scale renovations and the reduction of
the workload through productivity improvement measures including
operation reforms. Going forward, we will work to achieve ahead of
schedule a 30% reduction that is a milestone in our long-term vision.
Meanwhile, support for asset formation of regional customers fell
short of the starting figure (approximately 177 billion yen) due to market

Mindset-Work
reforms (mindset
reform and work
style reform)

Shifting to
sustainable
earnings
structure

fluctuations caused by the spread of the novel coronavirus infection.
Despite this difficult start, we will strive to contribute to asset formation
of customers by providing thorough “goal-based support” designed to
support them in our efforts to resolve issues to help them achieve their
dreams.

Enhancement of
management foundation
Management Principles
Human resources
Governance
Capital
System

28
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Benchmark challenges

promote Sustainable Development

150.2 billion yen
2020
(Results)

Support for value improvement of
regional customers

SD targets

(number of requests for consultation per
year)

Support for asset formation of
regional customers
(balance of assets under custody
“investment trust + financial instruments
intermediary”)

2024
(Targets)

1,087 requests
850 requests

2020
(Results)

2022
(Targets)

1,000 requests

2024
(Targets)

300.0 billion yen
220.0 billion yen

163.0 billion yen

(compared to fiscal 2013)

The valuation amount declined due to the
decline in stock prices caused by the novel

by restructuring our system for promoting
2020
(Results)

2022
(Targets)

2024
(Targets)

29.24%
reduction

25%
reduction
2024
(Targets)

5,415 persons

5,000 persons

of SDGs and financial literacy
Training of next-generation workforce
2020
(Results)

2024
(Targets)

12.4 billion yen

Net income attributable to owners
Revenue targets

As a result of our efforts to implement our
goal-based support based on a customeroriented perspective (market-in), we
increased the number of consultations
on asset succession and growth support,
exceeding our final fiscal year target of 1,000
consultations per year.

asset formation support led by the SD team

2020
(Results)

Activities for promotion and improvement

We made good progress in financing,
particularly in the regional area, through
our efforts to engage in dialogue with
our customers, including the Ratings
Communication Service. We were also
actively engaged in ESG investment, and
invested 19.5 billion yen.

coronavirus, despite our efforts to provide

Reduction in greenhouse gas
emissions

Evaluation

Progress in fiscal 2019
500.0 billion yen

Investment and financing to

FINANCIAL SECTION

assets under custody from October 2019.

Energy efficiency was improved through the
renovation of the entire administrative center
within the Head Office undertaken so far. We
achieved our goal ahead of schedule, partly
due to a reduction in the emission factor for
electricity, the main form of energy used.

With awareness of the SDGs gradually
spreading, requests for lectures at economic
organizations, government agencies, and
events have increased. We also exceeded our
final target for the number of people due to
an increase in requests for financial literacy
courses at universities.

Our financial results were in line with our
10.0 billion yen or more

initial forecast, despite significant fluctuations
in the business environment toward the end
of the fiscal year.

of parent (consolidated)
2020
(Results)

2024
(Targets)

3.6 billion yen

3.0 billion yen
2.0 billion yen

Income from services for customers

Fees and commissions increased due to
growth in business matching commissions
and commissions from assets under custody,
and net income from services also increased.

2020
(Results)

2022
(Targets)

2024
(Targets)

Long-term benchmark challenges
Our ROE remained in the 3% range amidst the
5.0% or more

ROE (consolidated)

3.19%

continued challenging revenue environment.
We will work to restructure our business
model to achieve more efficient business
operations.

2020
(Results)

75.64%

2024
(Targets)

Less than 65%

OHR was high due to investments such as
the introduction of tablets, although we
are implementing measures to improve

OHR

productivity at our branches, which have
2020
(Results)

2024
(Targets)

produced some results.
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Taking on the Challenge of ESG Regional Financing

Dialogue - Promotion of ESG Regional
Financing and the Role of Regional
Financial Institutions
Mr. Masao

Seki

Senior Advisor to the Corporate Social Responsibility
Department of Sompo Japan Insurance Inc.
Non-tenured Professor at Meiji University

Shojiro Takahashi
President of The Shiga Bank, Ltd.

34

Principles for Responsible Banking
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Aiming for a Sustainable Society with a
Virtuous Circle Propelling the Economy,
Environment and Society

38

Environmental Management
— Protecting the Global Environment through the Circulation
of Money —
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Dialogue - Promotion of ESG Regional Financing and the Role of Regional Financial Institutions

Considering solutions to regional issues
from the perspective of social impact

Mr. Masao Seki

Senior Advisor to the Corporate Social
Responsibility Department of Sompo
Japan Insurance Inc.
Non-tenured Professor at Meiji University

Shojiro Takahashi

President of The
Shiga Bank, Ltd.

In response to the challenges of a declining population and climate change, financial institutions are being required to create a new rationale for
their investments and financing, adding environmental and social impact to their traditional risk-return perspective. Against this backdrop, the
promotion of ESG regional financing is attracting expectations that it will lead to the creation of a sustainable society, which is the goal of the
SDGs, and that ESG regional financing would become a new business model for regional financial institutions.
Mr. Masao Seki, Senior Advisor to the Corporate Social Responsibility Department of Sompo Japan Insurance Inc. and non-tenured Professor at
Meiji University, is an expert representing Japanese industry on the ISO 26000 social responsibility (SR) standard, and he has been involved in the
development of international norms and working on the dissemination of SDGs to industry. He joined us for an online interview with the Bank’s
President Shojiro Takahashi on the topic of the promotion of ESG regional financing and the role of regional financial institutions.
Takahashi: Thank you for joining us today. Mr. Seki, you have been
involved in CSR for a long time and have served as a committee
member of various ministries and agencies on environment and social
responsibility, and led the revision of KEIDANREN (Japan Business
Federation)’s Charter of Corporate Behavior to incorporate the SDGs in
2017. While many companies are already aware of the importance of the
SDGs, could you tell me about the background behind the revision of
the charter?
Seki: There are three main reasons behind the revision: the SDGs, the Paris
Agreement, and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.
The SDGs were adopted by the United Nations in 2015, and the Paris
Agreement was agreed upon internationally in the same year. Together
with the Guiding Principles endorsed by the United Nations in 2011,
these three principles formed the norms of corporate behavior that have
become a global consensus. The environment, in particular addressing
climate change; respect for human rights; and building an inclusive
society are the core goals of the SDGs, and the role of corporations in the
process has attracted much attention. That is why we have decided to
incorporate these new norms in the Charter of Corporate Behavior. The
Charter has changed in response to global norms, and this has become
instilled in the purposes and values adopted by each company.

Takahashi: We became the first regional bank to make the SDGs
Declaration in November 2017. I believe that Lake Biwa was the most
important factor behind the Declaration. While Lake Biwa is notable
for its biodiversity and other environmental aspects, we should not
forget that it also has a considerable impact on our lives, including
the local economy and society. Lake Biwa has a great deal to do with
the local environment, economy, and society, as it has long been used
for transportation and drinking water for the Kinki region, in addition
to agriculture and fisheries. Also, the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy, a
management philosophy embraced by merchants in the Omi region
of central Japan that is said to be the origin of the Japanese version
of CSR, has been rooted in the local business community. Against this
historical and cultural backdrop, the Bank has been able to implement
environmental management, which incorporates the environment in its
management, in advance of other banks. Because we felt that our efforts
were in line with the worldview that the SDGs aim to achieve, we made
the SDGs Declaration. The Declaration links the SDGs to corporate action
and aims to realize a sustainable society by achieving a balance between
addressing issues facing society and achieving economic growth.
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Considering solutions to regional issues from the perspective of social impact
Seki: I really empathize with what you have just said, Mr. Takahashi.
CSR is the foundation of the SDGs for a company. While there are cases
of companies simply tying the current business to the SDGs with no
foundation for CSR and without changes in substance, your bank is
taking a contrary approach.
Sompo Japan Insurance has been addressing global environmental
issues since the early 1990s. The top management at the time decided
to take the initiative in addressing the increasing incidence of largescale natural disasters and climate change to alert society as an
insurance company. Our company established the Environmental Risk
Management Office in 1992 and has been consistently working on
environmental issues ever since. Activities will not last unless the top
management demonstrates leadership and gets all the employees
involved. The important point is to get employees to proactively engage
in such activities.
In addition, our
company developed an
eco-fund in 1999, which
has been called the first
year of Socially Responsible
Investment (SRI) in Japan,
and our company was also
among the first to produce
environmental and
sustainability reports. In
response to the SDGs, from
2015 to 2016, our company
held stakeholder meetings
16 times with governments,
municipalities, NPOs, and
consumer representatives
to exchange opinions
and review priority issues.
Currently, our company’s
Director, Chairman Masaya
Futamiya serves as Chair
of KEIDANREN Committee on Responsible Business Conduct & SDGs
Promotion, and he is actively working to promote the SDGs in industry.
Takahashi: In March of this year, the second ESG Finance High Level
Panel was held, and there was a lot of discussion about mainstreaming
ESG finance with an emphasis on the environment, society, and
corporate governance. What are your thoughts on the importance of
ESG finance and the role that it plays in Japan?
Seki: Although ESG finance has become a current trend, it was
originally a niche investment method. While it was initially called Socially
Responsible Investment, the name has been changed to ESG, as the
United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI) has
been promoting the Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI). As part
of the Abenomics policy in Japan, both investors and companies are
being called on to improve corporate value over the medium to long
term, and sustainability has now become a topic of dialogue. Underlying
this is the recognition that our society needs to change significantly
because it is not sustainable. The SDGs have become common
knowledge around the world, and the role of companies, investors, and
financial institutions is becoming essential for transformation over the
long term.
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Takahashi: The practice of ESG finance has been encouraged by global
trends, such as the launch of the Principles for Sustainable Insurance
(PSI) in 2012 and the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB) in 2019
following the PRI in 2006.
Seki: In March 2020, the KEIDANREN, the Government Pension
Investment Fund (GPIF), and the University of Tokyo published a joint
research report titled “Promoting ESG investments, creating Society 5.0,
and achieving the SDGs.” The aim is to create synergies between industry
and investors to achieve the SDGs. The report points out that in addition
to making the world a better place, approximately 250 trillion yen of
investment opportunities will be generated for society as a whole. The
report also makes recommendations on the policy environment, and
I think this is the direction that the public and private sectors in Japan
should be taking today. In April 2020, the Ministry of the Environment
also prepared a guidebook called the ESG Regional Finance Practice
Guide. Attention is shifting from mere talk of the importance of ESG
finance as a philosophy to the concrete details of implementation.
Takahashi: We became the first regional bank to sign the PRB in
February 2020. We began discussing how we should tackle our core
business as a regional financial institution in the midst of a challenging
business environment with prolonged negative interest rates and
a shrinking population, when we developed our 7th Medium-Term
Business Plan that was started in April 2019. We decided that creating
and reconciling the twin imperatives of economic value and social value
would lead to the development of regional communities. We believe
that ESG finance will play a particularly important role in this regard.
As a regional financial institution, there will be no growth for us
without the growth of the community. While the function of a financial
intermediary is our basic role, it is important for us to help solve a variety
of problems that our customers face and to link this to our business
from the perspective of regional sustainability. In the 7th Medium-Term
Business Plan, we have set a goal of “evolving into a problem-solution type
financial information services provider,” and one of our specific initiatives
to this end is ESG finance. We also aim to promote initiatives that take into
account social impact that leads to the resolution of social issues.
Seki: I think “problem-solution type” that you mentioned is the key word.
In PRB, we set goals on some items based on the constant awareness of
our impact on society. Social impact refers to the amount of change; in
other words, the amount of value that is created for society by solving
social problems.
Takahashi: While deposit and loan interest margins from traditional
financial intermediary services have been the mainstay of earnings
for banks up until now, we have recently been trying to increase the
proportion of service revenue. Many of our clients are SMEs, and we also
provide consulting services as part of our role as a problem-solution
type financial information services provider. In fact, one of our branches
provided free SDG consultation at the request of one of our client
companies. In the course of our sales activities, we found that there were
many inquiries and needs related to the SDGs. Currently, we are engaged
in about 50 projects as business consultations for a fee as we work to
improve the content of these services.
In one such project, we attempted to evaluate the business potential
of a (hypothetical) waste-based thermal power generation business, by
comprehensively taking into account positive and negative impacts on
society and the environment, in addition to conventional credit decisions
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personal concern, rather than having their supervisors tell them what to
do. The aim is to take advantage of the strengths of customers at times
and ask them to support initiatives that lead to solutions to social issues.
Another point is that because it is difficult for our SME customers to
engage in projects on their own, we believe it is necessary for us to make
proposals that include collaboration with players in the same industry
as well as those in other industries. A business association in which we
participate has invited leading social business experts and local students
to participate in discussing new businesses, and an organization
formed of representatives from Shiga Prefecture and the local business
community is working together to build new business models that will
help solve social issues.

on profitability and conservation. We would like to build on projects like
this to create a new rationale for investment and financing, which adds
social impact to the criteria of risk and return.
Seki: In measures to contain the spread of the novel coronavirus,
there have been some successes with the efforts made at the regional
level in Japan. A typical example of these is Osaka, a case which clearly
demonstrates that, in the end, regional communities are the main subjects
in solving problems. I would like to see the on-the-spot capability for
problem solving become one of Japan’s strengths by means such as your
bank creating new connections in the community through the consulting
for SMEs that you mentioned earlier, by proposing new partnerships, or
by getting deeply involved with customers and proposing ideas.
Takahashi: The coronavirus pandemic is wreaking havoc and raising
alarms about sustainability around the world. What are your thoughts on
the post-coronavirus world?
Seki: Some say that now is not the time for SDGs in light of these
difficult times. If we take the view that we will respond to the SDGs when
we have the capacity to do so, our only priority will be to respond to
the coronavirus in the short run. But I don’t think this is the right way to
look at this issue. The coronavirus outbreak has brought to light a variety
of social problems and revealed the weaknesses of society. Rather than
using stopgap measures to respond to these issues that we face, we
must take drastic measures from a long-term perspective to make the
post-coronavirus society more resilient. That is what the SDGs are all
about. The economy, the environment, and society as a whole must be
transformed into something that is more sustainable.
The term “green recovery” is frequently used these days, and this is a
stance of rethinking and rebuilding society in a major way rather than
restoring things to their original state. The new normal is not just about
etiquette in daily life such as leaving a two-meter gap between people,
but it is also about the need to rethink how people do business, how
people invest money, and the lifestyle of each individual.

Seki: From the perspective of achieving a sustainable society, the phrase
“bringing out the earnings power of the region” in your bank’s 2019
Integrated Report really resonated with me. Going forward, earning
revenue is still a really important concept. Moreover, in ESG finance, it is
important to think in terms of social impact. Impact creates innovation
in society, and that is where earnings power is generated, which leads
to the resolution of social issues. Your bank is beginning to put this into
practice in the regional community, and I really hope that you take such
efforts further.
In addition, I hope that you keep in mind the perspective of
backcasting that is described in the Integrated Report. Above all, I hope
that you will continue to demonstrate the foresight and leadership in the
role of a regional bank that you have demonstrated through your actions
as a pioneer. I look forward to seeing your bank put SDGs management
into practice and sets examples.
Takahashi: We recognize that it is important to incorporate social and
community contribution activities and environmental preservation
activities into our core business, if we are to continue them over the long
term. This is the true meaning of sustainability. I believe that trying to
maintain the status quo can be one of the biggest factors for the decline
of a company. When you take on a variety of challenges, you must be
prepared to fail. However, I believe that we will not be able to open up a
new world unless we allow ourselves failure that will lead to tomorrow.
Based on the encouragement and expectation you have given us, the
Bank will continue to take on various challenges and do its best to
achieve the SDGs targets. Thank you for joining us today. (June 5, 2020)

Takahashi: Because there will be significant changes from the
coronavirus outbreak, “corona-transformation with SDGs” is something
that I would really like to work on myself. However, while we have an
understanding of the principles of the SDGs, the organization as a whole
still faces challenges in terms of how to specifically incorporate the SDGs
in business through means such as ESG finance. Therefore, I have asked
all executives and employees to set specific goals for their own SDGs this
year. I asked them to think for themselves and to view these goals as a

SHIGA BANK REPORT 2020

33

Taking on the Challenge of ESG Regional Financing

Principles for Responsible Banking
Signed the Principles for Responsible Banking, a first for a regional bank
In February 2020, we signed the Principles for Responsible Banking

Going forward, we will strive to utilize the framework of the Principles

drafted by the United Nations Environment Programme Finance

for Responsible Banking to create an autonomous virtuous circle of

Initiative (*UNEP FI) and launched in September 2019, as the first for a

capital for social change and create a sustainable future for regional

regional bank.

communities together with our stakeholders.

The Principles for Responsible Banking provide a framework for banks
to take a leading role and responsibility as a financial intermediary
and set out business strategies in line with social goals such as the

Image of spreading effects of social impact

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and the Paris Agreement, under

Making society better
through social impact

the recognition that sustainable social prosperity is the key to the
development of the banking industry. Signatory banks are required to
set their own strategies and targets, work together with their customers

Regional communities

Customers

and stakeholders, and disclose their activities in a transparent manner so
as to reduce the negative impact of their activities on the environment
and society while increasing the positive impact.
Based on the recognition that “the Bank’s development is
unattainable without the development of the region,” we are committed
Investment and
financing in areas
that have an
impact

to environmental management that protects the global environment
through the circulation of money, and we have been certified as an
Eco-First Enterprise by the Ministry of the Environment. In addition,

Wanting to make
society better

we became the first commercial bank to sign the UNEP FI in 2001
and the first regional bank to issue the Shigagin SDGs Declaration in

Banks

2017, and we have been a leader in our industry in demonstrating our
commitment to solving regional social issues through such efforts.

The United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI)
UNEP FI was established in 1992 by the United Nations Environment Programme, a UN
auxiliary organization that was formed in 1972. It is a partnership of more than 200 financial
institutions around the world that is working to transform into financial systems integrating
economic development with ESG (environmental, social, and governance) considerations.
Currently, there are 14 participating institutions in Japan, and in 2001, the Bank became the
first commercial bank in Japan to become a signatory.

Six principles of Principles for Responsible Banking
The Shiga Bank is committed to the following principles set forth in the Principles for Responsible Banking.

Principle 1. Alignment

Principle 4. Stakeholders

We will align our business strategy to be consistent with

We will proactively and responsibly consult, engage and

and contribute to individuals’ needs and society’s goals,

partner with relevant stakeholders to achieve society’s

as expressed in the Sustainable Development Goals

goals.

(SDGs), the Paris Agreement, and relevant national and
regional frameworks.

Principle 2. Impact and Target Setting

Principle 5. Governance and Culture

We will continuously increase our positive impacts while

We will implement our commitment to these Principles

reducing the negative impacts on, and managing the

through effective governance and a culture of

risks to, people and environment resulting from our

responsible banking.

activities, products and services. To this end, we will
set and publish targets where we can have the most
significant impacts.

Principle 3. Clients and Customers

Principle 6. Transparency and Accountability

We will work responsibly with our clients and our

We will periodically review our individual and collective

customers to encourage sustainable practices and

implementation of these Principles and be transparent

enable economic activities that create shared prosperity
for current and future generations.
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about and accountable for our positive and negative
impacts and our contribution to society’s goals.
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Steps towards implementation for Principles for Responsible Banking
The Principles for Responsible Banking require disclosure of progress

and implement targets, and achieve accountability within four years.

on the Principles. Specifically, signatories are required to publish the

The first disclosure will be made in the 2021 Integrated Report.

first report and self-assessment of the Principles within 18 months of
signing, and annually thereafter, and to conduct an impact analysis, set

STEP

01

STEP

Going forward, the Bank will follow the steps outlined below to
disclose the status of its initiatives.

02

Analysis of the Bank’s impact

Set a minimum of two targets

on society (which areas it can

for areas of impact. Develop

have the greatest impact on)

and implement strategies to

STEP

03

Conduct a self-assessment of
analysis, target setting and
implementation, and conduct
disclosure with third-party
assurance.

achieve these targets.

Conduct
disclosure
annually
thereafter.

Towards putting the principles into practice -Adopted in the ESG Regional Finance Promotion Program of the Ministry of the EnvironmentThe Bank applied for and was adopted by the fiscal 2020 ESG Regional
Finance Promotion Program of the Ministry of the Environment. This
initiative invited applications from supported institutions (regional
financial institutions) to participate in a program to promote ESG finance
in the region, in order to promote ESG finance that has a positive
environmental and social impact, improves regional sustainability, and
contributes to the creation of a regional circular and ecological sphere.
For this program, we used the case of construction of an incinerator
with a waste power generation facility to address the growing plastic

waste problem in Japan. We examined the financing decision process in
consideration of ESG factors in business assessments and studied risks
and opportunities, as well as methods for assessing regional impact.
Going forward, we will continue to study methods for measuring
social impact, which will be reflected in the self-assessment of credit
ratings by the credit supervision department, the development of new
ESG-related products and services, and human resource development.

Details of initiatives in the ESG Regional Finance Promotion Program

Preparations in
advance

Project overview diagram
Incinerator construction and waste power generation project

Financial
institution

(Parent company)

Investor

Interview
Conduct interviews with affiliated

Group company
Financing
Investment

Gaining an
understanding of issues

Collateral

Power sales

Plant manufacturer
SPC

Commission of maintenance
and management services

(special purpose

(maintenance fees)

company)
Receiving
(sales)

Waste disposing
company

companies (group companies) that

Investment
Operation

Power buyer
company

Take time to gain an understanding
on unfamiliar areas such as energy
usage fees, CO2 emissions, distribution
and content of industrial waste, and
global environmental issues

Commission of disposal
(disposal fees)

are suppliers of raw materials for the
project

Calculate CO2 emissions from the

Sharing issues

project while confirming the method
with the Ministry of the Environment

Examination of
support

Consult with an expert if unsure about
how to consider the quantifiable and

Final disposal site
Leverage the
processing
power of the group

non-quantifiable impacts as a whole

Horizontal expansion

when looking at environmental impacts
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Aiming for a Sustainable Society with a Virtuous Circle Propelling the Economy, Environment and Society
ESG regional financing
Currently, initiatives related to ESG/SDGs are being promoted as a global
trend, and a similar movement is growing in Japan as well. ESG/SDGs
are important factors that must be taken into account for humanity to
be sustainable, and all stakeholders, including companies, which are the
main economic players, are being called on to make bold behavioral
changes in response to ESG/SDGs. Another way of looking at this is that
companies that do not consider ESG/SDGs issues will be exposed to
downside risk, and that companies that do address ESG/SDGs will be
able to capture new business opportunities and increase their corporate
value.
Against this backdrop, the Bank is committed to deepening its
existing environmental management initiatives, and in November 2017,

the Bank issued the Shigagin SDGs Declaration, the first for a Japanese
regional bank.
In addition to identifying priority issues (Shiga Bank task-mapping),
we have also announced internally and externally that we will address
the following three objectives: (1) establishing the regional economy,
(2) sustainability of the global environment, and (3) training a diversified
workforce. Subsequently, in February 2019, we formulated the
Sustainability Vision that the Bank should aim to strive for over the long
term, and the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan, which integrates ESG/
SDGs into our business management.
The Bank will continue to actively promote ESG regional financing for
the sustainable development of customers and the regional community.

SDGs initiatives of the Shiga Bank —Integration of SDGs in management—

Sustainable society

The 7th Medium-Term
Business Plan
Shiga Bank task-mapping
Impact on social sustainability

Declining

Creating
Productivity Business
birthrate and
population
new industry Improvement succession aging
Depopulation
Biodiversity

Decarbonization
Renewable energy

Climate
change

Efficient use
of local
resources

Water
preservation
in Lake Biwa

Health

Work style
reform

Promotion
of diversity

Challenges to innovate the future
Sustainability Vision
(Long-term Vision)

Human
Disaster
resources
Compliance
prevention development

Impact for Shiga Bank Group

Increasing
Turning SDGs

productivity of the

into business

Evolving into a
problem-solution
type financial
information
services provider

Shigagin SDGs Declaration
Establishing the regional economy
Sustainability of the global environment

Shifting to

Training a diversified workforce

sustainable
earnings
structure

Designation of
priority issues
(Materiality)

regional
communities

Mindset-Work
reforms
(mindset reform
and work style
reform)

<Unchanging spirit>
The Bank’s motto: Be tough on ourselves,
kind to others and serve society
CSR Charter: Mutual prosperity with the regional communities,
all employees, and environment
<Vision for regional communities that the Bank should aim to materialize>

A society where everyone can define
their future and live happily
—Realization of sustainable society through co-creation with the community—

2017
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2019

Present

Future
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We established a CSR Committee headed by the President of the Bank
for cross-organizational discussion of medium- to long-term planning
and annual initiatives in CSR.
Organization Chart of Environmental Management
President

Internal Audit Team
Advisors in charge of products
Environment Management Officer

Advisors in charge of legal affairs

Broadening of the circle of stakeholders

The Bank’s CSR foundations
Society (outside)
New products and services
for potential customers

New
business

Customers

Social
issues

Existing products and
services for existing
customers
Market-in

Company
(inside)

Product-out

CSR Committee
ISO Office
Broadening of products and services

Various departments and offices

Associated companies

Environmental policy (established in October 1999 and revised in April 2010)
https://www.shigagin.com/csr/policy/index.html
Policies for biodiversity preservation (established in August 2010)
https://www.shigagin.com/csr/policy/hozen.html

Declared support for UNEP initiative
The Shiga Bank is the only regional bank in Japan that signed the United
Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI). Declaring
its support for various initiatives that integrate and promote economic
development and ESG (environment, society and governance), the Bank
is propelling activities in line with these initiatives.

Turning SDGs into business
The Shiga Bank believes that turning SDGs into business will drive
sustainable development of regional communities. As a problemsolution type financial information services provider, the Bank will
take measures to create a new, social issue-oriented business model
(outside-in).

TOPICS

Realizing sustainable farming operations in lettuce cultivation
AGTC JAPAN CO., LTD.

“Contributing to society on a Global scale by Technology
and Communication through Agriculture.” Named after such
inspiration, AGTC JAPAN CO., LTD. (Yasu City, hereinafter “AGTC”)
built a large-scale hydroponics facility in Yasu City, Shiga
Prefecture, and started growing and selling frilled lettuce this
spring. AGTC is contributing to the creation of new jobs in the
region by adopting a corporate management perspective that
aims for sustainable agriculture, and the Bank has assisted in
financing and developing sales channels.
The leaves of the frilled lettuce grown in the sunshine and
mineral-rich groundwater of the Suzuka Mountains are thick,
juicy, and crispy. Based on the hydroponic cultivation techniques
established on local farms, the system uses fertilizer produced by
a group company in China and has a low environmental impact
because the culture solution is completely circulated within the
facility.
In addition, the company is concerned about the decline in the
agricultural population in the region and is putting in practice

work styles for a workplace where everyone would want to work.
The company has established a code of conduct to provide safe
and secure agricultural products and to be a company that is
trusted by society. It is completely closed on weekends, and
part-time employees wear matching uniforms from well-known
brands while at work.
Although the site is vast, covering an area of about 40,000
square meters, the company has become part of the regional
community and it works with local residents to promote the
appeal of Japanese agriculture and agricultural products.
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Environmental management — Protecting the global environment through the circulation of money —
Positioning “environmental management,” which incorporates the environment in management, as the essence of banking management,
the Shiga Bank has engaged in “environmental finance” which involves the environment in finance, “eco-office creation” for conservation of
resources and energy, and “environmental volunteering” which aims for biodiversity preservation. The Bank has also taken pioneering measures
in formulating its own Environmental Policy and Environmental Targets to achieve harmonious coexistence with the environment as set out in
the CSR Charter (Management Principles). The social mission of our company, which is headquartered next to Lake Biwa, is to pursue CSR based
around environmental management, and work toward the realization of a sustainable society.

Example of “environmental management” cycle

The Bank has established its own unique “Shiga Bank Principles for Lake
Biwa (PLB)” to protect Lake Biwa and the global environment, and is
enlisting support for these principles.
In addition, the Bank rates customers who have agreed with the
principles of the PLB, using the “environmental rating (PLB rating)” based
on the Bank’s unique evaluation standards. This is used as a tool for
raising awareness of environmental management.
Customers who develop products or services that are practically
useful in preserving the environment or introduce energy-saving
facilities, etc. are eligible for funding under the “Principles for Lake Biwa
support fund (PLB Fund).” The Bank offers a discount of up to 0.5% on
annual interest rates on loans depending on degree of environmental
commitment shown in the rating.

The Bank operates “environmental management” as a cycle in
storytelling.
[Environmental
finance]

[Eco-office
creation]

“Environmental
management” cycle

[Environmental
volunteering]

Three principles in Shigagin Principles for Lake Biwa (PLB)
1) We compile standards for production, marketing and services that
are useful for environmental protection.
2) We aim to ensure environmentally-friendly corporate conduct
without missing business opportunities.
3) We reduce environmental risk and realize a sustainable regional
society.

“Environmental finance”

SDGs

United Nations Conference on Environment and
Development (Earth Summit) in June 1992
“Two-pillar” pact to preserve the global environment
United Nations Framework
United Nations Convention on
Convention on Climate Change
Biological Diversity

ESG investment
With the “investment and financing to promote Sustainable
Development” as a benchmark challenge under the 7th Medium-Term
Business Plan, we are working to realize a sustainable society through
our business operations. Proactively taking measures for ESG investment
and financing, which is an investment and financing methodology
focused on ESG (environment, society and governance), the Bank is
promoting sustainable finance (green finance and social finance).
Looking ahead, we shall continue to engage in investment and
financing that takes into account ESG considerations and SDGs while
striving to enhance the profitability of assets under management, based
on appropriate risk management.

Shigagin CSR Charter
(2007) Corporate philosophy of the Bank
Policies for biodiversity
preservation (August 2010)

Environmental policy (October 1999)

Shiga Bank Principles for Lake Biwa (PLB) Approval Certificate (Year 2005)
PLB rating BD
(Year 2009)

PLB rating
PLB Fund

PLB rating 80

(for subsidized interest payments
by the Ministry of Environment)

We are helping create a sustainable society through our role
as a financial institution, such as development and provision of
environmentally-responsive financial products and services.

Corporate credit ratings that take account of customer environmental awareness
Environmental awareness has been established as a “screening criterion”
in the Bank’s “corporate credit ratings.” Customers’ environmental
protection measures are reflected in these ratings.
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Proposal measures for improvement
of corporate value

Sharing of areas needing improvement
and other issues uncovered by rating process

Transaction policy

Transaction evaluations
● Transaction profitability
● Maintainability
● Familiarity
● Care for the environment

Selfassessment

Transaction policy matrix

Corporations and proprietors

Credit ratings

Quantitative evaluations
● Profitability
● Safety
● Growth potential, etc.

Investment examples
● JICA (Japan International Cooperation Agency) bonds
● Japan Student Services Organization Bonds
● Low Carbon Japanese Equity Fund
● Private placement type green bonds
● Sustainability loans

SDGs private placement bonds “Tsunagari”

Corporate credit ratings system
Qualitative evaluations
● Industry trends
● Business foundation
● Care for the environment, etc.

The Bank’s original environmental rating (PLB)

To commemorate the issuance of SDGs private placement bonds,
the Bank contributes 0.2% of the total amount of the bonds issued to
donate goods to schools and designated public-service promotion
corporations.
Structure of SDGs private placement bonds
Issuing company

Issuance of SDGs
private placement bonds
Shiga Bank

Donation
● Schools
● Designated publicservice promotion
corporations
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Environmental volunteering

The Bank is actively promoting resource and energy usage reduction in
accordance with the “Shigagin environmental policy.”

We are committed to protection of the environment and biodiversity
so as to pass on to future generations the bountiful blessings that the
global environment brings to us.

Power-saving measures

“Ikimonogatari” (Tales of Life) activities with a story

The “Shigagin Eco Style” summer campaign between May and October
and winter campaign between December and March are implemented,
while lighting is reduced and overtime is discouraged.
In fiscal 2016, we conducted repair works of the Headquarter
administrative center installing the latest energy-saving facility and
realized significant power usage reduction.

The Bank’s “Ikimonogatari” activities, unique to Shiga Prefecture, are all
about protecting the quality of water in Lake Biwa and protecting and
developing spawning grounds and reed beds to protect, nurture and
release Nigorobuna fish (carassius auratus grandoculis) and Wataka fish
(ischikauia), endangered species unique to the Lake, and to eliminate
invading alien fish species.

Recommending eco-commuting
In 2011, the Bank was certified for excellence in eco-commuting. The
Bank aims to raise awareness of eco-commuting in every employee, and
encourages them to shift to commutation modes of low environmental
impact such as trains, buses, bicycles, and walking.

Development of environment-conscious branches
We are committed to environmental protection and reduction
of greenhouse gas emission volumes through installation at new
branches of solar panels, solar street-lights, and LED lighting, as well as
implementation of rainwater harvesting and rooftop greening.
Ritto Branch was opened in 2015 as a “carbon-neutral store,” which
realize practically zero CO2 emissions. We aim to raise environmental
awareness among employees at our branches and the customers who
use them.

Planting reed
seedlings

Reed-cutting

“Ikimonogatari”
activities

Releasing Nigorobuna fish
(carassius auratus grandoculis)
and Wataka fish (ischikauia)

Elimination of foreign origin and fishing

Initiatives rooted in the community
We are proactively involved in regional activities to improve the
environmental awareness of employees, promote exchange among
different areas and strengthen our links with the community.

Carbon-neutral store (Ritto Branch)

Practicing SDGs management with ISO 14001
We have been operating our own environmental management system
for 20 years since we received certification in 2000.
We are solving social issues through our core business by
incorporating the SDGs into the PDCA cycle that we have developed
over the years and linking it with our Medium-Term Business Plan.

Large-scale campaign to eliminate ludwigia
stipulacea (water plant)

Harie-okawa River Cleanup

Project to bring fish life into rice paddies

Activities to support the creation of forests

The 7th
Medium-Term
Business Plan

JQA-EM0777
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Measures for Climate Change/Global Warming
Against the backdrop of a sense of urgency regarding the global environment and social issues around the world, it is necessary to make a
fundamental shift from a social and economic structure that relies on fossil resources in order to address climate change risks, and for countries
and companies to make bold and strategic efforts to realize the SDGs. In particular, affecting not only our economic activities but also daily life,
recent climate change and other changes in the global environment have already become a common, significant issue to humanity.
Recognizing climate change as one of the most important management issues, the Bank will contribute to the creation of a sustainable
society by establishing a “virtuous circle propelling the economy, environment and society” through fulfilling its role as a financial institution.
The Bank supports the purpose of the TCFD* Proposal, and it will take measures to sophisticate its information disclosure to meet
recommendations by the TCFD.
* An abbreviation for Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, which was established by the Financial Stability Board (FSB) in April 2015. It calls for companies’ climate-related impact
disclosures on a voluntary basis upon providing financial reporting.

Initiatives for Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
Governance
The Shiga Bank established a CSR Committee chaired by the President,
which meets three times a year with Management Meeting members,
General Managers of each department and office, and presidents
of associated companies as Committee members. The Committee
deliberates and decides on priority issues related to CSR of the Group,
and conducts investigations and research on climate change and other
environment-related issues.
Specific activities of the Committee include determination of the
Shigagin SDGs Declaration and its Materiality, formulation of the
Sustainability Vision under the 7th Medium-term Business Plan, and
discussion on how to respond to the TCFD.
Looking ahead, as a response to climate change, the Bank will
consider regular reporting on measures and response concerning
climate change to the Management Meeting and the Board of Directors.
Specifically, through promoting environmental finance and
establishing a recycling-oriented society (circular economy), the
Bank will strive for the transition to a low carbon society with
low greenhouse gas emissions, and ultimately a realization of a
decarbonized society. In addition, we will support businesses that
contribute to mitigating climate change such as renewable energy
and green projects, corporate investments toward enhancing energy
efficiency and infrastructure development, as well as creation of
climate change-resilient regions and establishment of sustainable
lifestyles.
Going forward, we will also analyze multiple scenarios concerning
risks and opportunities in climate change.

Risk management
Strategy
While designating priority issues to be tackled by the Bank
(Materiality), we formulated the Sustainability Vision (Long-term
Vision) aiming for a sustainable society. Based on the Sustainability
Vision, the 7th Medium-term Business Plan that started in April 2019
set forth “Sustainability Design Company” as our new vision and
“Define a future and realize a dream” as our main theme. We uphold
evolving into a problem-solution type financial information services
provider that turns SDGs into business and transforms society
through its businesses.
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The Bank recognizes that physical risks and transition risks stemming
from climate change will deeply affect the Bank’s operation,
strategy and financial planning. We will therefore establish systems
for managing such risks in a framework of comprehensive risk
management.

Indicators and targets
The Bank has stipulated environmental impact reduction goals as
follows.
(Scope 1 and Scope 2 standards)
● Long-term indicator (by March 31, 2030):
Reduce CO2 emissions by at least 30% (compared to fiscal 2013)
● Medium-term indicator (by March 31, 2024):
Reduce CO2 emissions by 25% (compared to fiscal 2013)

TOP MESSAGE
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POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

Project finance related to renewable energy
The Bank is promoting and facilitating the use of renewable energy
sources such as solar power and biomass power generation through
project finance.
The Bank engaged in five renewable energy-related finance projects
totaling 7.4 billion yen in fiscal 2019. The projects generated a total of
512 GWh of electricity for the year, resulting in an annual CO2 reduction
of 230 thousand t-CO2*.
* The annual reduction is calculated by the Bank by multiplying the annual power generation
volume (planned value) by the emission factor by electric utility company for system power at
project locations.

Example 2: Solar power generation project
● Name of project: JRE Takashima Solar Power Project
● Business entity: GK JRE Takashima (Minato-ku, Tokyo)
● Location: Takashima City, Shiga Prefecture
● Annual power generation: approximately 14.2 million kWh
● Arranger: The Hyakugo Bank, Ltd.
● Start of power generation: May 2020

Example 1: Biomass power generation project
● Name of project: Kamisu Biomass Power Project
● Business entity: GK JRE Kamisu Biomass Hatsuden (Minato-ku, Tokyo)
● Location: Kamisu City, Ibaraki Prefecture
● Annual power generation: 350 million kWh
● Arranger: Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
● Start of power generation: July 2023 (planned)
JRE Takashima Solar Power Project

Underwriting private placement type green bonds (GB)
The Bank has underwritten private placement type green bonds
worth 60 million yen issued by Konan Ultra Power Co., Ltd., an
electric power company in the region.
This is the second underwriting following the 2019 issue, for a
total amount of 170 million yen.

The funds raised by the bonds were allocated to energy-saving
equipment at elementary schools in Konan City and Ryuo-cho.
The Bank will continue to actively pursue the underwriting of
private placement type green bonds.

External review agency
❷ Issuance of GB

❶ External review

GB issuer

Green bonds (GB)

Shiga Bank

❸ Payment of GB issuance allotment
(underwriting GB)

Konan
Ultra Power
Co., Ltd.

❺ Investment

❹ Management
of the funds

Green project

❻ Revenue

❼ Reporting

❽ Interest payment and redemption
Photo provided by Konan Ultra Power Co., Ltd.
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POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

Challenge to Regional Revitalization
Drawing out the “earnings power” in the region

46

Strategies for Corporate Customers
Putting into practice problem-solution type financial
information services to connect with the region

48

Strategies for Individual Customers
Customer-first “Goal-based support”

50

Global Support
Supporting global development of regional business

51

Strengthening of Market Investment
Capabilities
Aiming for maximization of total return

52

Optimization of Management
Resources
Catering to diversifying needs with “branch reforms” and
“channel strategy”

54

Strengthening of ICT Infrastructure
Achieve greater convenience through responding to
digitization

56

Alliance Strategy
Strengthening collaboration nationally and regionally

Frilled lettuce cultivation by AGTC JAPAN CO., LTD. (Yasu City) (see Page 37)
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Challenge to Regional Revitalization

Drawing out the “earnings power” in the region
Sustainability Design Company – Achieving “sustainable regional revitalization”
As a mission of a regional financial institution, the Bank is working
toward creation of a recycling-oriented society and supporting and
fostering new businesses, and also supporting branding of local
resources deeply rooted in the regions, such as cultures, history and
industries, while supporting their promotion so as to revitalize regional
economies.
With the belief that “the growth of the Bank is unattainable without
the growth of the region,” we are working to revitalize the region by
cooperating and collaborating with diverse regional actors, aiming to
further contribute to regional economies.

Support for
startups and
business creation

Regional trading
company concept

Increasing the
regional brand
attractiveness

Regional
revitalization

Public-private/
industry-academiagovernmentfinance partnerships

Increasing the regional brand attractiveness

Rediscover Buried Local Resources and
Introduce Them to Areas outside the Region
Shiga Prefecture is home to unique cultures thanks to the rich natural
environment that Lake Biwa provides. The Bank aims to enhance the
branding of the region in a wide range of fields, such as manufacturing,
food, tourism and town development.
In addition to creating attractive things in Shiga Prefecture, we are
putting into practice the communication to accurately convey their
attractiveness in an effort to contribute to the creation of added value
in the region.
Specific initiatives
● Promotion and expansion of marketing channels:
Crowdfunding, participation in trade shows, utilization of
media
● Branding:
Regional trading company project, promotion of industryacademia-government-finance partnerships, support for
sports in the region

Increasing
the regional
attractiveness

GAP(*), Sixth-Sector Industrialization, trade shows, crowdfunding,
utilization of media, support for sports in the region, etc.

Support branding and promotion

Agriculture, livestock
and fishery products

Tourism

Sports

* GAP (Good Agricultural Practice)
Continuous improvement activities through accurate implementation,
recordkeeping, inspection, and evaluation of each process in agricultural production,
in accordance with each inspection item pursuant to applicable laws and regulations
required for agricultural production activities.

Products

Culture

and more

Regional trading company project

Creating New Businesses through Cooperation
with Business Operators
~ Bringing Local Resources to New Markets ~

Market outside
the region

As a “Sustainability Design Company,” the Bank launched the regional
trading company project to create new businesses with business

Overseas market

operators by utilizing the region’s abundant attractive products,
sophisticated technology and historic cultural heritage.
Utilizing the network and know-how of a regional financial institution,
we have embarked on a project to revitalize tourism resources and
expand the sales channels for regional resources. We are also working
on human resource and digitization support for our customers.
We are promoting projects to help solve regional issues, realize the
dreams of our customers and realize a sustainable society.
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Expand business into a wide range of markets

Possible business contents
1) Exploration of local products and other resources, marketing
and sales support
2) Exploration of tourism resources, development of tourism
products and tourism promotion support
3) Support for securing human resources, bringing human
resources back to the region
4) Support for adopting IT in the region and among customers
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Support for Business Creation and Development of New Businesses

Sowing Seeds of New Businesses,
Cultivating their Buds,
and Making Flowers Bloom

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

Supporting local problem-solving businesses
NPO Tsudoi
For the 2019 Shigagin Nonohana Prize, we presented the

As a regional financial institution, we are working to support and foster
new businesses (Nonohana) and are providing a wide range of support
to individuals (including students) who want to start business, venture
companies and enterprises planning to relaunch business.

Supporting Sponsor Prize to a new business that utilizes
abandoned terraced rice fields to cultivate lotus. We provide a
wide range of support, including for crowdfunding and branding.

Saturday School for Entrepreneurship / Shigagin Nonohana Prize
Nonohana Support Group
New Business Support Loan
Crowdfunding

Support for branding and industryacademia-government-finance partnerships
Regional Brand Strategy Forum
In October 2019 and February 2020, Shiga University, Shiga Prefecture
and the Bank jointly held the Regional Brand Strategy Forum. We
are striving to vitalize the regional economy by branding regional
products and supporting the expansion of sales channels.

Support for creation of new businesses

Initiatives through public-private partnerships and
industry-academia-government-finance partnerships

Demonstrate Superb Capabilities via
Regional Partnerships
Via regional partnerships, we link local resources and funds, and create
a virtuous circle propelling the regional economy, thereby aiming to
create innovation in the region through economic revitalization.
Industry
● Utilization of grants
● Utilization of public
property
● Support industryacademia-governmentfinance partnerships
● Publicize and promote
PPP/PFI

Bringing Omi Tea to the World
Honey Coffee., Ltd. + Regional trading company project

Academia

Government

Finance
* PPP (Public Private Partnership)
A method to offer public services through
partnership between governments and private companies.
* PFI (Private Finance Initiative)
A new method used for construction, maintenance and operation of public facilities
that leverages the funds, managing capabilities and technical expertise of private
companies.

STAK EH O LDERS’

VO I C E

Mr. Keisuke Nakajima
Director General
Honey Coffee., Ltd.

Value to be
provided

The regional trading company project has collaborated with Honey
Coffee., Ltd., which possesses a high level of expertise in producing
extracts. We are developing portion capsules utilizing the famous
Omi Tea and attempting to
establish overseas sales channels.
By pioneering markets around the
world with new products, we aim
to enhance the brand value of the
locality and increase the earnings of
the region.

Our company moved its production base to Shiga four years ago. Since then, we have
wanted to make products using Shiga’s local ingredients, and we started collaborating with
the Shiga Bank’s regional trading company project.
The material we selected was Omi Tea, which is one of Shiga’s specialty products with a
long history. We were able to connect with commercial farmers and develop the product
with an eye toward overseas sales channels.
Going forward, we would like to challenge ourselves not only with Omi Tea, but also with
various ingredients, in order to convey to the world the appeal of the rich nature and beauty
Shiga possesses as well.

● Support branding of cultures, history and industry deeply rooted in the region, as well as their promotion.
● Help resolve issues facing the region and businesses and enhance added value in tandem with customers.
● Support new business creation intended to break out of traditional businesses.
● Strengthen industry-academia-government-finance partnerships, contribute to revitalization of the regional economy and
support innovation in the regional economy.
SHIGA BANK REPORT 2020
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Strategies for Corporate Customers

Putting into practice problem-solution type financial information
services to connect with the region
In our corporate business strategy, the vision we are aiming for is sustainable development of the region through providing problem-solution
type financial information services. Sharing dreams (goals) of the communities and customers, we will engage in sales promotion to realize
their dreams (goal-based support). Bringing out the earnings power of the region and supporting the value improvement of customers, we will
deliver “delight” that goes beyond “satisfaction.”

Consulting

Identify issues and specify the vision

Analyze current status and study problem solving technique

Customers’ dream
Various management issues
● Business succession:

absence of successors

● Growth strategy:

revenue improvement

● Productivity improvement:

adoption of IT

● Human resources
development:

securing workforce

● Development of sales channels
● New business:

investment plan

● Overseas development
● Business rehabilitation
and more

Problem solving
Support implementation of problem solving technique

Market-in

Financial information services
● Loans
Syndicated loan
Growth support financing with
covenants
SDGs private placement bond
Foreign currency denominated loan
● Deposit and investment trust
Insurance, JGBs, deposits in
foreign currencies
● Trusts
● Human resources recruitment
● Defined contribution plan
● Settlement function
● Foreign exchange
● Corporate insurance,
operating lease
● M&A
● Business matching
● Funds
● IT business support
● BCP support
and more

Permanent growth of the region, customers and the Bank

Diagram of goal-based support for corporate customers

Supporting dreams
Japan is entering a depopulation phase, and the region in which
the Bank operates is no exception. Also one of the serious issues is
discontinuance of business due to labor shortages and absence of
successors caused by depopulation and demographic changes. In
regional economies that are anticipated to be shrinking over the
mid-term, conventional ideas or rehashing the past will not open up
a sustainable future for the regions. To promote client growth and
create sustainable regional economies, regional financial institutions

must lead the innovations themselves through further fulfilling their
financial intermediary functions and providing solutions. In addition,
the management issues faced by our customers are diverse, and
compassionate support for each stage of corporate development is
required. The Bank will endeavor to become familiar with its customers
through detailed consulting, find clues for solving problems, and
wholeheartedly support its customers toward achieving their dreams.

Demonstrating consulting functions and providing diversified methods of financing
New Business Support Loan
Shigagin Growth Strategy Fund,
etc.

Business matching
Private placement bonds,
syndicated loan, etc.
Business succession,
asset succession, and M&A
Large-scale subsidies, etc.

Crowdfunding
Shigagin Hometown Investment
Fund, etc.

Startup
period
Business
launch

1,293 customers
¥88.1 billion

Growth
period
1,728 customers
¥235.8 billion

Period of
operational
stability

11,982 customers
¥1,650.8 billion

Period of
recession
751 customers
¥81.0 billion

Relaunch
stage
1,144 customers
¥107.6 billion
Finance
benchmark

Number of borrowers and balance of loans, by stage of corporate development (as of March 2020)
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POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

Solutions tailored to corporate development stages
The Bank offers optimal solutions by combining consulting with a
wide range of financing options corresponding to the development
stages of its customers, unexpected disasters, changes in the economic
environment and others. Such support includes startup support, growth
support including sales channel development, providing solutions to

various management issues, smooth business succession, and BCP
support in preparation of disasters.
The Bank aims to realize a sustainable regional economy by
performing both financial intermediary functions and consulting.

Examples of problem solving methods
■ Supporting customers’ BCP

■ Resolving management issues related to human resources

We support the development of business continuity plans (BCP),
which are necessary for maintaining business continuity in preparation
for unexpected disasters, such as an earthquake or the spread of a
virus infection. In addition, we will provide quick and flexible financing
by applying BCP support loans (disaster countermeasure plans) in the
event of a disaster.

In order to strengthen support for human resources, one of the most
important management issues for our customers, the Bank’s Group
company The Shigagin Economic & Cultural Center Co., Ltd. has
obtained a license for fee-charging employment placement business,
and started its human resource placement business in April 2020. In
addition, it has been selected as an indirectly subsidized business in
the Pioneering Human Resource Matching Project implemented by the
Japanese Cabinet Office, which matches high-level executive personnel
and specialized human resources upon analyzing the human resource
needs of the customers.
Moreover, the Bank assists customers with no successors through
support for third-party succession utilizing M&A or succession by
employees, and assists customers to be succeeded by their relatives
through consulting to provide support for smooth business succession
and successor training.
At the same time, we are deploying IT business support to help
our customers incorporate IT tools and other tools to improve their
productivity.

■ Supporting new value creation
Through a wide range of financing options, the provision of various
information, and consulting, we support the new business development
of our customers, including startup, venture-type business succession,
and management innovation.
The New Business Support Loan (SDGs Plan) and SDGs private
placement bonds contribute to the realization of a sustainable regional
society through finance. We are also expanding loans to help our
customers solve their problems based on business assessments, such as
growth support financing with covenants.
In addition to financial aspects, we also support the formulation of
business strategies for the purpose of having our customers engage in
new value creation from the perspective of SDGs within their business
activities. Many customers have announced the challenges they have
decided to take on in the form of SDGs Declarations.

Management issues /
human resource needs

Collaboration

Customers
Problem solving support
Placement of human resources

STAK EH O LDERS’

VO I C E

Yamazaki Gravel Inc.

The Shiga Bank Group

Human resources recruitment
companies, etc.

We are committed to achieving the well-being of our employees and the protection of the
global environment, with the recycling of contaminated soil and industrial waste at the core
of our business. In recent years, we have felt that clearer goals and efforts are required as the
importance of the SDGs has been advocated. Our company received an SDGs consulting
proposal from the Shiga Bank and, being supported by the Bank in exploring the relationship
between our business and the SDGs, decided to announce an SDGs Declaration as well as KPIs.
By quantifying our efforts aimed at the SDGs, we are becoming more aware of our role in society.
Through our business, we aim to build a recycling-based society which can coexist with nature.

● Support sustainable development of the region and bring out the appeal of the region.

Value to be
provided

● Stay closer to customers’ dreams and resolve management issues to contribute to improvement in corporate value.
● Turn SDGs into business and aid customers in building new business models.
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Strategies for Individual Customers

Customer-first “Goal-based support”
Life-spans of over 100 years are giving rise to issues such as asset formation planning in response to longevity and asset management after retirement.
In addition, as the shift “from savings to asset formation” has struggled to make progress, the financial assets of Japanese households have not grown
for the past 20 years. Based on the “policy for customer-first business operation,” the Bank strives for the asset formation of customers.

Customers’ long-term and stable asset
formation followed by corporate value
improvement of the Bank

Customer-first business operation
Aiming for contributing to the asset formation of customers, the Bank
formulated a “policy for customer-first business operation” and will
strengthen its initiatives that put customers first. Also, we regularly
disclose the implementation status to see how deep our initiatives took
hold, thereby striving for better business operations.

The business model we pursue under the strategies for individual
customers is expressed as “contributing to increasing benefit and assets
of customers for the long-term with thorough implementation of
customer-first business operations and problem solutions tailored to the
different life stages of customers (goal-based support),” and by doing so
we are working to achieve sustainable development of customers, the
region and the Bank.

Policy for customer-first business operation
1. Best act in the interests of customer
2. Appropriately manage conflicts of interest
3. Clarify fees and commissions
4. P
 rovide important information in an easy-to-understand

Thorough implementation of
customer-first business operations

manner

Problem solutions tailored to different life
stages of customers (goal-based support)

5. Provide products and services appropriate to each
customer
6. Appropriate framework to motivate all employees

Long-term customers’ benefit
Increase in customers’ assets

Achieve sustainable development of
customers, the region and the Bank

Support tailored to each customer’s stage of life
The following chart represents the change in the amount of financial assets according to the transition of life stages, with the amount of financial
assets on the vertical axis and age on the horizontal axis. After gaining employment, assets are built up despite outlays at such life events as marriage,
birth of a child, and home purchase, and the assets increase until retirement. For retiring generations, longer life-spans are expected to diversify
situations in terms of working, household composition and health. We therefore stay closer to each customer and provide support tailored to each
stage of their life.

Amount of financial assets

Diagram of financial assets and life events

Asset management
Asset formation

Nursing of
parents

Home purchase
Employment

Marriage

20s

30s

Retirement/
Employment

Inheriting
parents’ asset

Birth of a child

48

Management
and dissaving

40s

50s

Living alone/
Living together/Dependent

Home renovation/
Relocation

60s

70s

Healthy/
Need nursing care

Advancement

80s

Inheritance

90s

100s
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Asset formation
In order to enhance the financial literacy of customers in the region, we
are stepping up our activities for raising awareness of the need for asset
management through seminars and consultation at workplaces.
To promote “long-term investment, diversified investment, and
asset accumulation” for continuous asset formation from the working
generation, we are proactively proposing investment trusts and taxexempt programs such as NISA that are particularly effective for
customers’ asset formation. We will also improve customer convenience
by expanding indirect (non-face-to-face) channels.

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

● Changes in organizational structure aimed at deeper proposals
With the aim of achieving the balance of assets under custody
(investment trust + financial instruments intermediary) of ¥300.0
billion, which is a target for the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan,
the Bank newly established the SD (Sustainable Development)
Team in October 2019. The SD Team consists of AFCs (area
financial consultants), securities advisors and insurance advisors.
By further enhancing our consulting capabilities, we are now
able to provide financial information services more sophisticated
than ever before.
In addition, we entered into a business alliance agreement

Asset management

with SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. in December 2019 regarding

The Bank offers an abundant range of products including investment
trusts and life insurance products as well as serving as a financial
instruments intermediary. In order to cater to diversifying customer
needs, we will work to further broaden our product lineup.
To enable customers to operate asset management according to their
diversifying lifestyles and post-retirement plans, we provide support to
them from the goal-based perspective.

customer referral services to provide financial products and

Management and dissaving

● Next-generation financial literacy education

Longer life-spans call for the effective use of accumulated assets and
passing valuable assets on to the next generation. We cater to the
needs for inheritance, and help with smooth asset succession to the
next generation.
In addition to asset management, we strive to build a system that
allows multiple consultations to be made as a one-stop service with
regard to inheritance, asset succession, and effective use of real estate,
so as to offer accurate advice in line with the customers’ plans, based on
proposals from various angles.

services that utilize a wider product lineup than ever before.
Furthermore, having obtained a license for engagement in
trust business, from April 1, 2020, the Bank itself has been able
to handle trust business. We stay closer to customers who have
concerns about inheritance and asset succession, and provide
one-stop and responsible proposals and services.

Since fiscal 2019, we have been holding financial and economic
education seminars mainly at universities within the prefecture.
Through education about
money, we are working to
create an environment in
which the younger generation
can develop knowledge and
judgment regarding asset
formation.
Lecture for students at the Yokaichi School for the Disabled
Hiroyuki Ota, General Manager of Musa Branch

STA K EH O LDERS’

VO I C E

Miyuki Ota,
General Manager of Otsu
Ekimae Branch

Value to be
provided

Lecture for students at Shiga Junior College

In the lecture, I worked to convey to the students how the Bank’s motto, which is based on
the “Sampo yoshi” philosophy, a management philosophy embraced by Merchants in the Omi
region of central Japan, is a source of pride for officers and employees. I also tried to convey
in an easy-to-understand manner to the students the Bank’s vision to become a Sustainability
Design Company in the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan, based on my experience as a branch
manager. I received many questions in the chat, and I answered them based on some of my own
experiences in hopes that they would be helpful when students enter the workforce. I would like
to continue to provide students with opportunities to learn about the topic of finance from the
perspective of a banker in hopes that it will stimulate their interest.

● Support customers’ asset formation through implementation of customer-first business operations.
● Contribute to the development of regional economy through the flow of money by asset management.
● Provide solutions tailored to different life stages of customers based on goal-based support.
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Global Support

Supporting global development of regional business
With the global pandemic of the novel coronavirus, the need for international cooperation is once again being recognized. In addition, social and
economic connections continue to expand beyond national borders. For the sustainable development of the region, it is essential for the regional
economy to play an active role in solving the issues faced by the international community. In order to support the globalization of the regional
economy, the Bank has strengthened its ties with its overseas bases – the Hong Kong Branch, Shanghai Representative Office, and Bangkok
Representative Office – and will provide overseas business solutions to its customers.

Improvement of overseas consulting menu
Problem-solution type support strategies
Overseas businesses of our customers have expanded to broader
regions and sectors, leading to a wider variety of issues. The Bank will
solve problems of customers by further strengthening cooperation
with local governments, public organizations, and private companies
and improving overseas consulting functions, in addition to know-how
of overseas business support accumulated so far as an internationally
active bank.
As the only regional bank to participate in the “Africa B-to-B Needs
Match-making Seminar” held in Nairobi, Kenya in January 2020
(sponsored by the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry and the
Japan Business Council for Africa), we performed business matchmaking between our customers and African companies. Going forward,
we will continue to strengthen business development support in Africa
for our customers.

Providing financial intermediary functions
satisfying customer needs
Increase deposits and loans denominated in
foreign currencies

5 million U.S. dollars in financing for a Sustainability Linked Loan to the
world’s largest PET resin company in Thailand, Indorama Ventures. This
loan is structured so that the interest rate fluctuates depending on the
achievement of predetermined sustainability performance targets,
and reinforces the ESG initiatives of the lending company. While PET
resin is a 100% recyclable chemical material, the scale of its global
recycling remains at a low level. Indorama Ventures operates business
in 33 countries around the world, and has also focused on the PET resin
recycling business, aiming to significantly raise the level of PET recycling
by 2025. We hope that this loan will further motivate Indorama Ventures
in its ESG initiatives and result in reduction of plastic waste.

Development of global human resources and
expansion of network
Expanding our field further to wider Asia
The Bank has utilized global human resources such as persons who
worked at overseas locations and were dispatched to overseas training
programs. Furthermore, we will expand the dispatch areas to strengthen
human resource development across Asia as a whole. Last year, we
dispatched trainees to a consulting company in Hanoi, the capital of
Vietnam, which is growing rapidly. By augmenting know-how and
increasing partner institutions in the dispatch areas, we will expand our
network that can provide support for globalization of the region.

As the overseas business of our customers expands, the need for
funding denominated in foreign currencies is increasing. In order to
meet the needs of capital expenditures at overseas subsidiaries, we
provide financial methods in various currencies in collaboration with
the Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC) and our partner
banks in each country. Furthermore, by utilizing foreign currency
deposits and the “fund-provisioning measures to support strengthening
the foundations for economic growth (special rules for the U.S. dollar
lending arrangement)” implemented by the Bank of Japan, we provide
stable support for our customers’ U.S. dollar-denominated financing,
both domestically and overseas.
We also proactively support overseas companies that are working to
solve issues in the international community. In March 2020, we provided

STAK EH O LDERS’

VOICE

Mr. Shinichi Konoura
President and CEO

Sakae Industry Co., Ltd.

Value to be
provided
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We were considering expansion into Vietnam to improve our price competitiveness. We
consulted with the Shiga Bank, who provided us with hands-on support, from on-site inspections
to the establishment of a local subsidiary and subsequent operational support. Thanks to that,
we were able to start the business in Vietnam within seven months of my first trip. The overseas
support members are unique, and have a wealth of experience and knowledge. Above all, they
thoroughly practice support from a corporate perspective, and are reliable partners for our
overseas business.

● Provide know-how accumulated over many years in overseas business support
● Provide information sent from the Hong Kong Branch, Shanghai and Bangkok Representative Offices and overseas trainees
● Provide menus in cooperation with the Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC), Japan International Cooperation
Agency (JICA) and other organization
● Support for trade such as currency exchange risk hedging
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Strengthening of Market Investment Capabilities

Aiming for maximization of total return
As domestic interest rates are expected to remain ultra-low due to the Bank of Japan’s yield curve control policy, we are required to strengthen the
earnings structure for increasing non-interest income. To maximize earnings on a mid- to long-term basis, we will manage a sustainable portfolio
while strengthening ESG investments and credit investments, improving the market analysis ability and developing human resources who are able to
manage risk in the global market.

Maximization of revenues over the mid- to long-term

Pursuing sustainable, stable return
Management structure focusing on total return*1

Toward ensuring sustainable revenues

As ultra-low interest rates are expected to be prolonged with the
yield curve control policy, we will manage a sustainable portfolio by
maximizing total return.

Maximization of
revenues over the
mid- to long-term

*1. Total return = Realized gain or loss + Change in valuation gain or loss

Maximizing total return*2
Strengthening
ESG
investments

Strengthening
market analysis

Strengthening
credit
investments

Developing
human resources

Pursuing
sustainable
total return

Procuring
foreign currencies
stably
0

Change in valuation
gain or loss

Strengthening ESG investment

Realized gain/loss
Total return

Through ESG investment, we will contribute to development of
a sustainable society and ensure profitability from a long-term
perspective.

FY
X

Strengthening credit investment
We will expand investment targets in the global market and also make
investment proactively in new fields.

Strengthening the market analysis ability
We will aim to obtain capital gains by taking strategic positions based
on analysis including fundamentals and technical analyses.

FY
X+1

FY
X+2

FY
X+3

FY
X+4

*2. Excluding gain or loss on sales
regarding cross shareholdings
and increase/decrease in
valuation gain or loss

Multi-asset management*3 in tune with changes
in the external environment
With the risk appetite framework as a starting point, we review exposure
to yen bonds, foreign currency bonds, domestic/overseas shares, etc., as
needed in accordance with the market, aiming for investment returns
immune to the market environment.
*3. Multi-asset management: a diversified investment method that aims for stable
20000 returns in the long-term by changing asset allocation in response to
investment
20000
the market environment

Trends15000
in ratio of balance of securities

Developing human resources
We will establish a human resources development program to develop
human resources who are able to manage risk in the global market.

100%10000

Changing allocation
10000
according to
the environment

75%

5000

Procuring foreign currency stably

50%
0

Through stable procurement of foreign currency, we will control foreign
currency liquidity risk and support global investment, thereby ensuring
stable margins.

0

Investment trust, etc.

25%

Stocks

-5000

0%

Foreign currency bonds
FY

-10000 2015

FY
2016

FY
2017

FY
2018

FY
2019

Yen bonds

0

-10000

-15000
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Koji Kawaguchi
Executive Officer, General Manager of
Financial Markets & International Dept.

Due to the impact of the novel coronavirus, the world economy is wrapped in unprecedented
uncertainty. In such an
environment, how to raise the overall value of the securities portfolio
-20000
-20000
over the mid- to long-term is important. Moreover, it is necessary to stand prepared in order to
1500000
flexibly respond to changing circumstances. Meanwhile, ESG investment is also essential from
the perspective of contributing to a sustainable society. At the Financial Markets & International
Department, we are working to build sustainable operational systems responsive to changes in
1200000
the environment, and
develop human resources who are well-versed in financial markets.
20000

900000
● Improve financial intermediary functions by securing stable
revenues

Value to be
provided

● Contribute to economic development with investments in growth areas
● Contribute to a sustainable society through ESG investments
600000

10000

● Support asset building by developing human resources familiar with the markets
300000

0
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Optimization of Management Resources

Catering to diversifying needs with “branch reforms” and “channel strategy”
Customer trends are undergoing major changes against a background of population decrease, aging population with low birth rate, the spread of
ATMs in convenience stores and smartphones, etc. The operating environment of our branches is also about to change significantly due in part to the
increased usage of online-based financial transactions, while the number of customers coming to branches is on the decrease. Amid this environment,
while appropriately and promptly responding to the diversifying needs of customers, we will improve the value we provide to customers in a form
suitable for the future economic and social environment through our “branch reforms” and “channel strategy.”

Branch reforms
Measures to reform branches

Branch strategy

To respond to the increasingly diversifying needs of customers and
to provide them with tailored services, it is necessary to understand
accurately the expected functions of our branches and to switch to
administration methods and facilities as well as systems better adapted
to the times.
Against this backdrop, the Bank launched “Operational Overhaul
Project Team” to drastically reform employees’ awareness concerning
branches, and is taking measures to improve productivity and enhance
the satisfaction of both customers and employees.

The number of customers coming to our existing branches is falling due
to population decline, declining birthrate, aging population, the rapid
development of online business and social interaction, increased usage
of smartphones and similar devices and other trends. At the same time,
with greater use of online banking, customer expectations of bank
branches as a marketing channel have also changed greatly.
Under these circumstances, the Bank is making adjustments to
branch functions to address new market characteristics and trends.
Together with specifying clearer roles for individual branches, the
Bank aims to strengthen its business posture and optimize its use of
corporate resources.
In branch initiatives within Shiga Prefecture, the Bank has taken
measures to further improve services by creating a business posture
that better meets customer needs, while duly noting changing
demographics and regional characteristics and growth potential. This
means shifting from branches offering full branch banking services to
branches with specific functions including sub-branches and agents.
In branch initiatives outside the prefecture, the Bank opened Kyoto
Branch in 1938, Osaka Branch in 1941, and Tokyo Branch in 1946,
becoming one of the earliest “wide-area regional banks.”
In new branch openings outside the prefecture in recent years, the
Bank has established “branches specializing in corporate business.” These
chiefly target SMEs, as part of the new “exuding strategy” for branches,
in which a certain volume of business is achieved through business
approaches that make maximum use of local and interpersonal
connections and knowledge – rather than growing through rapid
openings of a string of new branches with the sole object of boosting
volumes.
While adhering to these basic policies, we are beginning to
rebuild our branch network for a new era, aiming to further improve
convenience for our customers through the use of multi-channels while
also providing sustainable services.

Measures of operational overhaul
In the “Operational Overhaul Project,” while drastically reviewing
overall administrative operations, including deposits, transfer and
exchange, and other operations handled by branches, and significantly
reducing the amount of administrative work and its cost by increasing
productivity, the Bank shall achieve even deeper relations with
customers and enhance the level of customer service, including
reducing wait times at branches and increasing the time spent making
proposals to customers at counters.
Specifically, we have introduced the “purpose-specific counters system”
according to the purpose of each customer’s visit, and also commenced
operation of a centralized administrative base (support office).
In addition, we have begun to adopt “counter tablets” that allow
customers to operate tablets on their own for services including
opening of new accounts, and we are working to further improve
productivity by utilizing ICT.
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Channel strategy
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Rebuilding our branch network

Mobile banking vehicle the Shiganosuke GO!

Aiming to improve the efficiency of our branch network and build

The introduction of the mobile banking vehicle allows us to provide

a framework for providing higher added value, we started branch

financial services in regions and commercial facilities, etc. with

integrations using the branch-in-branch method in February 2020.

relatively few stores, and we can also utilize it for the ATM services and

Integration using the branch-in-branch method results in a location
format in which multiple branches and other facilities coexist within
one location. As customers can continue to use their passbooks and
ATM cards even after the integration, this method aims to build an

supplying power in the event of a large-scale disaster, as the vehicle is
equipped with an on-site power generator.
The Bank will utilize new sales channels as we focus on further
expanding contact points with customers, and we will endeavor to
continue providing a high level of service.

efficient branch network while reducing the decline in convenience as

Enhancement of non-face-to-face channels

much as possible.
In addition, we have begun to develop in--store agents operated

branch network and further enhance our services for customers.

In addition to the strategy for our physical branches, we promote the
shift to online channels that utilize ICT while striving to enhance our
non-face-to-face channels as well.
Specifically, we will provide an account opening app and strive to
enhance online banking, while proceeding with the enhancement of
the functions of our ATMs, and promoting mutual partnerships with
other financial institutions.
In addition, we will achieve convenience for our customers and
improve productivity by reducing workload through expanding API
cooperation with FinTech companies and building next-generation
core systems.

Integration via the branch-in-branch method

In-store agent

With the introduction of in-store agents, employees can specialize
in proposals and other activities, and we are building a system that
can provide higher value-added services by carefully responding to
customer needs and solving problems.
By further expanding these efforts, we will rebuild an optimal

Low counter

Personnel in charge
of customers relations

B Branch

BANK
B Branch

A Branch

BANK

A Branch

BANK

High counter
Personnel in
charge of sales
(deposit/transfer
and exchange)

Low counter

Branch managers

Personnel in charge
of loans

for large-scale branches.

Personnel in charge
of customers relations

handles over-the-counter operations (deposits, transfers and others)

Personnel in charge
of loans

by our consolidated subsidiary, The Shigagin Agency Co., Ltd., which

High counter
Outsourcing
to The Shigagin
Agency
(Operated by
staff of
The Shigagin Agency)
Agency manager

Branch managers

B Branch moved
within A Branch
*Low counter: Consultation on financing, asset management, etc.
High counter: Acceptance of deposits/withdrawals/transfers (general bank counter operations)
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Toshiharu Fukuchi
General Manager of
Hachiman Ekimae Branch

In an environment where our existing values are changing drastically, we value “essential thinking”
at our branch in order to stay close to and offer support for our customers in solving the essence
of their concerns and issues. We are increasing the time spent on dialogue with our customers by
actively reviewing operations, while concentrating wisdom, information, and human resources
through new store policies. Every branch employee strives every day to continue to be the “most
reliable and familiar” service provider who will go through with resolving our customers’ issues to
the end.

● We will provide higher added value by consolidating sales offices and branch functions and reallocating personnel.

Value to be
provided

● Each executive and employee will evolve into a “problem-solution type human resource,” further accelerating our efforts to
solve the issues of our customers and the local communities, and contribute to the sustainable development of the local
communities.
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Strengthening of ICT Infrastructure

Achieve greater convenience through responding to digitization
With the rapid uptake of digital technologies, cashless payment and other new financial services are emerging one after another, which are
bringing about greater convenience for customers. The Bank will further strengthen its wide-area partnership with other banks and those with
FinTech companies to provide highly convenient, customer-oriented services. In addition, through supporting customers in their adoption of
digital technologies and ICT, we will contribute to productivity improvement and streamlining of operations in the region.

Digitization of society
The rapid spread of the smartphone has made it possible to use many
services at “anytime” and “anywhere,” with greater speed and ease of use
than ever. Going forward, we also expect accelerating development in
ICT with improvements in transmission speed and wider use of AI.
In response to the development of ICT, the financial industry has
likewise begun to develop new services through FinTech measures.
Under these circumstances, the Bank attaches even more importance
as management issues to providing new services that meet customer
needs by leveraging ICT and improving the productivity of conventional
operations.

In line with its basic policies of ICT strategy, the Bank is committed to
proactively mobilizing ICT to understand our customers even better and
provide high value-added services by aiming for (1) “expanding financial
services” to provide accurate responses to customer needs; (2) further
“streamlining business operations and ensuring risk control”; and (3)
“creating a system to realize strategic management policies” in a flexible
and scalable way.

Basic policies of ICT strategy
Improving the
productivity of
business
operations

Improving
convenience and
customer
satisfaction

Providing
worry-free,
secure ICT
services

Leveraging ICT

Our corporate direction

Expanding financial services

The Bank’s computer system is one of the important parts of public
infrastructure, and is expected to have a robust ICT platform to ensure
provision of secure and reliable financial services.
The Bank has designated ICT as one of the pivots of its business
strategy. It has basic policies of ICT strategy: (1) contributing to greater
convenience and customer satisfaction through ICT; (2) improving the
productivity of business operations; and (3) working to provide worryfree, secure ICT services.

Streamlining business operations and ensuring risk control
Creating a system enabling implementation
of strategic management policies

Diagram of solid ICT infrastructure
Contributing to greater convenience and customer satisfaction using ICT

Internet
banking

Information-related systems

Concentration of information

Leveraging data

ATM, etc.

Mainframe platforms

Open platforms

West Japan main center

Mutual emergency backup

Concentration of information

Accounts-related systems

Mainframe platforms

East Japan sub-center

Various business operation system groups

Providing worry-free and secure ICT services
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Open platforms

Administrative Building

SUCCESS
system

Business approach rooted in customer needs

Expanding ICT services provided to the customer

Accounts-related systems
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Future strategy
Backcasting

Diagram of ICT strategy looking to the future
Infrastructure Core system
(select optimal
one according
to strategy)

Strategic
investment

Cashless
Accounts-related API

(concentrated
investment)

Regions going
cashless

Customer
convenience

Common
items

Productivity

Reducing
burden

Branch
operations

Streamlining
customers’
operation

Work style
reform

Utilization
of tablet
devices

Streamlining
operation

Expansion
and greater
efficiency

Apply to
the region
(ICT consultation)

Utilization of
smartphone
authentication/
Password-less
biometric
authentication
Card-less

Paperless
Seal-less
Asynchronous communication

Online and
offline
integration

Coordination with
local enterprises
and organizations

● Smaller
branches
● Reduce office
equipment
Reducing burden

Future strategy

In regional communities where digitization is rapidly progressing, we
will promote cooperation with a diverse range of external companies
in order to swiftly provide high value-added services. Specifically, we
will strengthen external cooperation by concluding agreements with
FinTech companies using open APIs (three companies as of March 31,
2020).
In addition, in order to deal with the shift to cashless services in the
region, we are improving the convenience of account holders with the
Bank (expanding charge functions) and supporting cashless settlement
of our client customers. Specifically, we are increasing J-CoinPay
member stores and promoting bank account coordination with various
smartphone payment apps (LINE Pay, PayPay, etc.).
In addition, we are promoting work style reforms utilizing tablet
devices. While striving to overhaul our operations for greater efficiency,
we will work to spend more time to make proposals to customers and
further raise their corporate value.

VO I C E

Sophistication
of FinTech

Open innovation

Seal-less
Transactions
Passbook-less
complete on
smartphones

Current initiatives

STAK EH O LDERS’

API linkage

Shift to self-service

Information
sharing
Reduction
and
integration

Contribution
to sustainable
development
of the region

Renovation
of nextgeneration
core
systems

Review of
product lines

Customer
service

Future forecast

Amid major changes in the economic environment and social
conditions accompanying the rapid uptake of digital technologies, the
Bank must respond to change flexibly and proactively, and it considers
it vital to think and take actions in a way that goes beyond conventional
frameworks.
By participating in the TSUBASA Alliance, we will strengthen
collaboration in wider and more advanced fields, while aiming to realize
highly convenient new services and added value by further promoting
collaboration with various external companies.
With a plan to update the next-generation core system in
consideration of such external partnerships, we aim to realize a
sustainable society through building advanced networks with the use
of ICT infrastructure.

Today, increasing corporate value and contributing to local communities through digitalization
are important and unavoidable issues in realizing a sustainable society. Amid dramatic changes
in society and an abundance of diverse values, we will provide new, high value-added services

Tadanori Horikawa
General Manager of
ICT Strategy Office

Value to be
provided

through flexible thinking and proactively taking on challenges through collaboration (open
innovation) with a wide range of external companies and other organizations.

● Boost initiatives for ICT utilization and deliver worry-free, secure services with greater convenience.
● Define a future with customers and regions, support adoption of digital technologies and ICT with the use of ICT infrastructure
and contribute to enhancing productivity and operational efficiency in the region.
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Alliance Strategy

TSUBASA Alliance —business development that leverages economies of scale through widespread and large-scale collaborations—
The Shiga Bank joined the “TSUBASA Alliance” in May 2019. The purposes are: sustainable growth of the region and improvement of the financial
system; alliance contributing to enhancement of corporate value of the participant bank groups; growth of the top line; and planning and promotion
of cost-cutting measures. With the addition of the Bank of The Ryukyus, Limited in April 2020, a network covering the whole of Japan from Hokkaido to
Okinawa has been formed. Together with sharing the knowledge and information of each bank, we will further accelerate strategic alliances to provide
financial services with high added value.

October 2015

March 2016

April 2018

March 2019/May 2019

April 2020

Evolution and development into
advanced initiatives as a regional
bank platformer

Growth of the top line
Strengthening sales capabilities by sharing know-how
Cost reductions/streamlining
Consolidating common functions and indirect departments

Pursuit of the ideal vision for the
regions

Further productivity improvements and sophistication of business
Products

Compliance

Risks

Administration

Systems

Audit

Head office location

Construction of an M&A business platform

Branch location
Since October 2019, banks participating in the Alliance have been
constructing an M&A business platform, and are engaged in business

Initiatives for TSUBASA Declaration on SDGs

matching activities that transcend the boundaries of the banks.
Platform

TSUBASA Declaration on SDGs

Customers

Customers

1

Announced on May 22, 2019

to the vitalization of local economy and
Local economy and community Contribute
communities

2 Population aging Support peace of mind and safe living for the elderly
3 Financial services Provide financial services for a better life
4 Diversity

Information on M&A needs
Customers

Customers

Promote diversity and work reforms

to the preservation of a sustainable
5 Environmental protection Contribute
environment

Joint participation in the “Plastics Smart” campaign
Customers

Customers

Customers

Customers

Customers

Customers
Customers
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As of June 30, 2020

In anticipation of the introduction
of charges for plastic shopping bags
in July 2020, the TSUBASA Alliance
participated in the Plastics Smart
campaign for the future of the global
environment.
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Cooperation with the community
1. Cooperation among industry, government, academia and finance —supporting venture businesses and relaunch—
The Shiga Bank has established the Shigagin new business support network “Nonohana Support Group” to support entrepreneurs who seek
to create new business in a comprehensive and professional manner. This network supports activities of entrepreneurs for creation of new
business by bringing together expertise from the fields of industry, academia, government and ﬁnance.
Shigagin new business support network Nonohana Support Group
Promising new businesses

Kyoto University

Shiga Prefecture

Kyoto Institute of Technology

Industrial Research Center of
Shiga Prefecture

Shiga University
Shiga University of
Medical Science
The University of
Shiga Prefecture
Doshisha University

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC

PricewaterhouseCoopers Kyoto

SMBC Nikko Securities Inc.

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd.

Ant Capital Partners Co., Ltd.

Future Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
AGP CORPORATION

Nagahama Institute of
Bio-Science and Technology

Tokyo Stock Exchange

Ritsumeikan University

Shigagin Lease Capital

Northeastern Industrial
Research Center of
Shiga Prefecture
Shiga Prefecture Industrial
Support Center

Nippon Venture Capital Co., Ltd. Development Bank of Japan Inc.
Osaka Small and Medium Business
Investment & Consultation Co., Ltd

Shiga Economic
Industrial Association
Kansai Head Office, Organization for Small & Medium
Enterprises and Regional Innovation, JAPAN

Shiga Bank

The Shigagin
Economic & Cultural
Center Co., Ltd.

Ryukoku University

Advanced Science, Technology &
Management Research Institute of KYOTO
(ASTEM)
Japan Science and
Technology Agency
(JST)
(Title omitted)
(As of April 2020)

2. Conclusion of comprehensive alliance agreements with local communities and universities
1) Shiga University (October 2016)
2) Trilateral agreement with Kusatsu City and Ritsumeikan University (December 2016)
3) Shiga University of Medical Science (October 2017)

3. Business alliance toward regional revitalization through spread of sustainable agriculture and development
of regional agriculture
We concluded an agreement on business cooperation with West Japan Railway Company and Farm Alliance Management. (April 2017)

4. “Shiga SDGs × Innovation Hub (SHIGAHUB)” — Cooperation with Shiga Prefecture, Shiga Committee for Economic
Development and regional financial institutions
“SHIGAHUB” was established for the purpose of creating innovation leading to solution of social issues of Shiga and building new business
models for the 21th century.
The Bank sends its employees to “SHIGAHUB” and contributes to creation of a sustainable society in the region by proactively supporting
solutions of social issues leading to SDGs and innovation leveraging the strength of companies, through utilization of our network.
Solution of administrative issues

Administration
Shiga’s social issues “Outside-in”

Shiga’s SDGs

SHIGAHUB

Companies, organizations
and next generations
Social problem-solution type business

Business support and consulting capability

STAK EH O LDERS’
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Bank

Since joining the TSUBASA Alliance, we have been collaborating in a wide range of fields,
including research and international operations aimed at cultivating new businesses. Currently,
we are also promoting cooperation in efforts to enhance measures against money laundering

Masato Naruko
Management Planning Group,
General Planning Dept.

Value to be
provided

and terrorist financing. Going forward, we will continue with our efforts to further revitalize the
region.

● We will take measures to revitalize the region.
● We will work on strengthening our top line and reducing costs.
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Corporate Governance
Basic views on corporate governance
As a regional bank headquartered in Shiga Prefecture, the Bank has a motto which carries on “Sampo yoshi” philosophy, a management philosophy
embraced by Merchants in the Omi region of central Japan, which means to bring happiness to three sides: being good for the seller, the buyer,
and society. The Bank made the motto “Be tough on ourselves, kind to others and serve society” the starting point for corporate social responsibility
(CSR), making effort to realize mutual prosperity with the regional communities, all
(1) Respect shareholder rights and safeguard
employees, and the environment as in the Bank’s Management Principles. For the
shareholder equality
purposes of ensuring sustainable growth and improvement in corporate value for the
(2) Cooperate appropriately with stakeholders
Bank over the mid- and long-term, we will expand and constantly upgrade our corporate
governance standards based on the following basic views.
(3) Duly disclose information, including non-financial
The Bank has adopted the Audit & Supervisory Board system, under which the
data, and ensure transparency and fairness of
Board of Directors including Outside Directors supervise management and the Audit &
decision-making
Supervisory Board including Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members checks the
(4) Create an environment for allowing appropriate
Board of Directors.
levels of risk-taking by management team
In terms of business operations, centered on the Executive Committee that is a
members
decision-making body for business execution, the Compliance Committee and the
(5) Contribute to sustainable growth and the midALM Committee have been established and the internal audit oﬃces monitor their
and long-term improvement in corporate value, by
operational status.
prioritizing dialogue with shareholders

Internal control system status
At the Bank, in accordance with Companies Act and the Regulations for Enforcement of the Companies Act, the fundamental policy of our internal
control structure was discussed and determined by the Board of Directors. As detailed below, the Bank has a system to ensure appropriate practices in
the execution of its daily business.

Shiga Bank’s corporate governance system (as of June 30, 2020) is shown in the chart below.
General Meeting of Stockholders
Appointment/dismissal

Appointment/dismissal

Appointment/dismissal

Board of Directors

Audit &
Inspection

Meeting of Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Coordination

Executive Committee

Coordination

Office of Audit &
Supervisory
Board Members

CSR Committee

Audit & Inspection

Compliance Committee
ALM Committee

Headquarters

Accounting Auditors

Internal Audit Briefing Sessions

Branches

Internal Audit
& Inspection

Coordination

Audit & Inspection Dept.

SHIGA BANK REPORT 2020

59

POWERS
SUPPORTING
VALUE
CREATION

Company Organizations (as of June 30, 2020)

1. Board of Directors

4. Internal Audit System

The Board of Directors, with nine members, including three from
outside the Bank, meets once a month in principle. At the meetings,
decisions are made on important business matters for conduct
business. Audit & Supervisory Board Members attend all such
meetings to monitor the performance of Directors.

Seeking to conduct its business in a sound and appropriate manner,
the Bank established the Audit & Inspection Department to undertake
internal audits. The Department performs audits of the Bank’s branches
to ensure that their internal control mechanisms are functioning
properly and effectively, in accordance with annual internal audit
plans approved each year by the Board of Directors. The internal Audit
briefing sessions meets as a rule once a month with the attendance of
the management team including the President of the Bank, and holds
discussions on reported audit findings and on the status, problem
points and issues of departments and branches subject to auditing.
This ensures that risk is minimized, administrative duties are carried
out reliably and business management is appropriate. In addition
to continuous internal quality evaluations, the Audit & Inspection
Department also receives external quality evaluations from third-party
organizations to maintain and enhance the quality of internal audits.

2. Meeting of Audit & Supervisory Board Members
As a company with the Audit & Supervisory Board system, the Bank
holds a meeting of Audit & Supervisory Board Members whose
participants are four Audit & Supervisory Board Members, including
two from outside the Bank, once a month, in principle. The meeting
of Audit & Supervisory Board Members carries out tasks such as
decision of audit policies, audit plans, audit methods and division of
audit duties. In accordance with audit plans, etc., determined by the
meeting of Audit & Supervisory Board Members, full-time Audit &
Supervisory Board Members conduct objective and rational audits
by attending important meetings including those of the Board of
Directors and Executive Committee, as well as internal audit brieﬁng
sessions and by reviewing important documents, conducting visiting
audits at branches and interviewing with departments of the Head
Office and through other measures. In addition, they exchange
opinions and information with internal audit oﬃces and Accounting
Auditors regularly and as needed to improve audit effectiveness.
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members conduct audits based
on sufficient discussion at the meeting of Audit & Supervisory Board
Members by fully communicating and cooperating with full-time
Audit & Supervisory Board Members and receiving various reports
from internal control offices. Also, the Bank has established a structure
where duties of Audit & Supervisory Board Members are fulfilled by
placing full-time employees independent of Directors, for assisting
duties of Audit & Supervisory Board Members.

3. Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of the Chairman, President, Deputy
President, Senior Managing Directors, and Managing Directors. It
meets as necessary to make swift decisions about overall operations,
including investment plans, new product development, business
structural changes and monitoring the risk environment. Important
items related to the execution of business are submitted to the Board
of Directors.
*The positions of Chairman and Deputy President are currently vacant.
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5. CSR Committee
The CSR Committee chaired by the President considers plans to fulfill
social responsibility (SR) to all stakeholders for the purpose of “creating
and enhancing value as a sincere company” and contributing to the
Bank’s sustainable development based on the CSR Charter, or our
Management Principles.

6. Compliance Committee
The Compliance Committee chaired by the Senior Managing Director
and including the Audit & Supervisory Board Members as counselors
considers various issues concerning compliance to social norms, laws
and regulations, and the Bank’s internal rules comprehensively for the
purpose of contributing to execution of sincere and fair corporate
activities.

7. ALM Committee
The ALM Committee chaired by the President conducts reporting,
analysis and discussion on risks and promotes response to
comprehensive asset liability management (ALM) for the purpose of
contributing to an increase in stable earnings through improvement
of risk management.

8. Accounting Auditors
Accounting audits are conducted by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC,
with which the Bank concluded an audit agreement.
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Policies on executive compensation, etc.
The compensation of the Bank’s officers is determined in accordance with the following policies and procedures.
1. Compensation for Directors
(1) Directors (excluding Outside Directors)
The remuneration of Directors (excluding Outside Directors) consists
of the following three components:
1. Fixed-amount compensation
Paid according to the role and responsibility based on the
position.
Compensation limit: 225 million yen per year
2. Performance-linked compensation
Paid based on net income attributable to owners of parent in
order to increase the incentive to improve performance.
Compensation limit: Up to 0.45% of net income attributable
to owners of parent for the relevant fiscal
year, with an annual limit of 75 million yen
3. Stock options as share-based compensation
Paid to motivate Directors to contribute to the mid- to longterm enhancement of corporate value and share price growth.
Compensation limit: 100 million yen per year

(2) Outside Directors
Fixed-amount compensation is paid in light of the management
supervisory function.
Compensation limit: 35 million yen per year
2. Compensation for Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Fixed-amount compensation is paid to ensure neutrality and
independence.
Compensation limit: 84 million yen per year
3. Procedure for determining compensation
(1) Directors
Determined by resolution of the Board of Directors, within the
limits of the amount of compensation set by the General Meeting
of Stockholders.
(2) Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Determined by discussions by Audit & Supervisory Board
Members, within the limits of the amount of compensation set by
the General Meeting of Stockholders.

Changes in Number of Officers and Ratio of Outside Officers
2015
Outside 12.5%

2020
Outside

33.0%
Directors

Outside

Audit &
Supervisory
Board Members

Total number

Total number

16 persons

9 persons

50.0%

Outside

Increased ratio of Outside Directors

50.0%

Total number

Total number

4 persons

4 persons

Independent Outside Officers
Name

Position

Reason for appointment

The rate of attendance at meetings of Board of Directors in fiscal 2019

Hajime Yasui

Outside
Director

The Bank expects that he will utilize in the Bank’s
management a wealth of experience at the Bank of
Japan and an audit firm, profound knowledge regarding
corporate accounting, and high insight into finance.

Minako Takeuchi

Outside
Director

The Bank expects that she will utilize in the Bank’s
management a wealth of experience and high insight into
overall management as a corporate executive.

● 12 out of 12 regular meetings of the Board of Directors
(attendance ratio: 100%)
● 1 out of 2 extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors
(attendance ratio: 50%)
● 10 out of 10 regular meetings of the Board of Directors
(attendance ratio: 100%)
● 1 out of 2 extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors
(attendance ratio: 50%)

Rikiya Hattori

Outside
Director

The Bank expects that he will utilize in the Bank’s
management a wealth of experience and high insight into
finance gained at financial institutions.

● Newly elected in June 2020

Yasuhito Matsui

Outside Audit
& Supervisory
Board
Member

The Bank expects that he will reflect in auditing the Bank
his professional expertise and a wealth of experience as a
lawyer involved in corporate legal affairs.

● 12 out of 12 regular meetings of the Board of Directors
(attendance ratio: 100%)
● 2 out of 2 extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors
(attendance ratio: 100%)

Kazukiyo Onishi

Outside Audit
& Supervisory
Board
Member

The Bank expects that he will reflect in auditing the Bank a
wealth of experience at the Ministry of Finance and other
corporations, as well as high insight gained through public
finance and administration.

● Newly elected in June 2020
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Directors and Executive Officers
(as of June 26, 2020)

Directors
President & CEO Shojiro Takahashi
April 1979 Joined the Bank
June 2006 	General Manager of Business
Promotion Dept.
June 2008 	Director and General Manager of
Business Promotion Dept.
June 2009 	Director and General Manager of
Kyoto Branch
June 2011 Managing Director
June 2014 Senior Managing Director
June 2015 Deputy President
April 2016 President (current position)

Senior Managing Director Motohiro Nishi
April 1982 Joined the Bank
June 2011	General Manager of Business Promotion
Dept.
June 2013	Director and General Manager of Osaka
Branch
April 2016	Director and General Manager of Kyoto
Branch
June 2016	Managing Director and General Manager
of Kyoto Branch
June 2019 Managing Director
June 2020 	Senior Managing Director (current
position)

Managing Director & CFO Takahiro Saito
April 1983 Joined the Bank
February 2014 	General Manager of Credit Supervision
Dept.
June 2014 	Director and General Manager of Credit
Supervision Dept.
June 2017 Managing Director (current position)

Director and General Manager of Audit & Inspection Dept.

Katsuyuki Nishikawa

April 1987 Joined the Bank
June 2016 	General Manager of Audit & Inspection
Dept.
June 2018 	Executive Officer and General Manager
of Audit & Inspection Dept.
June 2020 	Director and General Manager of Audit &
Inspection Dept. (current position)
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Senior Managing Director & CIO

Shinya Kubota
April 1986 Joined the Bank
June 2015 	General Manager of General Planning
Dept.
June 2017 	Director and General Manager of General
Planning Dept.
June 2018 Managing Director
June 2020 	Senior Managing Director (current
position)

Director and General Manager of Kyoto Branch

Katsuyoshi Horiuchi

April 1987 Joined the Bank
June 2014 	General Manager of Assets & Liabilities
Managing Dept.
June 2017 	Executive Officer, General Manager of
Business Promotion Dept.
June 2019 	Director and General Manager of Kyoto
Branch (current position)

Outside Director Hajime Yasui
April 1975 Joined the Bank of Japan
March 2003 Retired from the Bank of Japan
April 2003 Director, ChuoAoyama Audit Corporation
July 2006 	Director, PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata (currently
PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata LLC)
April 2008 	Chief of PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata Institute,
PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata
January 2014 	President and Representative Director, Yasui
Associates Co., Ltd.
June 2014 	Outside Auditor, the Bank & Supervisory Board
Member, the Bank
July 2014 	Advisor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata (currently
PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata LLC)
July 2014 Advisor, Japan Business Assurance Co., Ltd.
June 2015 Retired as Advisor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Aarata
June 2017 Retired as Advisor, Japan Business Assurance Co., Ltd.
June 2017 Resigned as Outside Auditor, the Bank
June 2017 Outside Director, the Bank (current position)

Outside Director Minako Takeuchi

Outside Director Rikiya Hattori

April 1983 Joined NEC Corporation
December 2002 Retired from NEC Corporation
January 2003 Joined STANTON CHASE INTERNATIONAL
July 2013 	Retired from STANTON CHASE
INTERNATIONAL
August 2013 	Representative Director, TM Future
Corporation (current position)
June 2019 	Outside Director, the Bank (current
position)

April 1978	Joined Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co. Ltd. (currently
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited)
April 2012	Director, Senior Managing Executive Officer,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
April 2013	Deputy President Executive Officer, Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc.
		Deputy President, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited
June 2015	Deputy President, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings,
Inc.
April 2017	Director, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc.
		Deputy Chairman, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited
April 2018	Executive Advisor, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited
		Chairman, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Panasonic Finance
Co., Ltd. (current position)
June 2018	Corporate Auditor, SUMITOMO DENSETSU CO., LTD.
(current position)
March 2020	Retired as Executive Advisor, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited
June 2020 Outside Director, the Bank (current position)
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Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Audit & Supervisory Board Member

Audit & Supervisory Board Member

April 1980 Joined the Bank
June 2010	General Manager of Assets & Liabilities
Managing Dept.
June 2011	Director and General Manager of Assets
& Liabilities Managing Dept.
June 2014 Managing Director
June 2018	Audit & Supervisory Board Member
(current position)

April 1983 Joined the Bank
June 2013	General Manager of Business Promotion
Dept.
June 2014	Director and General Manager of
Business Promotion Dept.
June 2015 Managing Director
June 2020	Audit & Supervisory Board Member
(current position)

Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member

Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member

April
April
January
April
May
May
May
June

April 1980 Joined the Ministry of Finance
July 2014	Director-General of Yokohama Customs, Ministry
of Finance
July 2015 Retired from the Ministry of Finance
October2015	Advisor, Aioi Nissay Dowa Insurance Co., Ltd.
June 2016	Retired as Advisor, Aioi Nissay Dowa Insurance Co.,
Ltd.
June 2016	Audit & Supervisory Board Member, TAKASAGO
INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
June 2020	Retired as Audit & Supervisory Board Member,
TAKASAGO INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
June 2020	Advisor, TAKASAGO INTERNATIONAL
CORPORATION (current position)
June 2020	Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member, the
Bank (current position)

Kazuyoshi Hayashi

Yasunaga Ono

Yasuhito Matsui

Kazukiyo Onishi

2000 Registered as a Lawyer
2000 Joined Karasuma Law Office
2005	Registered as a lawyer in New York State
2005 Resigned from Karasuma Law Office
2005 Joined Miyake & Partners
2009 Appointed Partner, Miyake & Partners
2012 Registered as a Patent Attorney
2017	Outside Audit & Supervisory Board
Member, the Bank (current position)
January 2019 Retired from Miyake & Partners
January 2019	Partner, NISHIKIBASHI PARTNERS LPC
(current position)

Executive Officers

Hiroyuki Nakajima

Koji Kawaguchi

Nobuyuki Tanaka

General Manager of
Computer System
Dept. and Counselor
of ICT Strategy
Office, General
Planning Dept.

General Manager of
Financial Markets &
International Dept.

General Manager of
Credit Supervision
Dept.

Toshihiro Fukuda

Hiroyoshi Inoue

Hidekazu Toda

General Manager
of Personnel Affairs
Dept.

General Manager of
Head Office Business
Dept.

General Manager of
Administration Dept.

Akihisa Hida

Yoshinori Endo

General Manager
of General Planning
Dept.

General Manager of
General Affairs Dept.
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Message from Outside Directors

their sustainable value improvement, and also consider and implement
the ways in which the Bank can support the implementation of such
measures.
For the time being, it will be necessary to identify those areas in
which the Bank’s activities affect the environment and society, and
then, based on management data, analyze how to increase the positive
effects while reducing the negative impacts. This will perhaps be a
process very similar to the scenario analysis by the TCFD (Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures), for which the Bank has also
announced its support. As a front runner among regional banks, it will
be important for everyone to share their knowledge.

Director

Hajime Yasui

What is your evaluation on the significance of the signing
of the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB) *for details, please
refer to pages 34 to 35 of this report in order to enhance the corporate
value of the Shiga Bank? What kind of efforts do you think
will be necessary in the future?
The Bank, placing great importance on the bounty of Lake Biwa and
the “Sampo yoshi” tradition embraced by Merchants in the Omi region
of central Japan, established the CSR Charter in 2007 and announced
a policy of harmonious coexistence with the global environment.
Moreover, in 2017, the Bank became the first regional bank to make
an SDGs Declaration. Following this trend, in February 2020, the Bank
became the first regional bank to sign the Principles for Responsible
Banking. These principles state that “the purpose of a bank is to develop
a sustainable economy and help people build a better future,” which
is consistent with the Bank’s idea that “the Bank’s development is
unattainable without the development of the region.” Therefore, I highly
evaluate this signing as a manifestation of the Bank’s will to continue
promoting the environmental management that it has implemented
up to now, and also as a statement that the Bank’s pursuit of sustainable
value creation shall be the simultaneous realization of economic value
and social value.
The Bank is already striving to achieve targets not only for reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, but also for investment and financing
to promote sustainable development and support for the value
improvement of regional customers. In light of this signing, the Bank will
clarify specific relationships between their businesses and the resolution
of environmental and social issues, such as water resource protection
and global warming countermeasures, as it engages in dialogue with
local companies in the future. In addition, the Bank will think together
with those companies about the measures to simultaneously achieve
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What are your thoughts on the future challenges facing
the Board of Directors in enhancing governance of the
Shiga Bank?
In line with the establishment of the Corporate Governance (CG)
Code in 2015, the Bank has gradually promoted the introduction of
an executive officer system, reduction of the number of Directors, and
increase in the number of Outside Directors. As a result, one-third of the
members of the Board of Directors were Outside Directors as of June 30,
2020. The Bank has carried out CG reforms that emphasize substance
rather than format, as the Directors express their opinions appropriately
at the Board of Directors meetings, and we spent more time for
discussion at preliminary briefing sessions on the previous day.
However, issues still remain. For example, it is hard to say that the
Board of Directors is able to sufficiently hold deep discussions due to a
large number of matters it has to discuss. In a rapidly changing business
environment, it would be necessary to review the matters discussed
by the Board of Directors while being aware of the difference in roles
between the Board of Directors – which discusses overall directions in
management – and the Executive Committee – which swiftly executes
specific measures.
Moreover, while the Board of Directors discussed major directions in
management when formulating the Medium-Term Business Plan, I think
there is still room for consideration regarding monitoring how much
of the plan has been achieved and how it should be revised. There also
seems to be little discussion about the status of improvements in the
relationship between risk-taking and returns, as well as the specific
direction of how risks are taken – that is, the measures for topline
growth.
Furthermore, the Bank has decided to significantly transform its vision
from a “Bank” to a “Company” in the current Medium-Term Business
Plan, and I believe it is important to discuss the accompanying changes
in corporate culture. It will be necessary for the Board of Directors to
consider how to foster a new corporate culture, while keeping the good
traditions that are unique to the Bank. I would like to contribute to the
Bank’s ability to continue its tightly focused management, in spite of its
medium size.
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can rely on. To this end, I believe the Bank should (1) always stay closer to
its customers, (2) present its management and governance model as a
Shiga Prefecture company, and (3) demonstrate its consulting capabilities
to support the establishment of sound “Sampo yoshi” businesses by its
customers.
To this end, the Bank needs to further refine its ability to communicate
with its customers, learn about its customers, and gain insights into what
is truly needed, so that the Bank can deliver the services and value that
they need in a timely manner. In addition, together with firmly creating
value via the SDGs management advocated by the Bank, I believe it
is essential for the Bank to think together with and stay close to its
customers, and sometimes set an example, so that each company can
provide the “Sampo yoshi” business value to the region and its clients.

Director

Minako Takeuchi

Please tell us about your role in enhancing the corporate
value of the Shiga Bank.
I believe that my role is presenting recommendations on and
monitoring the formulation of management strategies and PDCA
cycles in business execution. Furthermore, from the perspective
of my expertise, my role is also to present recommendations for
the transformation of business models and the corporate culture,
organizational development, and human resource development, which
serve as the foundations for that transformation, as well as to advice on
initiatives to enhance the future value of the Bank in anticipation of the
digital transformation and the recent COVID-19 pandemic.
Since the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan has already started, I will
pay close attention to how the strategies are being deployed in the
field and how these are reflected in agendas of the Board of Directors.
Moreover, since any underlying issues may actually be rooted in the
organization, people, or even corporate culture, I am working to dig
deep and help the Bank gain awareness from these perspectives. I also
believe that a more flexible business model transition can be supported
by incorporating the knowledge of other industries, so I sometimes
make recommendations from such standpoints. In addition, I believe
it is important to hold discussions at preliminary briefing sessions on
the days before Board of Directors meetings, and to have firsthand
understanding of what is happening in the field on other occasions as
much as possible, as well as what the mentality of everyone working
on the front line is. Accordingly, I have asked for opportunities for such
communication.

What should the Shiga Bank do now so that it can
continue to be indispensable for the region?
As a keystone that supports the regional economy and lifestyles, the Bank
is increasingly being called upon to become an entity that its customers

What is your impression of the Bank’s human resources
and how do you think human resources should be
developed going forward?
I have the impression that they are dependable and sincere, respond
steadily and meticulously, possess a strong sense of mission, and are
open-minded. On the other hand, because they are meticulous, I feel
that there is room for growth in terms of bold actions, mobility, and
flexible thinking. In order to transform the business model and achieve
the “Mindset-Work reforms” that are required in the 7th MediumTerm Business Plan, I believe that unprecedented ways of thinking
and creation of new value, in addition to a philosophy and mindset to
provide them to our customers with confidence are required. Amid the
ongoing digital transformation, “Mindset-Work reforms” are entrusted
with the energy to think independently and change themselves with
a sense of mission, as well as the power to create markets that are truly
needed by customers.
To this end, “Mindset-Work reforms” are also necessary for human
resource development.
It is also effective to provide “places” in which successes and failures
can be accumulated by considering one’s own duties as a small
version of management, in addition to fostering human resources
for consulting that can make proposals and display leadership by
cultivating management perspectives and verbalizing the business
value of customers. Moreover, developing managerial staff who can
raise motivation and train people by improving the ability of twoway communication with their subordinates is also an urgent task.
Furthermore, a system that presents diverse career paths and visualizes
and develops the necessary skill sets based on the development of
a mindset that utilizes diverse human resources is also important as
a foundation. In addition to training, creating “places” in which the
business culture may be changed through action learning and selfdirected behavior to think and implement solutions upon identifying
issues inside and outside of the Bank at various occasions can also be
considered.
Even in the event of an unexpected crisis such as COVID-19, the
development of solid human resources who are able to stay closer to
customers at the worksites without wavering from the Bank’s motto and
possess agile judgment abilities will become increasingly important as
the organizational foundations of the Bank.
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Promoting Employee Activities and Environment Creation

The new human resource system that began in October 2017 is highly convincing and fair with clearer evaluation criteria. In addition, through
improved discussion and proactive attempts, we aim to realize an organization where efforts and endeavors of each and every employee are further
reflected in their evaluations so that they can feel greater job satisfaction and work lively.

Awareness
raising

New human
resource system
Clarification

Awareness raising of each employee toward the new system

Reflections in the new system
● Adopting a buildup approach based on business
execution ability, roles and responsibilities
● Reviewing the job function category by linking the
job position and labor grade
● Revising the job function requirement criteria
table
● Training subordinates and clarifying a rough rank of
attitude to work
● Adopting a reassessment approach for bonus merits

Necessary skills
Expected roles
Vision to be reached

Active challenge toward
stretch goals
Acquisition of professional skills
and know-how
Thorough discussion between
an evaluator and evaluatee

Human resources development policy (the 7th Medium-Term Business Plan)
“Development of bank employees needed by customers and the regional community”
● Bank employees having common sense as an adult and high professional ethics
● Future-oriented bank employees who can draw out “a true answer in a customer”
● Bank employees who can carry through their duties with pride, responding to environmental changes flexibly
● Kind and caring bank employees who can think and work on their own as a team and an organization member

Development of problem-solution type human resources
The Bank provides internal consulting training sessions and also actively
dispatches its employees to external specialized institutions. In addition,
the Bank improves the support system for qualification acquisition and
the incentive system for those who acquired qualification. Thus, we will
develop bank employees who can promote their self-growth cycle as a
financial professional.

Number of employees with professional qualification
(as of March 2020)

Financial Planning
Grade 1

Financial Planning
Grade 2

198 persons

1,267 persons

Real Estate Notary

Securities Analyst

177 persons

25 persons

Number of employees with Financial Planning
Grade 1 certification
(Persons)

147 156

172

188

198

Small and
Medium Enterprise
Management
Consultant

42 persons
March
2016
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March
2017

March
2018

March
2019

March
2020

March
2022

March
2024

We particularly recommend that our employees acquire the Financial
Planning Grade 1 necessary for performing high-level consulting
activities.

TOP MESSAGE

ABOUT SHIGA BANK

CHALLENGES FOR VALUE CREATION

Organization where diverse human resources work actively
Internal recruitment system
The Bank develops skilled human resources who can work actively in
various special fields, including digital human resources, the consulting
division, global human resources, and corporate business by female
workers, through the internal recruitment system.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Career formation for empowering female workers
We provide carrier support for appointment to a higher position,
considering improvement of their future lifestyle and workstyle.

Past training sessions
● Career advancement training (Assistant General
Manager)
● Female leader encouragement training (middle-class
employees)
● Business improvement study session for female
workers (young employees)

Supporting growth of workers’ minds
Healthy mind and body are integral for each employee to fulfil their full
potential and remain highly productive. We provide training sessions for
higher mental health literacy centering on self-care and managers’ care
for co-workers’ mental health to every position ranging from new staff to
officers to support their mind growth (improvement of autonomy) and
create a workplace where they can work lively.

Development of young employees
The Bank provides opportunities for young employees to obtain
a wide range of work knowledge regardless of their branches and
responsibilities, for creating an organization where diverse human
resources work actively. In addition to business skills, we also provide a
curriculum to enhance professional ethics as an employee of the Shiga
Bank and cultivate an enriched humanness through activities such as
regional contribution.

Mental health training session

Providing various learning occasions

Participation in Kannon-ji Castle Ruins maintenance project

We hold seminars for branch and section managers and pressure-free
plan seminars on holidays to provide opportunities to obtain knowledge
in various fields and hot topics. An annual total of over 2,500 employees
improve themselves on holidays. We hold roughly 20 seminars per year
which have been established as learning opportunities.

Past seminars
● Learn management from psychology and behavioral
science
● Understand the essence of SDGs
● Management issues and solution methods on human
resources of SMEs
and more
Stone wall of Kannon-ji Castle Ruins
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Work-life balance and “work style reform”

Creating a “healthy” working environment for mind and body

To promote a better work-life balance, we have enhanced our various

We believe that the mental and physical “health” of our employees

welfare systems and developed diverse and flexible work styles. In fiscal

is essential for our sustainable development. We are creating an

2019, we expanded our leave system to cover temporary and parttime staff, and newly established a “select staggered work system” that

environment where each employee can work in a lively, healthy manner.

allows employees to select their working hours based on their wishes. In
addition, we are also working to realize work styles that are not limited by

1. Outside counselling system

work locations, such as working from home using tablet terminals.

To forestall mental health problems, we are implementing a counselling
system where all employees are given counselling tickets by which they

1. Enhancement of our various leave systems

can consult with an outside professional at ease for free.

● Consecutive leave system
● Half-day annual paid leave system
● Spouse maternity special leave system
● Refresh leave system
● Anniversary leave system
● Work-life balance leave system

2. Support for a balance between childcare and work
The period of our childcare leave is three years at maximum, exceeding
the legal period. We provide support for continuous career formation
Counselling ticket

such as provision of various information during childcare leave,
meetings for a smooth return before going back to work from childcare
leave and support seminars after returning from childcare leave. In
addition, we have worked on improvement of our childcare support
system such that the shorter working hours system, sick/injured
childcare leave system, etc., which were available until the child enters
an elementary school, have been extended to until the third grade of
elementary school.

2. Support by nurses at internal health oﬃces
For employees with health concerns, the Bank dispatches two nurses
working at its health oﬃces to each branch and has an occupational
health physician interview the employees. Particularly for young
employees, we provide many opportunities for consultation such as
during group training, to give them meticulous support.

3. Support for a balance between nursing care and work
We have improved our system such as providing a one-year family-care
leave system for employees with a family member that needs constant
nursing care and revising the unpaid nursing leave available for 10 days
per year to the paid nursing leave.

3. Stress check
We conduct a stress check every year and provide feedback to all
respondents. In addition, they can have a meeting with an occupational
health physician, if they request. (Percentage of those who took a stress
check in fiscal 2019: 92%)

4. Reduction of total working hours
reviewing and systematizing operations for higher productivity. We set

4. R
 egular health checkups and complete physical
examinations, etc.

90 days a year (in fiscal 2019) to “early homecoming days” as a Bank-wide

We encourage employees to have a regular health checkup or complete

initiative to help employees balance work and home.

physical examination every year for early detection and prevention of

We are striving to reduce the total working hours by significantly

diseases. Employees aged 30 or older are granted a special leave roughly

Monthly overtime hours per employee
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every two years for undergoing a complete physical examination.

FY2015

FY2016

FY2017

FY2018

FY2019

14.7 hours

13.6 hours

12.7 hours

11.2 hours

10.4 hours

(Percentage of those who had a regular health checkup in fiscal 2019:
100%).
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Diversity & Inclusion
Positive action
1. Diversity Promotion Committee
In April 2020, the Committee for Advancing Women’s Success was
reorganized into the Diversity Promotion Committee. We will further
develop the concept of active participation by women, promote the
creation of a workplace in which everyone can demonstrate their own
uniqueness, and strive to become a more meaningful and rewarding
organization than ever before.

2. The Bank’s action plan in response to the Act on Promotion of
Women’s Participation and Advancement in the Workplace
Period of the plan: April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2024
● Proportion of women in management (section manager and
deputy general manager level or higher): more than 8%
● Ratio of male employees taking spouse maternity special leave:
more than 35%
We will hold training and seminars to create an environment in which
motivated women can play more active roles.

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION
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LGBT
We held a lecture by inviting an external lecturer to deepen the
participants’ understanding of LGBT. We have also begun initiatives such
as eliminating the gender column from the entry sheet when hiring new
graduates.

Employment of people with disabilities
We are creating an environment where people with disabilities can work
actively, aiming to maintain and improve the employment rate of people
with disabilities. (The legal employment rate is 2.2%; 2.360% as of March
31, 2020, up 0.177% from the previous year.)

1. Cleaner team
A cleaner team comprising nine people with disabilities has been
established in the Head Office. Persons in charge of employment of
people with disabilities in the Personnel Affairs Department and the
team members have regular meetings about their duties and physical
conditions and cooperate with each other by demonstrating their
individualities. In this way, we will create a workplace where those
members can work lively.

3. Business casual
Since February 10, 2020, we have been conducting “business casual”
trials. We will foster an organizational culture that allows employees
to work with flexible ideas through the freedom of dress that are not
bound by fixed concepts such as “suits for men” and “uniforms for
women.”

2. Para-sports
The Bank supports Hiroko Kondo (belonging to the Personnel Affairs
Department), a blind marathon runner. We aim to support promotion of
sports and a better understanding of disability through her activities.

4. Certification
On April 20, 2016, we were awarded the “Platinum Kurumin certiﬁcation,”
the ﬁrst for a regional bank in the Kinki area. Moreover, on January 29,
2020, we were awarded the “Eruboshi (‘L Star’: L stands for Lady, Labour
and Laudable)” (two stars) certification. We will continue our efforts to
promote the active participation of women, including the childcare
support system, and create a rewarding workplace environment.

Raising awareness of human rights
We have established the “Harassment Prevention Regulations” for
harassment in general, including sexual harassment and power
harassment. In addition, to cultivate human rights sensitivity, the Bank
organizes employee training sessions to deepen understanding of Dowa
discrimination and other human rights issues. In fiscal 2020, the Bank
organized a range of training courses with the theme of “respecting
diversity for the formation of a sustainable society.” We make efforts for
human rights enlightenment through other initiatives, such as displays of
various kinds of posters and asking a wide range of employees to come
up with slogans.
In addition, as a director company of Shiga Human Rights Promotion
Corporation Liaison Council, we are striving to raise awareness of human
rights with other member companies in the prefecture toward solving all
issues regarding human rights including Dowa discrimination.

Photo provided by The Mainichi Newspapers
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Global environment × The Shiga Bank
We strive to realize a society where children who will form the next
generation can live with a sense of security by achieving direct
and indirect activities through volunteer services and our business
operations, while holding discussions with external parties about
approaches to environmental problems including climate changes
and crises looming over local resources and ecosystem.

The Shiga Bank believes that we can provide better value by recognizing social issues and building trust relationships through repeated
communication with various stakeholders deeply relating to our business activities. We aim for sustainable development of the local community
and enhancement of corporate value by valuing transparent and speedy disclosure of information, as well as utilizing opinions and requests
from stakeholders for better management.

Specific dialogue methods
● Regional volunteers
● Participation in various
initiatives and dialogues
● CSR lectures
● Environmental accounting
disclosure
● Environment management
organization

Customers
Individual customers × The Shiga Bank
We will consider services from the customer’s
perspective, strengthen the PDCA cycle for
enhancing CS, and aim to improve reliability,
trustworthiness and satisfaction.

Monetary donation to the business for releasing
Nigorobuna ﬁsh (carassius auratus grandoculis)
and Wataka ﬁsh (ischikauia)

Specific dialogue methods
● Communication card
● Customer questionnaire survey

Stakeholders of Shiga Bank

● Call center
● CS promotion leader
(placed at branches)

Nigorobuna ﬁsh

Corporate customers × The Shiga Bank

Industrial associations and peer companies × The Shiga Bank

We offer consulting services in a timely and appropriate manner
and promote proactive approaches with SDGs as a starting point,
through deep dialogues about the future of businesses to improve
both corporate value of customers and social value of the region.

We aim to grow together while improving convenience and
addressing issues peculiar to the industry by utilizing respective
strengths and through partnerships.
Specific dialogue methods
● Alliances with other
domestic banks
● Business tie-ups with
overseas financial
institutions
● ATM alliance
● FinTech alliance

Specific dialogue methods
● Ratings CS/SS
● ESG investments and loans
● Management club, etc.

Regional communities × The Shiga Bank
We contribute to enhancement of vitality of the overall region
by solving social issues through relationships with regional
communities, responding to potential needs and conducting
regional branding toward a resilient and sustainable society.
Specific dialogue methods
● Shiga SDGs × Innovation Hub
● Dialogue toward a Regional Circular
and Ecological Sphere
● CSR Report
● Kakehashi, a general information
magazine for the region
● Welfare fund
● Culture business and supports
promotion

Participation in the TSUBASA Alliance

Stockholders and investors × The Shiga Bank
We conduct constructive dialogues with stockholders and
investors and disclose corporation and management information
transparently for sustainable growth and corporate value
enhancement.
Specific dialogue methods
● Announcement of financial results

SHIGAHUB

Wataka ﬁsh

● General Meeting of Stockholders
● Seminars for investors

Administrative and educational bodies, NPO, NGO, etc. × The Shiga Bank

Employees and their families × The Shiga Bank

We realize sophisticated, high-quality solutions by linking new
research ideas with local needs through partnerships with
administrative agencies and experts. In addition, we actively
carry out cooperation with educational institutions for improving
literacy of finance and SDGs.

We respect human rights, support diverse work styles and put
in place a support system toward self-realization so that each
and every officer and employee can display their maximum
capabilities feeling high job satisfaction.

Specific dialogue methods
● Relationship with regulatory authorities
● Joint projects and dialogues among industry, academia,
government and ﬁnance
● Education of literacy regarding SDGs and finance

INTEGRATED REPORT
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Kakehashi

Specific dialogue methods
● Diversity Promotion
Committee
● Human resources
recruitment system
● System for discussion
● Internal reporting system
● Labor-management
negotiation
● Working father and mother
support seminar

System for discussion

Disclosure Policy < Basic approach >
Based on our social responsibility and public mission as a regional financial institution, we aim to ensure highly transparent disclosure. We shall ensure timely, due, continuous, fair and accurate disclosure
of information, to foster understanding and appropriate evaluation of Bank operations by all of our stakeholders, including our customers, shareholders, investors and local communities.

Financial economy lecture at Shiga
University of Medical Science

Financial education at the Head Office

Working father and mother support seminar

* Details can be found on our website. (https://www.shigagin.com/pdf/disclosure_policy.pdf)
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Risk Management

Basic views

Process of developing financial targets

The risks faced by the Bank in the performance of its operations have
been growing more complex and diversified.
Based on the Bank’s policy that “Shiga Bank must be sound in order
for the local community to be healthy,” we are building Internal Rating
System and Comprehensive Risk Management System in order to
accurately assess and control risk using rational criteria without undue
reliance on personal intuition or experience.
We have also introduced a “risk appetite framework” that will
incorporate business strategy in an integrated risk management
model in order to sustainably enhance profitability based on
reasonable risk-taking.
Continuing the initiatives we have launched so far, we plan to
improve our risk management capabilities based on the principle of
self-responsibility.

Analysis of current status

Risk profile

Profitability/efficiency, etc.

Risk-taking policy
Clarifying risks that can be proactively taken,
and risks that need to be minimized

Stress
testing

Tolerable level of risk
(Basel regulations, etc.)

Strategy
Confirmation of consistency

Risk Appetite Framework

with risk-taking policy

The risk appetite framework refers to frameworks for business and risk

(Business department)

management that enable clarification of risk by type and level that the

(Market department)

Capital
allocation

Confirming level of risk
indicators through
stress-testing
Discussion of methods of
controlling risk

Risk controls
(Business department)
(Market department)

Bank is prepared to take on, as well as sharing and monitoring of it for

Simulation

the purposes of accomplishing business strategy and financial targets.

Earnings and risk

Regarding the formulation of financial targets, the Bank first

benchmarks

identifies a risk-taking policy based on current-status analysis and
risk profiling, and confirms the consistency of strategy in the sales
Financial targets

and market departments. Then we carry out various simulations
to test the strategy, and sets target earnings and risk benchmarks.

Monitoring/PDCA cycle

After confirming through stress testing that the plan will remain

Review

reasonably sound under a certain amount of stress, we allocate capital
accordingly and seek out the best balance among earnings, risk, and
capital. Stress testing is also used to originate countermeasures in the
We monitor financial targets that have been prepared, and every
six months consider revisions to the risk-taking policy and financial
targets. This enables us to clarify the relationship between analysis of
current status and risk profile; risk-taking policy; strategy; and financial
targets. We ensure the effective functioning of the PDCA cycle for
achievement of appropriate risk management and strategy attainment
that can quickly respond to changes in the financial environment.
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Capital allocation
Glossary

event of strategy failure.

The Bank uses VaR, etc. to quantify the various risks it faces. Amounts of
capital corresponding to risk amounts (economic capital) are allocated
for individual categories of risk and for individual departments and
other units, within the scope of own capital. At Shiga Bank, business
department and market department are subject to capital allocation
measures.
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Capital allocation system

Outline of Risk Management System
The Shiga Bank’s Board of Directors have established Risk Management
Rules, specified the types of risk that should be managed, and defined
the roles and responsibilities of the sections responsible for those risks.
At the same time, Risk Management Rules prescribe risk management
methods.
Furthermore, “Risk Management Policies” integrated with the
financial plan are instituted semiannually at the Board of Directors’
meeting after clarifying “risk appetite” in light of the Bank’s strategic
goals and risk status.
These statuses of risk and return are properly managed by having it
reported to management through the ALM Committee, the Meeting
of Managing Directors, and the Board of Directors.

The Bank allocates its own capital to risk generated by holding financial
products such as loans, securities and deposits (credit risk, market risk,
etc.) and risk generated from operational execution (operational risk,
etc.) by business division and risk category.
Specifically, the Bank controls risk by keeping it within the specified
ratio to both 1) regulatory capital (own capital needed to satisfy capital
adequacy regulations) and 2) economic capital (risk amounts calculated
using VaR, etc.).
In addition, the Bank has created a system that appropriately
complements the capital allocation system by controlling 3) price
change risk in investments in securities by keeping it within a specified
range.

Internal capital adequacy assessment process (stress test)

Comprehensive risk management means to appropriately manage
risks by looking at various types of risk as a whole, and comparing
them to capital adequacy which represents the strength of the
financial institution.
Based on the above, the Bank’s Assets & Liabilities Managing
Department is responsible for unified monitoring of all risks.
Additionally, the Bank conducts its business operations so as to
control risk within the scope of own capital with an integrative risk
management system (the capital allocation system and internal capital
adequacy assessment process) which measures and manages various
types of risk using such integrated yardsticks as the (maximum) Value
at Risk (VaR) formula.

To ensure the present and future soundness of the Bank, we assess its
own capital adequacy under stress events such as deterioration in gain
or loss on valuation of securities due to an increase in credit costs in a
recession period and a rapid change in the financial market, in light of
changes in the external environment and the risk profile of the Bank.

VaR (Value at risk)
Glossary

Comprehensive Risk Management

VaR uses a statistical technique to measure the losses that could
potentially be incurred in a fixed period of time (for example one year).
The Bank uses risk amounts measured with a confidence interval of 99%
and a holding period of one year in its internal management.

Meeting of Audit & Supervisory Board Members /
Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Board of Directors

Office of Audit & Supervisory
Board Members

Executive Committee

Internal Audit Briefing Sessions

ALM Committee
Assets &
Liabilities
Managing
Dept.
Risk
Management
Dept.

Assets & Liabilities Managing Dept.
Administration Dept.
Operational Risk

Risk
categories

Dept.
responsible
for risk

Credit Risk

Credit
Supervision
Dept.

Market
Risk

Liquidity
Risk

Financial Markets & International Dept.

Reputational
Risk

Processing
Risk

Information
Technology Risk

Legal Risk

Tangible
Asset Risk

Human
Risk

Administration
Dept.

Computer System
Dept.

Assets & Liabilities
Managing Dept.

General Affairs
Dept.

Personnel Affairs
Dept.

Branches and Headquaters

General Planning
Dept.

Audit & Inspection Dept. (Internal Audit Dept.)

Risk Management System
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Risk Management

Outline of Credit Risk Management

Credit Risk Management System

Changes in the financial status of the customers are reflected as
changes in the credit risk of the Bank through the credit rating system.
In order to more precisely implement credit risk management, the Bank
does not merely analyze the results of the measurements of the amount
of credit risk; it implements credit risk management while being aware
at all times of the risks faced by its customers.
In recent years, linkage between the economy and the financial
capital market has deepened on a worldwide scale. Using compilations
of multiple economic scenarios on a global basis, the Bank predicts the
extent of impact of such scenarios on the regional economy and on
our business customers. Specifically, we forecast rates of sales growth
or decline for individual business customers under these different
economic scenarios, and possible changes in credit rating after a trial
calculation of financial impact. This enables us to manage credit risk and
capital ratio status for the whole Bank.
Also, we control the credit portfolio appropriately to avoid excess
credit concentration on large customers and specific sectors and are
proactively working to achieve a level of pricing (setting of loan rates)
duly corresponding to credit risk to ensure an appropriate level of
returns in relation to the risk.
For organizational aspects, the credit risk control unit independent of
the business promotion and credit supervision units has designed a selfassessment system of credit ratings and conducted various verification
to check the operations of the others and build a solid operation
system.

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will suffer losses due to the
worsening financial conditions of clients, etc.
Recognizing credit risk as the most important risk to business
management from the standpoint of its degree of impact, the Bank
believes that it is necessary to establish a credit risk management
system and control the risk using rational yardsticks. Based on this
view, the Bank introduced its own “corporate credit ratings system”
and has endeavored to improve its credit risk management.

Outline of the Corporate Credit Rating System
The Bank implements financial analyses (quantitative evaluations)
using statistical rating models based on the financial statements of the
customers, and decides the corporate credit rating taking into account
qualitative evaluations using the unique screening know-how of the
Bank, and the condition of the company.
Based on this Corporate Credit Rating System, the Bank conducts
“Shigagin Ratings Communication Service” which discloses the ratings
of customers and “Shigagin Ratings Simulation Service” as rational
communication tools that connect our customers to the Bank. A
shared recognition is reached regarding issues and risks faced by a
business customer, and the Bank provides proposals to strengthen the
management foundation of customers and support for compilation of
plans for management improvement.

The Significance and Purpose of the Corporate Credit Rating System
Based on its conviction to adhere to our “responsible management” system, and with the aim of sophisticating credit risk management, the Bank
introduced its own corporate credit ratings system in December 1998 as a rational communication tool for the Bank and its customers to use
together to raise enterprise value.
Based on its belief that internal ratings system is ultimately a tool for pursuing mutual prosperity with the regional communities, the Bank
recognizes that the building of a solid internal ratings system is essential for consistent implementation of the responsible management model.
From this viewpoint, the Bank, in adopting Basel II in March 2007, has selected the Foundation Internal Ratings Based-Approach (FIRB). Under an
environment where financial transactions are increasingly diversified and sophisticated, the Bank has proactively committed itself to a credit-based
business and its own credit ratings system and wants to contribute on a broad basis to the further development of the regional communities,
through its main business.

Local community
development

Activating local economies

Stable supply of capital
Coexistence and partners
in prosperity

Improving
financial condition
Customers
Strengthening the
operating foundation
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Perceiving issues and
studying solutions

Raising ability
to take risks

Appropriate risk evaluation

Raising enterprise value
Rating
Ratings disclosure as an effective
communications tool

Shiga Bank

Upgrading
ratings systems

Raising enterprise value
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Market Risk Management System
Market risk refers to the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because the
value of the assets and liabilities it holds changes due to fluctuations
in a variety of risk factors in the market, including interest rates, prices
of securities and currency exchange rates.
Fully recognizing the possibility of unexpected risk arising during
the course of business operations due to uncertainties accompanying
market changes and the necessity of responding promptly and
in accordance with the nature of the risk, the Bank aims to ensure
stable profits by controlling market risk within a fixed scope based on
quantitative methods.
Regarding market risk for overall banking operations, adjustments
are made to financial targets every six months concerning all assets
and liabilities including deposits, loans, and securities, and capital
is allocated after consideration of the expected earnings and risk
balance. The amount of interest rate risk is controlled based on
the “interest rate risk in the banking book” (IRRBB). Furthermore, in
risk measurement the Bank takes into account the type, size, and
characteristics of the positions held, and uses VaR and sensitivity
(duration, BPV) and other factors for multiple management.
Of the market risks, for the risk arising from fluctuations in the
prices of securities and other financial instruments the Bank sets risk
tolerance amounts and other limits so as to ensure that the loss due
to market fluctuations does not have an effect on the operation of
the regulated capital base. For items for which limits are set using risk
amount measurement methods such as VaR, the Bank performs backtesting in order to verify that the risk amounts are being ascertained
appropriately, and reports the results of the verifications to the ALM
Committee.
As a general rule, the organizational system related to market
risk management is divided into the market transaction sector

POWERS SUPPORTING VALUE CREATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

(front office), business management sector (back office), and risk
management sector (middle office), each of which checks the
operations of the other. Furthermore, the Audit & Inspection Dept., the
internal audit department, performs audits of the state of compliance
with related laws, related regulations, the operational plan, and other
requirements and reports the audit results to the Internal Audit
Briefing Sessions comprised of the President and the responsible
directors and to the Board of Directors.

Liquidity Risk Management System
Liquidity risk is the risk of losses arising due to the necessity of trading at
significantly adverse prices compared with usual levels, due to upheaval
in markets causing inability to secure sufficient funding and hindering
fund-raising.
The Bank views liquidity risk as a fundamental risk faced by the Bank.
We take measures to ensure accurate understanding of fund-raising and
stable fund procurement and investment, and have a basic policy in place
for rigorous risk management that fully emphasizes market liquidity.
In managing the flows of funds, the Financial Markets & International
Department as fund-raising management department monitors fundraising factors including the financial environment, balance of liquid
assets, expected cash outflows, and events that are expected to have
an impact on fund-raising on a daily basis, and acts as appropriate. In
addition, the Assets & Liabilities Managing Department keeps track of dayto-day risk management by the fund-raising management department,
and ensures appropriate management of liquidity risk through regular
reporting to the ALM Committee regarding the status of fund-raising.
For the liquidity coverage ratio regulation which is the standard for
judging soundness of the liquidity, the Bank takes appropriate action.
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Operational Risk Management System
Operational risk refers to the risk that the Bank will incur a loss due to a
work-related accident at the bank, a flaw in the systems of the Bank, or
external factors such as earthquakes or other disasters.
The Bank has formulated the Operational Risk Management
Regulations, divided operational risk into five kinds of risk: (i) processing
risk, (ii) information technology risk, (iii) legal risk, (iv) tangible asset risk,
and (v) human risk, and is carrying out integrated management of these
risks in the Administration Dept.

Processing risk management
Processing risk refers to the risk that the Bank will incur a loss, or the
credibility of the Bank will be damaged, due to dishonesty or scandals,
processing accidents, flaws in the processing management system,
executives and employees failing to perform accurate processing, or
other problems of this kind.
The Bank is deeply aware that sound processing is the foundation of
its credibility, and of the importance of information management, so in
order to reduce processing risk and eliminate accidents and dishonesty
it is focusing on human resources development, strengthening our
organization, development of regulations and manuals, and compliance,
while also working on strengthening daily processing instruction and
training systems and endeavoring to improve processing quality.

* RCSA is an abbreviation for Risk & Control Self-Assessment. This is a method for
independent risk management, involving compilation and implementation of
necessary risk reduction measures based on identification of risks inherent in all
business processes and operational systems and in fixed tangible assets, etc., with an
evaluation and full appraisal of risk that remains even after counter-measures have
been taken.

Cybersecurity
The Bank considers that responding to cyberattacks is one of the most
important management issues, from the perspective of maintaining
the stable operation of our network and systems in order to provide our
customers with safe and secure financial services.
We have created a cross-departmental team in the Bank (the Shigagin
CSIRT*) and are also utilizing external expertise as we focus on adopting
a stronger stance, taking an approach based on multilayered defense
with countermeasures at entrance points, inside, and exit points.
In addition to collecting and analyzing information to quickly identify
risks and respond appropriately, we are also endeavoring to enhance
our capabilities for responding to these risks through training and drills.
Furthermore, for online banking and other non-face-to-face
transactions, we endeavor to ensure security through a combination of
measures to prevent unauthorized activity, including safe authorization
methods.
* CSIRT: Computer Security Incident Response Team

Information Technology Risk Management
Information technology risk is the risk of losses being caused to
customers or the Bank due to problems such as computer system
failure, malfunction, defect, or illegal abuse.
The Bank has installed an earthquake-proof structure enabling
computer systems to continue functioning even in an earthquake
disaster, and also has in place administrative offices that can operate for
up to 72 hours using in-house power generation systems. In addition,
we use data centers located in East and West Japan that enable mutual
backup with the latest technology. The Bank carries out various safety
measures for the assumed system risk including virus entry measures
and unauthorized access measures to prevent information leakage and
strive for the stable operation and information protection of the system.
With compilation of its contingency plan, the Bank has further taken
every precaution against any kind of accident or large-scale disaster.

Implementation of RCSA
The Bank has put in place a risk management system in compliance
with capital adequacy requirements, and carries out regular in-house
RCSA.* The Bank identifies and evaluates risk independently.
The Bank also engages in collation and analysis of operational risk
information (accident data, etc.) to ensure implementation of the PDCA
cycle to increase the efficiency of risk management. These measures
for risk control, transfer and avoidance further raise risk management
standards.
The Bank uses the “Standardized Approach” in the calculation of
amounts equivalent to the operational risk under the capital adequacy
ratio requirements.
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Reputational Risk Management System
Reputational risk is the risk of unexpected tangible or intangible losses
arising for damage to the Bank’s good name due to rumors or slanders
spreading in abnormal circumstances.
The Bank has formulated the “Reputational Risk Management Rules”
and is committed to prior prevention of abnormal situations that could
lead to reputational risk arising.
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Enhancing Legal Compliance

Led by the Legal Affairs Office of the Assets and Liabilities Managing

Whistle-blowing system established

Department the Bank is building systems for maintaining compliance

In order to promote compliance management, we have established a
legal compliance help line (24 hours a day) for employees to contact
when they have discovered a violation of laws, regulations, or rules in
the workplace and cannot discuss their concerns with their superiors or
colleagues.
We have also jointly established a system that allows employees to
consult with lawyers and solve problems early when they face legal
problems outside the workplace.

with laws and regulations and proper bank management, and is
making efforts to foster employees with a heightened awareness of
expectations placed by the public in banks, and with a strong sense of
ethics.

Legal compliance system
The Bank has stipulated the Code of Conduct based on the CSR Charter,
our management principles. In order to comply with them and to
thoroughly comply with laws and regulations, the Board of Directors
formulates a Compliance Program every fiscal year, after deliberation
by the Legal Compliance Committee, chaired by a senior managing
director. In addition, we strive to raise the awareness of employees by
conducting training at all departments, branches and affiliates, as well
as implementing monitoring to prevent recurrence of misconduct.
Moreover, the PDCA cycle is continuously implemented through
monitoring of the implementation status of the above program by the
Legal Affairs Office of the Assets & Liabilities Managing Department,
and reporting to the Legal Compliance Committee and the Board of
Directors.

Poster publicizing the Bank’s whistleblowing
system

Legal compliance system
President

Discussion and reporting

Administration
Dept.

Customer
Consultation
Office

Audit & Supervisory Board Members/
Meeting of Audit & Supervisory
Board Members

Board of Directors

Discussion and reporting

Assets & Liabilities
Managing Dept.

Legal Compliance Committee
(Bureau: Assets &
Liabilities Managing Dept.)

Legal Affairs Office of the
Assets & Liabilities
Managing Dept.

Compliance Program

Office of Audit &
Supervisory Board Members

Internal Audit Briefing
Sessions

Legal
Compliance
Help Line
(whistle-blowing
system by
employees)

Legal checks
for new products
and services

Audit and
instruction

Business Promotion Dept.

Compliance Officers

Audit & Inspection Dept.

(Branches and Departments
of Head Office)

Personnel Affairs Dept.
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Enhancing Legal Compliance

Measures against money laundering
In recent years, measures against money laundering and terrorism
funding (hereinafter referred to as the “unlawful financing”) are
becoming increasingly important as an issue to be addressed by
Japan and internationally. The Bank is taking measures to effectively
prevent more complex and sophisticated form of unlawful financing by
cooperating with related authorities.
Amid this situation, in February 2018, the Financial Services Agency
developed and announced the “Guidelines for Anti-Money Laundering
and Combating the Financing of Terrorism” that clarify basic approaches
of effective measures against the unlawful financing taken by financial
institutions.
Under the guidelines, banks and other financial institutions are
required to additionally confirm more items than required by the Act on
Prevention of Transfer of Criminal Proceeds, depending on details and
conditions of customer transactions, in addition to items required by
the said Act and other laws.

Major initiatives of the Bank
● Launched the “project team for measures against money laundering
and the financing of terrorism” for promoting cross-departmental
efforts in July 2018
●P
 ut in place the Money Laundering Countermeasures Office as an
expert supervising organization in the Assets & Liabilities Managing
Department to strengthen a structure for preventing the unlawful
financing in January 2019.
● Revised the “risk evaluation report concerning money laundering”
(hereinafter referred to as the “risk evaluation report”) in March 2020
● Introduced an illegal transaction detection system related to
unlawful financing in April 2020
Currently, we are proceeding with measures in sequence to reduce the
Bank’s risks from the unlawful financing based on the risk evaluation
report, in addition to improvement of various training systems and
encouragement of acquisition of related qualification.

Measures to eliminate anti-social forces
The Bank takes active measures to eliminate anti-social forces,
introducing an “anti-social forces elimination clause” to the Ordinary
Deposit Regulations and other rules together with establishing the
“Shiga Bank Anti-social Forces Elimination Regulations.”
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Special fraud prevention system
Protecting customer deposits from “special fraud”
The Bank is taking various measures as described below to protect
important deposits of customers from “special fraud” that has become a
social problem and offer safe services.
(1) The Bank’s employees speaking to customers at bank counters and
ATM areas and observe their facial expressions and behavior carefully.
(2) Putting up posters at ATM areas and lobbies
(3) Posting notice on the webpage
(4) Conducting internal training programs
(5) Conducting lectures at each branch
(6) Internally commending recipients of a certification of appreciation
for special fraud prevention and sharing good examples of
preventive measures among all branches on a timely manner
(7) Strengthening cooperation with the police and related organizations
(study meetings, distribution of fraud alert flyers, use of automated
calls, etc.)
(8) Adopting the “cashier’s check” plan
(9) Limiting part of the ATM transfer function
Thanks to these measures, we received seven certifications of
appreciation for special fraud prevention from police stations in
Shiga Prefecture during one year from January to December 2019
(15 certifications in 2018 and 19 in 2017). Many cases of special fraud
attempts were prevented because employees were highly conscious
of special fraud when serving customers at counters, lobbies and ATMs
and the Bank ensured swift and close cooperation with the police.
The Bank will continue to prevent special fraud cases increasing every
year by considering itself as a “last bastion” of protecting customers’
important deposits from financial crime.

System for managing conflict of interest
“Managing conflict of interest” refers to appropriately managing
transactions that may cause a conflict of interest in order not to harm
interests of customers unfairly as increasingly sophisticated financial
transactions more likely lead to a conflict of interest between customers
and financial institutions.
The Bank executes its business not to harm interests of customers
unfairly, concerning transactions that may cause a conflict of interest
“between a customer and the Bank or its affiliate” and “between
customers of the Bank Group,” in accordance with laws and regulations.
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Personal information protection and management
While advanced information and communication technology
represented by the Internet, social media, cloud services and FinTech
has brought more convenient services, it has also been pointing to
growing importance of appropriate protection and management of
personal information.
What we believe matters most is appropriate and strict handling
of customers’ personal information (including My Number individual
numbers for social security and taxation). To this end, we established
the “Personal Information Protection Policy” and the “Basic Policy on
Handling of Specific Personal Information, etc.” as basic policies for
appropriate and strict handling of personal information. (These policies
are available in Japanese on the Bank’s website.)
Based on these policies, we only use the personal information within
the scope informed through our website and leaflet in advance. In
addition, to prevent leakage of information, we put various safety
management measures in place for administrative procedures
and system technologies, and regularly review these measures for
improvement.
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System for listening to the voice of customers
The Bank as a whole is striving to offer and improve customer-oriented
products and services by listening to the various “voice” of customers.

Voice of customers

Communication
card

Questionnaire

Branch
storefront

Phone call

Market-in Promotion Office in Business Promotion Dept.
Customer Consultation Office in General Affairs Dept.
Collect and analyze the “voice” of customers and
promote service improvement/enhancement

Management
Meeting,
etc.

Consider measures and
instruct their execution
Monitoring and instruction

Branches

Headquarters
Suggestion
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Organization Chart
As of June 30, 2020
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Directors

•Head Office
Business Department
•Domestic Branches
•Sub-Branches
•Agents

General Affairs Dept.
Directors

Shigagin Lease &
Capital Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong Branch

Meeting of
Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Office of Audit &
Supervisory Board Members

The Shigagin Agency
Co., Ltd.
The Shigagin JCB
Co., Ltd.

Credit Supervision Dept.
Audit & Supervisory
Board Members

The Shigagin Economic &
Cultural Center Co., Ltd.
The Shiga DC Card
Co., Ltd.

Personnel Affairs Dept.
Business Promotion Dept.

The Shigagin Business
Service Co., Ltd.

Financial Markets &
International Dept.

Shanghai
Representative Office

Administration Dept.

Bangkok
Representative Office

The Shiga Home Loan
Guarantee Service Co., Ltd.

Computer System Dept.

Consolidated Subsidiary
Company Name
The Shigagin Business Service Co.,Ltd.
The Shigagin Economic & Cultural Center Co.,Ltd.
The Shiga DC Card Co.,Ltd.
The Shigagin Lease & Capital Co.,Ltd.

Profile
(As of March 31, 2020)
Corporate Name :
THE SHIGA BANK, LTD.
Head Office :
1-38, Hamamachi, Otsu, Shiga 520-8686, Japan
Established :
October 1, 1933
Total Assets :
¥6,271.8 billion
Deposits (including negotiable certificates of deposits) : ¥4,971.6 billion
Loans :
¥3,878.8 billion
Common Stock :
¥33.0 billion
Employees:
1,989
Offices and Branches : 133 (including 25 agents)
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The Shigagin Agency Co.,Ltd.
The Shigagin JCB Co.,Ltd.
The Shiga Home Loan Guarantee Service Co.,Ltd.

Financial Section

The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Five-year Summary
Millions of yen

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

¥6,285,002

¥6,115,271

¥5,875,040

¥5,539,561

¥5,025,426

Investment securities

1,307,107

1,352,017

1,346,672

1,467,592

1,428,917

Loans and bills discounted

3,859,363

3,779,056

3,618,866

3,461,905

3,257,723

Deposits

4,886,433

4,849,187

4,685,466

4,516,648

4,331,151

375,801

402,227

407,905

374,246

346,714

Total income

93,873

98,586

90,537

90,162

95,940

Total expenses

76,084

77,587

70,644

69,412

73,621

Income before income taxes

17,788

20,998

19,892

20,749

22,319

Net income attributable to owners of the parent

12,412

14,681

13,884

14,895

15,508

¥40.00

¥42.50

¥40.00

¥8.00

¥8.00

243.05

282.24

266.68

57.21

59.57

7,482.34

7,863.37

7,832.18

1,425.41

1,310.98

14.12%

15.68%

16.98%

16.67%

16.45%

3.19%

3.62%

3.56%

4.18%

4.52%

As of March 31
Total assets

Total equity
Years ended March 31

Per share data (in yen)
Cash dividends
Net income
Net equity
Ratio
Capital ratio
ROE

Financial review (Consolidated basis)

Balance sheets

During the fiscal year under review, while signs of slowdown in
corporate earnings and business sentiment emerged in the Japanese
economy due to the impacts of the intensified trade frictions between
the U.S. and China, the UK’s exit from the European Union, etc.,
countries around the world imposed restriction on entry in response
to the spread of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19), causing
disruption to movement of people and goods and the postponement
of the Tokyo Olympic and Paralympic Games. Therefore, concerns
further increased over deterioration of the economy.
Within Shiga Prefecture, adjustment and reduction of overall
corporate production has become necessary, as various areas
including the supply chain (supply network of parts, etc.) are expected
to be affected by the U.S.-China trade frictions and the impact from the
COVID-19.
With respect to demand, in addition to the prolonged effects of a
reactionary drop related to the consumption tax hike, the decrease in
demand from the impact of COVID-19 has spread to many areas,
resulting in rapid overall deterioration. Going forward, there are
concerns over the serious effects of COVID-19 on the prospects of the

Total assets at fiscal year-end stood at ¥6,285,002 million, a year-onyear increase of ¥169,730 million.
With regards to the main account balance of assets, securities
stood at ¥1,307,107 million (a decrease of ¥44,910 million from the
end of the previous fiscal year), while loans and bills discounted
totaled ¥3,859,363 million (an increase of ¥80,306 million from the
end of the previous fiscal year).
In liabilities, total liabilities increased by ¥196,156 million from
the end of the previous fiscal year to ¥5,909,200 million.
With regards to the main account balance of liabilities, deposits
totaled ¥4,886,433 million (an increase of ¥37,246 million from the
end of the previous fiscal year), negotiable certificates of deposit
¥66,683 million (a decrease of ¥18,272 million from the end of the
previous fiscal year), call money ¥136,386 million (an increase of
¥86,397 million from the end of the previous fiscal year), payables
under securities lending transactions ¥235,538 million (an increase
of ¥16,542 million from the end of the previous fiscal year),
borrowed money ¥451,079 million (an increase of ¥83,599 million

global economy.
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from the end of the previous fiscal year), and bonds with stock
acquisition rights ¥21,766 million (a decrease of ¥432 million from
the end of the previous fiscal year).
Total equity amounted to ¥375,801 million, a decrease of
¥26,426 million from the end of the previous fiscal year.
This is mainly due to a year-on-year decrease of ¥34,784 million
in total accumulated other comprehensive income to ¥105,957
million primarily resulting from a decrease in net unrealized gains
on available-for-sale securities, despite a year-on-year increase of
¥8,355 million in shareholders’ equity to ¥269,712 million primarily
resulting from an increase in retained earnings.

Statements of operations
Regarding income, total income posted a year-on-year decrease of
¥9,687 million to ¥88,871 million, mainly due to a decrease in other
income primarily resulting from a decrease in gains on sales of stocks
and other securities. Meanwhile, total expenses decreased by ¥2,548
million from the previous fiscal year to ¥74,996 million, mainly due to a
decrease in other expenses primarily resulting from a decrease in
provision of allowance for possible loan losses and a decrease in general
and administrative expenses.
As a result, the Bank posted income before income taxes for the
fiscal year under review of ¥13,875 million, down ¥7,138 million year-onyear. Net income attributable to owners of parent was ¥12,412 million,

Deposits

Loans and bills discounted

down ¥2,269 million year-on-year, primarily resulting from posting
extraordinary income of ¥5,002 million for the fiscal year under review.
Furthermore, comprehensive income posted a year-on-year
decrease of ¥21,100 million to ¥22,117 million of loss, primarily resulting
from a decrease in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities.
Additionally, as the Group consists of a single segment in the
banking business, business results by segment are not provided.

Cash flows
The Group’s status of cash flows for the fiscal year under review is as
follows.
Net cash provided by operating activities posted an increase of
¥41,292 million year-on-year to ¥131,260 million, mainly due to
increases in borrowed money and call money.
Net cash provided by investing activities posted an increase of
¥22,177 million year-on-year to ¥6,726 million, mainly due to an
increase in proceeds from redemption of securities and proceeds from
sales of tangible fixed assets. Net cash used in financing activities
posted an increase of ¥9,646 million year-on-year to ¥14,310 million,
primarily due to a decrease in subordinated loans (¥10,000 million).
As a result, cash and cash equivalents as of the end of the fiscal
year under review amounted to ¥934,088 million, an increase of
123,674 million year-on-year.

Investment securities

Total income and expenses

(Billions of yen)

(Billions of yen)

(Billions of yen)

(Billions of yen)

5,000

4,000

1,500

100

4,000

Total income
Total expenses

80
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60
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The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of yen

2020

2019

2020

Assets
Cash and due from banks (Notes 3 and 31)�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Call loans and bills bought��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Debt purchased�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Trading securities (Note 4)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Money held in trust (Note 5)����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Investment securities (Notes 4, 12, 19 and 31)�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 7, 12, 13, 31 and 37)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Foreign exchange assets (Note 8)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other assets (Notes 9, 12 and 37)������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 10, 11, and 14)�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Intangible fixed assets������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Deferred tax assets (Note 30)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (Notes 19 and 37)���������������������������������������������
Allowance for possible loan losses���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total assets�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥934,834
4,679
3,805
298
14,424
1,307,107
3,859,363
7,909
97,636
52,843
1,960
614
27,475
(27,952)
6,285,002

¥811,032
4,022
4,624
172
15,323
1,352,017
3,779,056
8,625
82,705
56,033
2,389
665
25,776
(27,174)
6,115,271

$8,589,855
42,993
34,962
2,738
132,536
12,010,539
35,462,308
72,672
897,142
485,555
18,009
5,641
252,457
(256,840)
57,750,638

Liabilities
Deposits (Notes 12, 15 and 31)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Negotiable certificates of deposit (Note 31)������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Call money and bills sold (Notes 12 and 31)������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Payables under securities lending transactions (Notes 12 and 31)������������������������������������������������������������
Borrowed money (Notes 12, 16 and 31)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Foreign exchange liabilities (Note 8)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Bonds with stock acquisition rights (Note 17)��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other liabilities (Notes 18 and 37)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Liability for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 29)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Liability for retirement benefits of directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members���������������
Liability for reimbursement of deposits����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Allowance for repayment of excess interest������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Reserve for other contingent losses������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 14)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Acceptances and guarantees (Notes 19 and 37)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total liabilities������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

4,886,433
66,683
136,386
235,538
451,079
40
21,766
45,988
1,841
5
379
25
182
28,627
6,747
27,475
5,909,200

4,849,187
84,955
49,989
218,995
367,480
93
22,198
42,057
1,810
8
502
30
195
42,653
7,110
25,776
5,713,043

44,899,687
612,726
1,253,202
2,164,274
4,144,803
367
200,000
422,567
16,916
45
3,482
229
1,672
263,043
61,995
252,457
54,297,528

33,076
24,536
131
220,282

33,076
24,536
129
209,664

303,923
225,452
1,203
2,024,092

(8,184)

(5,921)

(75,199)

102,311
(8,351)
11,103
894
375,801
¥6,285,002

130,613
(3,895)
11,357
2,665
402,227
¥6,115,271

940,099
(76,734)
102,021
8,214
3,453,101
$57,750,638

Equity (Notes 20, 21 and 35)
Common stock, authorized, 100,000,000 shares;
issued, 53,090,081 shares as of March 31, 2020 and 2019�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
Capital surplus�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Stock acquisition rights���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Retained earnings���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Treasury stock – at cost 2,882,579 shares and 1,954,512 shares
as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (Notes 4 and 6)����������������������������������������������
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting������������������������������������������������������������������������
Land revaluation surplus (Note 14)������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Defined retirement benefit plans���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total equity������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total liabilities and equity����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of yen

2020

2019

Income (Note 36)
Interest income:
Interest on loans and discounts�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Interest and dividends on securities���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other interest income����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Fees and commissions�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other operating income (Note 22)��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other income (Note 23)��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total income����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥36,958
13,152
236
15,621
19,099
8,804
93,873

¥37,738
13,487
242
14,957
17,975
14,184
98,586

$339,593
120,849
2,168
143,535
175,493
80,896
862,565

Expenses
Interest expenses:
Interest on deposits���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Interest on borrowing and rediscounts��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other interest expenses������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Fees and commissions�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other operating expenses (Note 24)����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
General and administrative expenses��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other expenses (Note 25)����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total expenses�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2,135
3,237
2,144
4,574
16,424
41,449
6,119
76,084

2,625
2,688
1,833
5,082
16,537
41,972
6,847
77,587

19,617
29,743
19,700
42,028
150,914
380,860
56,225
699,108

Income before income taxes�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

17,788

20,998

163,447

Income taxes (Note 30)
Current���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Deferred������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net income������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net income attributable to owners of the parent������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

5,018
357
12,412
¥12,412

5,732
584
14,681
¥14,681

46,108
3,280
114,049
$114,049

Yen

Per share information (Note 34)
Basic net income��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Diluted net income��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Cash dividends applicable to the year���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

U.S. dollars

2019(*)

2020
¥243.05
214.19
40.00

2020

¥282.24
249.42
42.50

2020
$2.233
1.968
0.368

(*) Per share figures have been restated, as appropriate, to reflect a 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected October 1, 2018.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of yen

Net income������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other comprehensive income (Note 33):
Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities��������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting������������������������������������������������������������������������
Defined retirement benefit plans���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total other comprehensive income������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Comprehensive income����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Attributable to
Owners of the parent��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2020
¥12,412

2019
¥14,681

2020
$114,049

(28,302)
(4,455)
(1,771)
(34,529)
¥(22,117)

(14,258)
(2,458)
1,018
(15,698)
¥(1,017)

(260,056)
(40,935)
(16,273)
(317,274)
$(203,225)

¥(22,117)

¥(1,017)

$(203,225)

The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Thousands

Millions of yen
Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income

Outstanding
number of
shares of
common stock
(*)
Balance as of April 1, 2018�������������
52,064
Changes during the year:
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent������������������
Cash dividends, ¥42.50 per
share (*)�����������������������������������������������
Purchase of treasury stock���������
Sales of treasury stock������������������
Other changes����������������������������������
Net change in the year��������������������
Balance as of March 31, 2019�������
Changes during the year:
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent������������������
Cash dividends, ¥40.00 per
share������������������������������������������������������
Purchase of treasury stock���������
Sales of treasury stock������������������
Reversal of land revaluation
surplus�������������������������������������������������
Other changes����������������������������������
Net change in the year��������������������
Balance as of March 31, 2020�������

Common
stock
¥33,076

Deferred
Net
unrealized losses on
Defined
gains on derivatives
Stock
Land retirement
available- under
Capital acquisition Retained Treasury for-sale
hedge revaluation benefit
rights
earnings
stock
surplus
plans
securities accounting surplus
¥24,536
¥125 ¥197,201
¥(3,476) ¥144,872
¥(1,436)
¥11,357
¥1,647

14,681

14,681

(2,212)
(938)
9
51,135

—
33,076

—
24,536

4
4
129

(5)

(2,476)
30

12,462
209,664

(2,445)
(5,921)

(14,258)
(14,258)
130,613

(2,458)
(2,458)
(3,895)

—
—
11,357

12,412

(2)

(2,045)
(2,287)
22

(2,287)
24

254
8
50,207

—
¥33,076

—
¥24,536

2
2
¥131

10,618
¥220,282

1,018
1,018
2,665

(2,212)
(2,476)
25
(15,694)
(5,677)
402,227

12,412

(2,045)
(936)

Total
equity
¥407,905

(28,302)
(2,262)
(28,302)
¥(8,184) ¥102,311

(4,455)
(4,455)
¥(8,351)

(254)
(254)
¥11,103

254
(1,771)
(34,781)
(1,771)
(26,426)
¥  894 ¥375,801

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as of March 31, 2019........
Changes during the year:
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent������������������
Cash dividends, $0.37 per
share������������������������������������������������������
Purchase of treasury stock���������
Sales of treasury stock������������������
Reversal of land revaluation
surplus�������������������������������������������������
Other changes����������������������������������
Net change in the year��������������������
Balance as of March 31, 2020�������

Common
stock
$303,923

Deferred
Net
unrealized losses on
Defined
gains on derivatives
Stock
Land retirement
available- under
Total
Capital acquisition Retained Treasury for-sale
hedge revaluation benefit
equity
rights
earnings
stock
surplus
plans
securities accounting surplus
$225,452
$1,185 $1,926,527
$(54,405) $1,200,156
$(35,789) $104,355
$24,487 $3,695,920

114,049

114,049

(18,790)
(18)

—
$303,923

—
$225,452

2,333
18
18
97,565
$1,203 $2,024,092

(18,790)
(21,014)
202

(21,014)
220
(260,056)
(20,784) (260,056)
$(75,199) $  940,099

(40,935)
(40,935)
$(76,734)

(2,333)
(2,333)
$102,021

2,333
(16,273) (319,590)
(16,273) (242,819)
$ 8,214 $3,453,101

(*) Shares and per share figures have been restated, as appropriate, to reflect a 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected October 1, 2018.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of yen

2020
Operating activities:
Income before income taxes���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Depreciation���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Losses on impairment of long-lived assets���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Increase in allowance for possible loan losses��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Decrease in reserve for other contingent losses���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement benefits���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Decrease in liability for retirement benefits of directors and
Audit & Supervisory Board Members�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Increase (decrease) in liability for reimbursement of deposits���������������������������������������������������������������������
Decrease in allowance for repayment of excess interest���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Interest income��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Interest expense�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Gains on sales and write-down of investment securities��������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Losses (gains) on money held in trust��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Foreign exchange losses (gains)��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Losses (gains) on disposals of fixed assets – net����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net increase in loans and bills discounted����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net increase in deposits��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificate of deposits�����������������������������������������������������������������������
Net increase in borrowed money (excluding subordinated loans)�����������������������������������������������������������
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding deposits in Bank of Japan)�������������������������
Net decrease in call loans and others���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net increase (decrease) in call money and bills sold������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net increase in payables under securities lending transactions�����������������������������������������������������������������
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchange assets��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net decrease in foreign exchange liabilities�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Interest received (cash basis)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Interest paid (cash basis)�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Other�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Subtotal�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Income taxes – paid����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net cash provided by operating activities��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2020

¥17,788
2,829
949
777
(13)
30

¥20,998
2,794
—
2,291
(4)
(3,984)

$163,447
25,994
8,720
7,139
(119)
275

(3)
(123)
(4)
(50,347)
7,516
(4,348)
(167)
1
(4,862)
(80,306)
37,246
(18,272)
93,599
(128)
161
86,397
16,542
715
(53)
51,653
(7,109)
(12,647)
137,824
(6,564)
131,260

(1)
1
(11)
(51,468)
7,147
(11,462)
197
(6)
15
(160,189)
163,720
3,270
50,607
28
1,502
(84,645)
113,141
(572)
(57)
51,045
(5,956)
(4,476)
93,923
(3,956)
89,967

(27)
(1,130)
(36)
(462,620)
69,061
(39,952)
(1,534)
9
(44,675)
(737,903)
342,240
(167,894)
860,047
(1,176)
1,479
793,871
151,998
6,569
(486)
474,620
(65,322)
(116,208)
1,266,415
(60,314)
1,206,101

Investing activities:
Purchases of securities�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Proceeds from sales of securities�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Proceeds from redemptions of securities������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Increase in money held in trust����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Decrease in money held in trust��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Purchases of tangible fixed assets����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Purchases of intangible fixed assets������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities������������������������������������������������������������������������

(486,914)
259,858
228,043
—
1,014
(1,270)
6,463
(468)
6,726

(433,208)
271,608
152,567
(10,000)
5,231
(1,314)
104
(439)
(15,450)

(4,474,078)
2,387,742
2,095,405
—
9,317
(11,669)
59,386
(4,300)
61,802

Financing activities:
Repayment of subordinated loans���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Purchases of treasury stock�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Dividends paid����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Net cash used in financing activities���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents���������������������������������������������
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (Note 3)������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(10,000)
(2,287)
22
(2,045)
(14,310)
(1)
123,674
810,413
¥934,088

—
(2,476)
25
(2,212)
(4,664)
5
69,857
740,555
¥810,413

(91,886)
(21,014)
202
(18,790)
(131,489)
(9)
1,136,396
7,446,595
$8,583,001

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Shiga Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

1. Basis of presenting consolidated financial
statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared
based on the accounts maintained by THE SHIGA BANK, LTD. (the “Bank”) and
its significant subsidiaries (together the “Group”) in accordance with the
provisions set forth in the Companies Act of Japan, the Japanese Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act, and the Japanese Banking Act and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which
are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.
Certain items presented in the consolidated financial statements
submitted to the Director of the Kanto Finance Bureau in Japan have been
reclassified in these accounts for the convenience of readers outside Japan.
Amounts in yen of respective accounts included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto are stated in millions of
yen by discarding fractional amounts less than ¥1 million. Therefore, total or
subtotal amounts do not necessarily tie in with the aggregation of such
account balances.
Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of readers
outside Japan. The rate of ¥108.83 to U.S.$1, the rate of exchange at March
31, 2020, has been used in translation. The inclusion of such amounts is not
intended to imply that Japanese yen amounts have been or could be readily
converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollar amounts at this rate or any other
rates.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Principles of consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019 include the accounts of the Bank and nine
consolidated subsidiaries.
The consolidated subsidiaries’ respective fiscal periods end March 31 for
the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.
The Bank has four other nonconsolidated subsidiaries in 2020 and 2019,
in which investments are not accounted for by the equity method because
their net income (the portion corresponding to the Bank’s equity), retained
earnings (as above) and accumulated other comprehensive income (as
above) have no material impact on the Group’s financial position or business
performance.
All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets resulting from
transactions within the Group is eliminated.

(b) Cash equivalents
For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
defined as cash and due from the Bank of Japan.

(c) Trading securities
Trading securities held by the Bank are stated at fair value at the fiscal year
end (cost of sales, in principle, is computed by the moving-average method).

(d) Investment securities
i. Marketable securities held for trading purposes are stated at fair value (cost
of sales, in principle, is computed by the moving-average method).
Securities held to maturity are stated at amortized cost (straight-line
method) using the moving-average method. Securities available-for-sale for
which current value can be estimated are stated at fair value at the fiscal year
end. Securities whose fair value cannot be reliably determined are stated at
cost using the moving-average method. Valuation gains/losses on securities
available for sale are included in net assets, net of income taxes (cost of sales,
in principle, is computed by the moving-average method).
ii. Marketable securities included in money held in trust by the Bank are
treated as trust assets and are stated at fair value at the fiscal year-end.

(e) Derivatives and hedging activities
Under the Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments, derivatives are
stated at fair value unless they are used for hedging purposes.

i. Interest rate risk hedges
The Bank applies deferred hedge accounting to hedge transactions against
interest rate risk arising from financial assets and liabilities which includes the
method of designating hedging instruments to hedged items as well as the
method stipulated in “Treatment for Accounting and Auditing of Application
of Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking Industry” (JICPA
Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, February 13, 2002).
With regard to the assessment of hedge effectiveness, for the hedges
that offset the fluctuations in the fair value of fixed interest rates classified as
available-for-sale securities, interest rate swaps are assigned to hedged items
collectively by bond type as the hedging instrument. The Bank designates
the hedges so as to ensure that the important conditions related to the
hedged items and hedging instruments are largely identical; therefore the
hedges are considered to be highly effective, and the assessment of the
effectiveness is based on the similarity of the conditions.
With regard to the effectiveness of cash flow hedges, hedge effectiveness is assessed by verifying the relationship of the interest rate fluctuation
factors of the hedged items and the hedging instruments.
ii. Currency exchange risk hedges
Regarding the hedge accounting method applied to hedging transactions
against currency exchange risk arising from assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies, the Bank applies deferred hedge accounting stipulated in
“Accounting and Auditing Concerning Accounting for Foreign Currency
Transactions in Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report
No. 25, July 29, 2002).
The Bank assesses the effectiveness of exchange swaps executed to
reduce the risk of changes in currency exchange rates with fund swap
transactions by verifying that there exist foreign currency positions of the
hedging instruments corresponding to the foreign currency monetary
claims and debts to be hedged.
Fund swap transactions are foreign exchange transactions that are
contracted for the purpose of lending or borrowing funds in different
currencies. These transactions consist of spot foreign exchange either
bought or sold and forward foreign exchange either bought or sold.

(f ) Bills discounted
Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions in accordance
with JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24. The Bank has rights to
sell or pledge bank acceptances bought, commercial bills discounted,
documentary bills and foreign exchanges bought without restrictions.

(g) Tangible fixed assets (except for lease assets)
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation for buildings and equipment of the Bank is computed
using the declining-balance method at a rate principally based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets. However, buildings purchased on or after
April 1, 1998 (excluding fittings and equipment), and fittings and equipment
and structures purchased on or after April 1, 2016, are depreciated using the
straight-line method.
The range of useful lives is principally from 3 to 50 years for buildings and
from 3 to 20 years for equipment.
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets owned by subsidiaries is computed
principally using the declining-balance method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets.
Under certain conditions such as exchanges of fixed assets of similar
kinds and sales and purchases resulting from expropriation, Japanese tax
acts permit companies to defer the profit arising from such transactions by
reducing the cost of the assets acquired or by providing a special reserve in
the equity section. The Bank adopted the former treatment and reduced the
cost of the assets acquired by ¥3,538 million ($32,509 thousand) and ¥3,572
million at March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

iii. Beneficiary rights included in “debt purchased” are stated using the same
methods described in (i) above.

SHIGA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2020

87

(h) Long-lived assets
The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset
group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if
the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use
and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss
would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted
cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or
the net selling price at disposition.
Accumulated impairment losses are directly deducted from the respective fixed assets.

(i) Intangible fixed assets (except for lease assets)
Depreciation for intangible fixed assets is computed under the straight-line
method. Development costs for internally used software are capitalized and
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
5 years.

(j) Lease assets
Lease assets in “Tangible fixed assets” or “Intangible fixed assets” of the
finance leases other than those that were deemed to transfer the ownership
of the leased property to the lessee are computed under the straight-line
method over the lease term with zero residual value unless residual value is
guaranteed by the corresponding lease contracts.

(k) Allowance for possible loan losses
Allowance for possible loan losses of the Bank is provided as detailed below,
pursuant to internal rules for write-offs and allowances.
For debtors who are legally bankrupt (bankrupt, under special liquidation, or subject to legal bankruptcy proceedings) or virtually bankrupt (in a
similar situation), an allowance is provided based on the amount of claims,
after the write-off stated below, net of amounts expected to be collected
through disposal of collateral or execution of guarantees. For loans to
debtors who are likely to go bankrupt, an allowance is provided for the
amount considered to be necessary based on an overall solvency assessment performed for the amount of such loans, net of amounts deemed
collectible through disposal of collateral or execution of guarantees.
For other loans, an allowance is provided primarily based on expected
losses for the subsequent year or subsequent three years. Expected losses
are determined based on the average loan loss ratio over a certain period of
time calculated using historical loan loss experience over one year or three
years, with required adjustments for future prospects and others.
All loans are assessed by the branches and the operating divisions based
on the Bank’s internal rules for self-assessment of assets. The Asset Assessment Division, which is independent from the branches and the operating
divisions, subsequently conducts audits of their assessments, and an
allowance is provided based on the audit results.
For collateralized or guaranteed claims to debtors who are legally
bankrupt or virtually bankrupt, the amount deemed unrecoverable, which is
the amount of claims exceeding the estimated value of collateral or guarantees, has been written off and amounted to ¥10,906 million ($100,211
thousand) and ¥12,347 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Allowance for possible loan losses of the Bank’s consolidated subsidiaries
is provided based on historical loan loss experience in addition to amounts
deemed necessary based on estimation of the collectability of specific
claims.

(l) Retirement and Pension Plans
The Bank has a contributory funded pension plan and lump-sum severance
payment plan. Consolidated subsidiaries have unfunded lump-sum severance payment plans.
The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit
formula basis. Past service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over
10 years within the average remaining service period.
Actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over 10
years within the average remaining service period from the fiscal year following the respective fiscal year in which the difference is recognized.
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Consolidated subsidiaries adopt a simplified method where the amount
to be required for voluntary termination at the fiscal year end is recorded as
projected benefit obligations in the calculation of their liability for retirement
benefits and retirement benefit costs.

(m) Liability for retirement of directors and Audit & Supervisory
Board Members
Consolidated subsidiaries provide Liability for retirement benefits of directors
and Audit & Supervisory Board Members at the amount required if they all
retired at the fiscal yearend, calculated based on the internal rules of the
Group.

(n) Liability for reimbursement of deposits
Liability for reimbursement of deposits that were derecognized as liabilities
under certain conditions is provided for possible losses on the future claims
of withdrawal based on historical reimbursement experience.

(o) Allowance for repayment of excess interest
Allowance for repayment of excess interest is provided at the estimated
amount based on payment experience that the Bank’s consolidated
subsidiaries may be required to refund upon customers’ claims.

(p) Reserve for other contingent losses
The Bank provides reserves for contingent liabilities not covered by other
reserves in an amount deemed necessary based on estimated losses in the
future.

(q) Foreign currency transactions
Receivables and payables in foreign currencies and foreign branch accounts
are translated into Japanese yen principally at the rates prevailing at the
balance sheet dates.

(r) Accounting for leases
In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard
for Lease Transactions,” which revised the previous accounting standard for
lease transactions.

i. As lessee
Finance lease transactions are capitalized by recognizing lease assets and
lease obligations in the balance sheet.

ii. As lessor
Under the previous accounting standard, finance leases that were deemed
to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were to be treated
as sales. However, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted for
as operating lease transactions if certain “as if sold” information is disclosed in
the notes to the lessor’s financial statements. The revised accounting
standard requires that all finance leases that are deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee should be recognized as lease
receivables and all finance leases that are deemed not to transfer ownership
of the leased property to the lessee should be recognized as investments in
leases.
Lease revenue and lease costs are recognized over the lease period.

(s) Income taxes
The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income
included in the consolidated statements of income. The asset and liability
approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes
are measured by applying currently enacted tax rates to the temporary
differences.

(t) Appropriations of retained earnings
The consolidated statements of changes in equity reflect the appropriation
resolved by the general shareholders’ meeting when duly resolved and paid.

(u) Per share information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income attributable
to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities were exercised or converted into common stock. Diluted
net income per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the
outstanding convertible notes and bonds at the beginning of the year (or at
the time of issuance) with an applicable adjustment for related interest
expense, net of tax, and full exercise of outstanding warrants.
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income are dividends applicable to the respective fiscal years,
including dividends to be paid after the end of the fiscal year.

(2) Details of the transferred assets and overview of the transferee
The Bank decided to transfer a business asset outside of Shiga prefecture
(one location).
The transferee is a domestic business corporation. The transferee has no
capital or personnel relationship with the Bank and is not a related party of
the Bank, while there are some business transactions between the two.

(v) New accounting pronouncements

(3) Transfer schedule
Date of the sales agreement: March 24, 2020
Time of delivery and payment: To be executed by the end of September
2020

“Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (ASBJ Statement No. 29
issued in March 2020)
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue
Recognition” (ASBJ Guidance No. 30 issued in March 2020)

(4) Effect of the transfer on profit or loss of the Bank’s business
The Bank expects to recognize a gain of approximately ¥2.2 billion ($20,215
thousand) in other income for the year ending March 31, 2021.

(1) Summary
ASBJ developed a comprehensive accounting standard for revenue recognition. Revenue is recognized by applying the following five steps:
Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations under the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations under the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when performance obligations are satisfied or as
they are satisfied
(2) Effective date
The Group expects to apply the new standard and guidance effective from
the beginning of the year ending March 31, 2022.
(3) Effects of application of the standard and guidance
The Group is in the process of measuring the effects of applying the new
standard and guidance.
“Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” (ASBJ Statement No. 30
issued in July 2019)
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value
Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31 issued in July 2019)
“Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10
issued in July 2019)
(1) Summary
ASBJ developed and issued “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value
Measurement” (hereinafter, “Fair Value Measurement Standard etc.”) to
enhance comparability of the requirements between the Japanese accounting standards and international accounting standards.
Fair Value Measurement Standard etc. is applied to the fair value of
financial instruments as defined in the “Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments.”
(2) Effective date
The Group expects to apply the new standards and guidance effective from
the beginning of the year ending March 31, 2022.
(3) Effects of application of the standards and guidance
The Group is in the process of measuring the effects of applying the new
standards and guidance.

Effects of coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
This report is prepared based on an assumption that the spread of COVID-19
will be contained within a period of approximately 6 months after March 31,
2020 and that the economy will recover gradually thereafter. For the year
ended March 31, 2020, the effect of COVID-19 on credit risk of loans and
other financial assets is limited due to emergency economic measures by
national and local governments, including funding support.
The assumption above has a high degree of uncertainty, and depending
on the epidemic status of COVID-19 and its impact on the economy, there
may be a material impact on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending March 31, 2021 and thereafter.

3. Cash and cash equivalents
The reconciliation of “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Cash and due from
banks” in the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2020 and 2019, is as
follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2019

2020

Cash and due from banks��������������������
Other due from banks����������������������������
Cash and cash equivalents���������

¥934,834
(746)
¥934,088

¥811,032
(618)
¥810,413

2020

$8,589,855
(6,854)
$8,583,001

4. Securities
Securities at March 31, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2020

Japanese government bonds������������ ¥255,059
Japanese local government
215,571
bonds�������������������������������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds������������������
360,114
Corporate stocks����������������������������������������
202,949
273,412
Other securities�������������������������������������������
Total������������������������������������������������������������� ¥1,307,107

2019

2020

¥262,298

$2,343,646

216,869

1,980,804

377,421
229,874
265,553
¥1,352,017

3,308,958
1,864,825
2,512,285
$12,010,539

(w) Additional information
Transfer of fixed assets

Fair value and other information on securities at March 31, 2020 and 2019
were as follows. Securities include “Trading securities” and trust beneficiary
right under “Debt purchased,” in addition to “Investment securities,” which are
presented on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Bank has decided to transfer certain of its fixed assets and concluded a
sales agreement on March 24, 2020. Details of the transfer are as follows:

Securities
(1) Trading securities

(1) Reason for the transfer
In order to efficiently use its management resources, the Bank has reviewed
its assets held and decided to transfer certain of those assets.

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2019

2020

2020

Losses included in loss
during the fiscal year

Trading securities���������������������������������������

¥0

¥(145)

$0
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(2) Held-to-maturity securities
No securities were classified as held to maturity as of March 31, 2020 and
2019.
(3) Available-for-sale securities
Available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:
Millions of yen
2020
Consolidated
balance sheet
amount

Cost

Consolidated balance sheet
amount exceeding cost:
Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������� ¥184,305 ¥43,671
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������
599,935
589,374
Japanese government bonds���
192,935
186,981
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������
156,305
154,967
Japanese corporate bonds����������
250,693
247,425
125,837
121,462
Others�������������������������������������������������������������
Subtotal�������������������������������������������������������� ¥910,077 ¥754,508
Consolidated balance sheet
amount not exceeding cost:
Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������� ¥14,790 ¥18,486
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������
230,810
233,457
62,124
63,534
Japanese government bonds���
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������
59,266
59,583
Japanese corporate bonds����������
109,420
110,339
143,935
151,230
Others�������������������������������������������������������������
389,536
403,174
Subtotal��������������������������������������������������������
Total����������������������������������������������������������������� ¥1,299,614 ¥1,157,682

Unrealized
gains (losses)

¥140,633
10,560
5,954
1,338
3,268
4,375
¥155,569

¥(3,695)
(2,646)
(1,409)
(317)
(919)
(7,295)
(13,637)
¥141,931

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020
Consolidated
balance sheet
amount

Cost

Unrealized
gains (losses)

Consolidated balance sheet
amount exceeding cost:
Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������� $1,693,512 $401,277 $1,292,226
Bonds:������������������������������������������������������������� 5,512,588
5,415,547
97,032
Japanese government bonds��� 1,772,810
1,718,101
54,709
Japanese local government
bonds����������������������������������������������������� 1,436,230
1,423,936
12,294
Japanese corporate bonds���������� 2,303,528
2,273,499
30,028
1,116,070
40,200
Others������������������������������������������������������������� 1,156,271
Subtotal�������������������������������������������������������� $8,362,372 $6,932,904 $1,429,467
Consolidated balance sheet
amount not exceeding cost:
Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������� $135,900 $169,861 $(33,952)
Bonds:������������������������������������������������������������� 2,120,830
2,145,152
(24,313)
Japanese government bonds���
570,835
583,791
(12,946)
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������
544,574
547,486
(2,912)
Japanese corporate bonds���������� 1,005,421
1,013,865
(8,444)
1,389,598
(67,031)
Others������������������������������������������������������������� 1,322,567
3,704,621
(125,305)
Subtotal�������������������������������������������������������� 3,579,307
Total����������������������������������������������������������������� $11,941,688 $10,637,526 $1,304,153
(4) Bonds classified as held to maturity were not sold for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019.
(5) Available-for-sale securities sold
Millions of yen
2020

Millions of yen

Sales
amount

2019
Consolidated
balance sheet
amount

Consolidated balance sheet
amount exceeding cost:
Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������� ¥219,734
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������
797,109
Japanese government bonds���
227,405
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������
216,256
Japanese corporate bonds����������
353,448
131,087
Others�������������������������������������������������������������
Subtotal�������������������������������������������������������� ¥1,147,932
Consolidated balance sheet
amount not exceeding cost:
Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������� ¥6,268
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������
59,479
Japanese government bonds���
34,892
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������
613
Japanese corporate bonds����������
23,973
124,892
Others�������������������������������������������������������������
190,641
Subtotal��������������������������������������������������������
Total����������������������������������������������������������������� ¥1,338,573
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Cost

Unrealized
gains (losses)

¥50,493
782,976
220,895

¥169,240
14,133
6,510

213,780
348,300
128,852
¥962,323

2,475
5,147
2,235
¥185,609

¥7,389
59,743
35,099

¥(1,120)
(263)
(207)

614
24,029
126,913
194,046
¥1,156,369

(0)
(55)
(2,021)
(3,405)
¥182,203

Stocks��������������������������������������������������������������������
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������������
Japanese government bonds���������
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds����������������
Others�������������������������������������������������������������������
Total�����������������������������������������������������������������

Gains on
sales

Losses on
sales

¥6,484
44,266
43,159

¥2,161
322
301

¥834
—
—

—
1,106
139,775
¥190,526

—
20
4,143
¥6,627

—
—
1,160
¥1,995

Millions of yen
2019
Sales
amount

Stocks��������������������������������������������������������������������
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������������
Japanese government bonds���������
Japanese local government
bonds�����������������������������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds����������������
Others�������������������������������������������������������������������
Total�����������������������������������������������������������������

Gains on
sales

Losses on
sales

¥26,566
118,614
117,882

¥11,065
3,506
3,504

¥1,077
16
16

—
731
76,675
¥221,856

—
1
557
¥15,129

—
—
1,502
¥2,596

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2020

2020
Gains (losses)
included in
Consolidated profit (loss)
balance sheet
during
amount
the fiscal year

Sales
amount

Stocks�������������������������������������������������������������������� $59,579
Bonds:�������������������������������������������������������������������
406,744
396,572
Japanese government bonds���������
Japanese local government
—
bonds�����������������������������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds����������������
10,162
Others������������������������������������������������������������������� 1,284,342
Total����������������������������������������������������������������� $1,750,675

Gains on
sales

Losses on
sales

$19,856
2,958
2,765

$7,663
—
—

—
183
38,068
$60,893

—
—
10,658
$18,331

(6) Reclassification of investment securities due to change in intent of
holding
There were no reclassifications of investment securities due to change in
intent of holding for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.
(7) Impairment losses on securities
For available-for-sale securities with market quotations (other than securities
whose fair value cannot be reliably determined), in cases where the fair value
has fallen substantially from the acquisition cost and there is believed to be
little likelihood of a recovery in the acquisition cost level, said securities are
shown on the balance sheets at fair value and the difference between the
fair value and the acquisition cost is posted as a loss (hereinafter “impairment
loss”).
Impairment losses amounted to ¥277 million ($2,545 thousand) which
consisted of stocks of ¥227 million ($2,085 thousand) and bonds of ¥50
million ($459 thousand); and ¥284 million which consist of stocks for the
same amount; as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
In addition, the Bank recognizes that fair value has fallen significantly
based on standards that have been set out in the self-assessment standards
for assets by the issuing companies of securities. The details are as follows:
The Bank recognizes that the fair value of available-for-sale securities of
legally bankrupt debtors, virtually bankrupt debtors, or debtors who are
likely to go bankrupt, has fallen significantly when the fair value of such
instruments as of the consolidated balance sheet date has decreased from
the acquisition cost. For debtors on close watch, the Bank recognizes that
the fair value has fallen significantly when the fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet date has decreased 30% or more from the acquisition
cost. For normal debtors, it recognizes this when the fair value as of the
consolidated balance sheet date has fallen 50% or more from the acquisition
cost or when the fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet date has
fallen 30% or more from the acquisition cost and the market prices remain
below certain levels.
Debtors on close watch are defined as those who will require close monitoring in the future and normal debtors are defined as those other than
legally bankrupt debtors, virtually bankrupt debtors, debtors who are likely
to go bankrupt, or debtors on close watch.

5. Money held in trust
(1) Money held in trust classified as trading
Millions of yen
2020
2019
Gains (losses)
Gains (losses)
included in
included in
Consolidated profit (loss) Consolidated profit (loss)
balance sheet
during
balance sheet
during
amount
the fiscal year
amount
the fiscal year

Money held in trust
classified as trading������

¥14,424

¥116

¥15,323

¥(15)

Money held in trust
classified as trading������

$132,536

$1,065

(2) No money held in trust was classified as held to maturity.
(3) No other money held in trust (other than money held in trust for trading
purposes and money in trust held to maturity).

6. Net unrealized gains/losses on available-forsale securities
Available-for-sale securities were valued at market and net unrealized gains/
losses on valuation were as follows:
Millions of yen
2019

2020

Net unrealized gains on
investment securities���������������������������
Deferred tax liabilities�����������������������������
Noncontrolling interests�����������������������
Net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale securities���������������

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

¥141,643
(39,331)
—

¥181,915
(51,301)
—

$1,301,506
(361,398)
—

¥102,311

¥130,613

$940,099

7. Loans and bills discounted
Loans and bills discounted at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the
following:
Millions of yen
2020

2019

Bills discounted������������������������������������������� ¥9,462 ¥12,684
Loans on bills������������������������������������������������
93,026
103,164
Loans on deeds������������������������������������������� 3,362,284
3,280,489
394,589
382,717
Overdrafts�������������������������������������������������������
Total������������������������������������������������������������� ¥3,859,363 ¥3,779,056

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

$86,942
854,782
30,894,826
3,625,737
$35,462,308

Loans in legal bankruptcy totaled ¥213 million ($1,957 thousand) and ¥429
million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Nonaccrual loans totaled
¥37,196 million ($341,780 thousand) and ¥38,333 million as of March 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Loans in legal bankruptcy are loans in which the
interest accrual is discontinued (excluding the portion recognized as bad
debts) based on management’s judgment of the collectability of principal or
interest resulting from the delay in payments of interest or principal for a
considerable period of time and other factors. Nonaccrual loans are loans in
which the interest accrual is discontinued, other than loans in legal bankruptcy and loans granting deferral of interest payment to the debtors in
financial difficulties to assist them in their recovery.
Past due loans (three months or more) as to principal or interest payments totaled ¥177 million ($1,626 thousand) and ¥112 million as of March
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Loans classified as loans in legal bankruptcy
and nonaccrual loans are excluded.
Restructured loans totaled ¥16,000 million ($147,018 thousand) and
¥13,735 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Such restructured loans are loans on which creditors grant concessions (e.g., reduction of
the stated interest rate, deferral of interest payments, extension of maturity
dates, waiver of the face amount, or other concessive measures) to the
debtors to assist them in recovering from financial difficulties and eventually
being able to pay creditors. Loans classified as loans in legal bankruptcy,
nonaccrual loans and past due three months or more are excluded.
The total face value of bills discounted at March 31, 2020 and 2019 was
¥9,523 million ($87,503 thousand) and ¥12,747 million, respectively.
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8. Foreign exchanges

9. Other assets

Foreign exchange assets and liabilities at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted
of the following:

Other assets at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
2019

2020

Assets:
Due from foreign
correspondents����������������������������������
Foreign bills of exchange
purchased����������������������������������������������
Foreign bills of exchange
receivable�����������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������
Liabilities:
Foreign bills of exchange sold�����
Accrued foreign bills of
exchange�����������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������

2020

¥6,946

¥7,553

$63,824

0

0

0

962
¥7,909

1,071
¥8,625

8,839
$72,672

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Prepaid expenses���������������������������������������
Accrued income�����������������������������������������
Derivatives�����������������������������������������������������
Other (Note 12)�������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

2020

2019

¥54
3,957
3,398
90,226
¥97,636

¥33
4,664
2,869
75,138
¥82,705

2020

$496
36,359
31,223
829,054
$897,142

10. Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

¥33

¥85

$303

6
¥40

8
¥93

55
$367

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Buildings���������������������������������������������������������
Land�������������������������������������������������������������������
Construction in progress����������������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

2020

2019

¥14,648
35,735
134
2,325
¥52,843

¥15,323
37,925
172
2,612
¥56,033

2020

$134,595
328,356
1,231
21,363
$485,555

Accumulated depreciation on tangible fixed assets at March 31, 2020 and
2019 amounted to ¥46,473 million ($427,023 thousand) and ¥46,790 million,
respectively.

11. Long-lived assets
The Group recognized impairment losses for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, as follows:
The Bank groups assets by branch, which is the minimum unit for management accounting. Subsidiaries group their assets by unit, which periodically manages
profit and loss. The Bank wrote down the carrying amounts to the recoverable amounts and recognized impairment losses of ¥949 million ($8,720 thousand) for
the year ended March 31, 2020 since the carrying amounts of the assets held by the above branches and other exceeded the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows. For the year ended March 31, 2019, no impairment losses were recorded.
The recoverable amounts of these assets were the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the
net selling price at disposition.
The discount rate used for computation of the present value of future cash flows was 5% and the net selling price was determined by quotations from real
estate appraisal information, less estimated costs to dispose.
Impairment losses
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
Location

Description

Classification

Shiga Prefecture
Business assets
Land, buildings and equipment����������������
Outside of Shiga
Prefecture
Business assets
Land, buildings and equipment����������������
Total����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Impairment losses are included in other expenses (Note 25).
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2020

2019

2020

¥636

¥—

$5,843

312
¥949

—
¥—

2,866
$8,720

12. Assets pledged

14. Land revaluation

Assets pledged as collateral and related liabilities at March 31, 2020 and
2019, were as follows:

Under the “Act of Land Revaluation,” promulgated on March 31, 1998 (final
revision on May 30, 2003), the Bank elected a one-time revaluation of its
own-use land to a value based on real estate appraisal information as of
March 31, 2002. The resulting land revaluation surplus represented unrealized appreciation of land and was stated, net of income taxes, as a component of equity. There was no effect on the consolidated statement of
income. Continuous readjustment is not permitted unless the land value
subsequently declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in
value should be removed from the land revaluation surplus account and
related deferred tax liabilities. At March 31, 2020 and 2019, the carrying
amount of the land after the above one-time revaluation exceeded the fair
value by ¥9,898 million ($90,949 thousand) and ¥9,460 million, respectively.

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Investment securities������������������������������
Loans and bills discounted������������������
Other assets (investments in
leases) ������������������������������������������������������������

2020
¥616,236
231,307

2019
¥620,591
—

2020
$5,662,372
2,125,397

629

757

5,779

Millions of yen
Related liabilities

Deposits����������������������������������������������������������
Call money and bills sold����������������������
Payables under securities lending
transactions������������������������������������������������
Borrowed money���������������������������������������

2020

2019

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

¥ 25,049
18,501

¥ 14,997
—

$ 230,166
169,999

235,538
437,738

218,995
341,788

2,164,274
4,022,218

In addition, other assets (deposits to central counterparty) of ¥41,071 million
($377,386 thousand) and ¥29,829 million at March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, and investment securities totaling ¥11,016 million at March 31,
2019, were pledged as collateral for settlement of exchange and as securities
for futures transactions and others. There were no investment securities
pledged as collateral at March 31, 2020.
Other assets include guarantee deposits of ¥461 million ($4,235 thousand) and ¥446 million at March 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively.

13. Overdrafts and commitment lines
Overdraft agreements and commitment line agreements are agreements
that oblige the Group to lend funds up to a certain limit agreed in advance.
The Group makes the loans upon the request of an obligor to draw down
funds under such loan agreements as long as there is no breach of the
various terms and conditions stipulated in the relevant loan agreements. The
unused commitment balance relating to these loan agreements at March
31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to ¥959,236 million ($8,814,077 thousand) and
¥945,525 million, respectively, and the amounts of unused commitments
whose original contract terms are within one year or unconditionally
cancelable at any time were ¥896,110 million ($8,234,034 thousand) and
¥884,841 million at March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. In many cases, the
term of the agreement expires without the loan ever being drawn down.
Therefore, the unused loan commitment will not necessarily affect future
cash flows. Conditions are included in certain loan agreements that allow
the Group to decline the request for a loan draw down or to reduce the
agreed limit amount where there is due cause to do so, such as when there
is a change in financial conditions or when it is necessary to do so in order to
protect the Group’s credit. The Group takes various measures to protect its
credit. Such measures include having the obligor pledge collateral to the
Group in the form of real estate, securities, etc. on signing the loan agreements or, in accordance with the Group’s established internal procedures,
confirming the obligor’s financial condition, etc. at regular intervals.

Method of revaluation
The fair values were determined by applying appropriate adjustments for
land shape and analysis on the appraisal specified in Article 2-3 of the
Enforcement Ordinance of the Act of Land Revaluation effective March 31,
1998.

15. Deposits
Deposits at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:
Millions of yen
2020

Current deposits����������������������������������������� ¥196,966
Ordinary deposits�������������������������������������� 2,521,215
Deposits at notice�������������������������������������
35,606
Time deposits���������������������������������������������� 2,021,652
110,993
Other deposits���������������������������������������������
Total������������������������������������������������������������� ¥4,886,433

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2019

2020

¥212,423
2,361,811
57,364
2,071,011
146,576
¥4,849,187

$1,809,850
23,166,544
327,170
18,576,238
1,019,875
$44,899,687

16. Borrowed money
At March 31, 2020 and 2019, the weighted-average interest rates applicable
to borrowed money were 0.43% and 0.71%, respectively.
Borrowed money at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:
Millions of yen
2019

2020

Subordinated loans����������������������������������
Borrowing from banks and other����
Total������������������������������������������������������������

¥ 10,000
441,079
¥451,079

¥ 20,000
347,480
¥367,480

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

$91,886
4,052,917
$4,144,803

Annual maturities of borrowed money at March 31, 2020 were as follows:
Year ending March 31

2021��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2022��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2023��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2024��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2025��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2026 and thereafter����������������������������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

¥345,883
41,040
661
63,319
163
11
¥451,079

$3,178,195
377,101
6,073
581,815
1,497
101
$4,144,803
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17. Bonds

20. Equity
(1) Capital stock and capital surplus

Bonds at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:
Thousands
of U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2020

Convertible bonds
with stock
acquisition rights
(*)������������������������������ ¥21,766

2020

Interest rate

Due

$200,000

—

June 23, 2020

2019

¥22,198

(*)	The above convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights are subordinated bonds
with non-viability write-off clause. The description of the said bonds was as follows:

Description of bonds���������������������������������������� Unsecured convertible bonds with
stock acquisition rights, payable in
Euro/U.S. dollars, due June 23, 2020
(subordinated bonds with nonviability write-off clause)
Class of shares to be issued��������������������������� Ordinary shares of common stock
Issue price for stock acquisition rights��� —
Exercise price of shares (*)������������������������������ $29.278
Total amount of debt securities issued������ $200,000 thousand
Total amount of shares issued by
exercising stock acquisition rights��������� —
Percentage of shares with stock
acquisition rights����������������������������������������������� 100%
Exercise period of stock acquisition
rights������������������������������������������������������������������������� From April 7, 2015 to June 9, 2020
Content and amount of assets in case
stock acquisition rights are exercised
by contributions of non-cash assets����� At the time of exercise of the respective stock acquisition rights, the
bonds pertaining to the stock
acquisition rights shall be contributed, and the price of such bonds
shall be the same amount as their
face value.
(*)	The Bank plans to propose a year-end dividend of ¥22.50 ($0.207) per share for the
year ended March 31, 2020 to be resolved at the Bank’s ordinary general shareholders’ meeting on June 25, 2020. The annual dividend amount for the year ended
March 31, 2020 will be determined by this resolution and the conversion price will
be adjusted retroactively as of April 1, 2020 from $29.278 to $29.159 in accordance
with the conversion price adjustment clause of the unsecured convertible bonds
with stock acquisition rights, payable in Euro/U.S. dollars, due 2020 (subordinated
bonds with non-viability write-off clause).

18. Other liabilities
Other liabilities at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Accrued income taxes����������������������������
Accrued expenses�������������������������������������
Unearned income�������������������������������������
Derivatives�����������������������������������������������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

2020

2019

¥ 1,876
4,688
8,893
15,107
15,421
¥45,988

¥ 3,481
5,076
8,126
8,115
17,258
¥42,057

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

$ 17,237
43,076
81,714
138,812
141,698
$422,567

19. Acceptances and guarantees
All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are
reflected in “Acceptances and guarantees.” As a contra account, “Customers’
liabilities for acceptances and guarantees,” is shown as an asset representing
the Bank’s right of indemnity from the applicants.
The amounts of “Acceptances and guarantees” and “Customers’ liabilities
for acceptances and guarantees” amounting to ¥27,537 million ($253,027
thousand) and ¥31,261 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively,
were set off because those which were relevant to corporate bonds and the
guaranteed bonds were held by the Bank itself.
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The Bank implemented a 1-for-5 reverse stock split on October 1, 2018. As a
result, the number of shares of common stock issued decreased from
265,450 thousand shares to 53,090 thousand shares. The numbers of shares
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity are calculated on the
assumption that the reverse stock split was implemented on April 1, 2017.

(2) Companies Act
Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the
“Companies Act”). The significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect
financial and accounting matters are summarized below:
(a) Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during
the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the
shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria such as: (1)
having a Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having an
Audit & Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors is
prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal term by its articles of
incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for
dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the company has
prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. However, the Bank cannot do so
because it does not meet all the above criteria.
The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind
(non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional requirements.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon
resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the
company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on the
amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The
limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained at
no less than ¥3 million.
(b) Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve and surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% (20% for banks
pursuant to the Banking Act) of dividends must be appropriated as a legal
reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a
component of capital surplus), depending on the equity account charged
upon the payment of such dividends, until the total of the aggregate
amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% (100% for
banks pursuant to the Banking Act) of common stock. Under the Companies
Act, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be
reversed without limitation. The Companies Act also provides that common
stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and
retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts under certain
conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.
(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount
available for distribution to the shareholders that is determined by a specific
formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as
a separate component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury
stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate
component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

(3) Appropriations of retained earnings
The following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2020 will be
proposed at the Bank’s ordinary general shareholders’ meeting held on June
25, 2020.
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

¥1,129

$10,373

Cash dividends (dividend amount per share:
¥22.5 ($0.207))��������������������������������������������������������������������������

21. Stock options
The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2020, are as follows:
Persons
granted

Number of
options
granted (*)

2013 Stock
Option

4 directors

4,780 shares

August 20,
2013

¥1
($ 0.01)

From August
21, 2013 to
August 20,
2043

2014 Stock
Option

6 directors

5,860 shares

August 20,
2014

¥1
($ 0.01)

From August
21, 2014 to
August 20,
2044

2015 Stock
Option

6 directors

5,760 shares

August 20,
2015

¥1
($ 0.01)

From August
21, 2015 to
August 20,
2045

2016 Stock
Option

6 directors

8,680 shares

August 19,
2016

¥1
($ 0.01)

From August
20, 2016 to
August 19,
2046

2017 Stock
Option

7 directors

8,140 shares

August 18,
2017

¥1
($ 0.01)

From August
19, 2017 to
August 18,
2047

2018 Stock
Option

7 directors

8,200 shares

August 20,
2018

¥1
($ 0.01)

From August
21, 2018 to
August 20,
2048

Description

2019 Stock
Option

8 directors

10,680 shares

Date of
grant

August 20,
2019

Exercise
price

¥1
($ 0.01)

Exercise
period

From August
21, 2019 to
August 20,
2049

(*)	The number of options granted has been restated, as appropriate, to reflect a 1-for-5
reverse stock split on October 1, 2018.

2016 Stock
Option

2014 Stock
Option

Non-vested
April 1, 2019—Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2020—Outstanding

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

2,500
—
—
(2,500)
—

Vested
April 1, 2019—Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2020—Outstanding

10,920
—
(2,240)
—
8,680

9,980
—
(1,840)
—
8,140

7,500
2,500
(1,800)
—
8,200

2019 Stock
Option
Year Ended March 31, 2020

Non-vested
April 1, 2019—Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2020—Outstanding

—
10,680
—
8,010
2,670

Vested
April 1, 2019—Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2020—Outstanding

—
8,010
—
—
8,010
2013 Stock
Option

Exercise price
Average stock price at exercise (*)
Fair value price at grant date (*)

2015 Stock
Option

Year Ended March 31, 2020

April 1, 2019—Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2020—Outstanding

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

Vested
April 1, 2019—Outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2020—Outstanding

5,660
—
(880)
—
4,780

6,620
—
(760)
—
5,860

6,460
—
(700)
—
5,760

¥1
($ 0.01)
¥2,494
($22.92)
¥2,640
($24.26)
2016 Stock
Option

Exercise price

Non-vested

2018 Stock
Option

Year Ended March 31, 2020

The stock option activity is as follows:
2013 Stock
Option

2017 Stock
Option

Average stock price at exercise (*)
Fair value price at grant date (*)

¥1
($ 0.01)
¥2,494
($22.92)
¥2,365
($21.73)

2014 Stock
Option

¥1
($ 0.01)
¥2,494
($22.92)
¥2,945
($27.06)
2017 Stock
Option

¥1
($ 0.01)
¥2,494
($22.92)
¥2,785
($25.59)

2015 Stock
Option

¥1
($ 0.01)
¥2,494
($22.92)
¥3,170
($29.13)
2018 Stock
Option

¥1
($ 0.01)
¥2,494
($22.92)
¥2,800
($25.73)
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25. Other expenses

2019 Stock
Option

Exercise price
Average stock price at exercise (*)
Fair value price at grant date (*)

Other expenses for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of
the following:

¥1
($ 0.01)
—
—
¥2,204
($20.25)

2020

(*)	Average stock price at exercise and fair value price at grant date have been restated,
as appropriate, to reflect a 1-for-5 reverse stock split on October 1, 2018.

The Assumptions Used to Measure the Fair Value of the 2019 Stock Option
Estimate method:
Volatility of stock price:
Estimated remaining outstanding period:
Estimated dividend:
Risk free interest rate:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Black-Scholes option-pricing model
20.354%
1 year and 7 months
¥42.50 per share
0.281% negative

Provision of allowance for possible
loan losses���������������������������������������������������
Losses on sales of stocks and other
securities�������������������������������������������������������
Charge-off of loans and bills
discounted��������������������������������������������������
Losses on devaluation of stocks
and other securities�������������������������������
Losses on disposal of fixed assets���
Losses on impairment of
long-lived assets��������������������������������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

2019

2020

¥2,172

¥3,447

$19,957

998

1,454

9,170

1,052

798

9,666

243
139

370
43

2,232
1,277

949
563
¥6,119

—
733
¥6,847

8,720
5,173
$56,225

22. Other operating income
Other operating income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Gains on foreign exchange
transactions-net���������������������������������������
Gains on sales of bonds�������������������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

2020

2019

¥532
4,611
13,955
¥19,099

¥530
3,936
13,508
¥17,975

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

$4,888
42,368
128,227
$175,493

Other income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the
following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2019

2020

¥2,381

¥11,199

$21,878

395
6,027
¥8,804

569
2,415
¥14,184

3,629
55,379
$80,896

2020

Gains on sales of stocks and
other securities�����������������������������������������
Recovery of claims previously
charged-off�������������������������������������������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

Gains (losses) related to bonds for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
consisted of the following:

2020

23. Other income

Millions of yen

26. Gains (losses) related to bonds
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2020

Gains (losses) related to bonds
including Japanese government
bonds:
Gains on sales of bonds�������������������
Losses on sales of bonds����������������
Losses on devaluation of
bonds�������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������
Losses on derivatives:���������������������������
Gains related to bonds�������������������������

2019

¥4,611
(1,354)

¥3,936
(1,489)

$42,368
(12,441)

(50)
¥3,207
¥(2,137)
¥1,069

—
¥2,446
¥(2,328)
¥117

(459)
$29,467
$(19,636)
$9,822

27. Gains (losses) related to stocks and other
securities
Gains (losses) related to stocks and other securities for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2019

2020

¥2,381

¥11,199

$21,878

(998)

(1,454)

(9,170)

(243)

(370)

(2,232)

¥1,140

¥9,374

$10,475

2020

24. Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Losses on sales of government
bonds�������������������������������������������������������������
Expenses on derivatives other than
for hedging�������������������������������������������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

96

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020

2019

¥ 1,354

¥ 1,489

$ 12,441

2,137
12,932
¥16,424

2,328
12,719
¥16,537

19,636
118,827
$150,914

2020

2020

Gains (losses) related to stocks
and other securities:
Gains on sales of stocks and
other securities�����������������������������������
Losses on sales of stocks and
other securities�����������������������������������
Losses on devaluation of stocks
and other securities�������������������������
Gains related to stocks and other
securities������������������������������������������������������

28. Leases
Lessor
One subsidiary leases certain equipment and other assets.
As stated in Note 2 (r) ii, finance lease transactions other than those in
which ownership is fully transferred to the lessee are accounted for in a
similar manner to ordinary sales and transactions, effective from the year
ended March 31, 2009.
Investments in leases included in other assets on the balance sheets as
of March 31, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Gross lease receivables��������������������������
Unguaranteed residual values�����������
Unearned interest income�������������������
Investments in leases������������������������������

2020

2019

¥17,388
463
(1,557)
¥16,294

¥16,964
476
(1,573)
¥15,867

2020

$159,772
4,254
(14,306)
$149,719

Maturities of lease receivables for finance leases that are deemed to
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are as of March
31, 2020 are as follows:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

¥373
371
346
226
17
—

$3,427
3,408
3,179
2,076
156
—

2021��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2022��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2023��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2024��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2025��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2026 and thereafter����������������������������������������������������������������

Maturities of gross lease receivables related to investments in leases as
of March 31, 2020 are as follows:

2021��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2022��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2023��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2024��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2025��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2026 and thereafter����������������������������������������������������������������

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

¥5,488
4,413
3,350
2,263
1,218
653

$50,427
40,549
30,781
20,793
11,191
6,000

1. Defined benefit plan (except for the plan adopting the simplified method)
(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March
31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Balance at beginning of year�������������
Current service cost���������������������������
Interest cost��������������������������������������������
Actuarial losses (gains)���������������������
Benefits paid�������������������������������������������
Prior service cost����������������������������������
Balance at end of year����������������������������

¥3
5
¥9

¥ 5
6
¥11

2019

¥48,756
1,808
209
(29)
(3,195)
—
¥47,549

Balance at beginning of year�������������
Expected return on plan
assets��������������������������������������������������������
Actuarial gains (losses)���������������������
Contribution from the
employer������������������������������������������������
Benefits paid�������������������������������������������
Balance at end of year����������������������������

2020

2019

¥45,861

¥43,083

$421,400

890
(1,540)

727
1,441

8,177
(14,150)

1,773
(1,336)
¥45,648

1,892
(1,284)
¥45,861

16,291
(12,276)
$419,443

$27
45
$82

Millions of yen

Funded defined
benefit obligation�����������������������������������
Plan assets������������������������������������������������������
Net liability arising from
the balance sheet�����������������������������������

Liability for retirement benefits��������
Asset for retirement benefits��������������
Net liability arising from
the balance sheet�����������������������������������

The Bank and consolidated subsidiaries have either funded or unfunded
defined benefit plans. The Bank’s funded defined benefit corporate pension
plan (contract type) provides lump-sum or annuity payments, the amounts
of which are determined based on the length of service and certain other
factors. The Bank’s lump-sum severance payment plan, which became a
funded plan as a result of setting a retirement benefits trust, provides
lump-sum payments determined based on the length of service, position,
and certain other factors. As of October 1, 2017, the Bank has transferred a
part of its funded defined benefit corporate pension plan to a defined
contribution plan. The consolidated subsidiaries’ unfunded lump-sum
severance payment plans are based on a simplified method in the calculation of their liability for retirement benefits and retirement benefit costs.

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020

2019

¥47,358
(45,648)

¥47,549
(45,861)

$435,155
(419,443)

¥ 1,710

¥ 1,688

$ 15,712

2019

2020

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

¥1,710
—

¥1,688
—

$15,712
—

¥1,710

¥1,688

$15,712

(4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Millions of yen

29. Retirement benefit plans

2020

(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan
assets:

2020

2020

2020

$436,910
15,868
1,874
3,436
(22,944)
—
$435,155

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2019

2020

Due within one year��������������������������������
Due after one year������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������

2020

¥47,549
1,727
204
374
(2,497)
—
¥47,358

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2020 and
2019, were as follows:

The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating
leases as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2019

2020

Service cost���������������������������������������������������
Interest cost��������������������������������������������������
Expected return on plan assets��������
Recognized actuarial gains��������������������
Amortization of prior service cost���
Net periodic benefit costs��������������������

¥1,727
204
(890)
(632)
—
¥ 408

¥1,808
209
(727)
(6)
—
¥1,284

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
2020

$15,868
1,874
(8,177)
(5,807)
—
$ 3,748
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(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income
tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for the years
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2020

Prior service cost����������������������������������������
Actuarial losses (gains)���������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������

¥—
2,547
¥2,547

(2) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan
assets:

2019

2020

¥—
(1,464)
¥(1,464)

$—
23,403
$23,403

2020

Unfunded defined benefit
obligation����������������������������������������������������
Net liability arising from the
balance sheet��������������������������������������������

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income
(before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit
plans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Unrecognized prior service cost������
Unrecognized actuarial gains������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������

2020

2019

¥—
(1,285)
¥(1,285)

¥—
(3,833)
¥(3,833)

$—
(11,807)
$(11,807)

2020

2019

2020

(7) Plan assets:
a. Components of plan assets

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2019

¥130

¥121

$1,194

¥130

¥121

$1,194
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2020

Liability for retirement benefits��������
Net liability arising from
the balance sheet�����������������������������������

2019

17%
54
9
20
100%

16%
53
10
21
100%

(Note) Total plan assets included retirement benefits trust of 45% and 45%, for the years
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, mainly consisting of 5 stocks, which were
set for a corporate pension plan and a lump-sum payment plan.

¥121

$1,194

¥130

¥121

$1,194

(3) Net periodic benefit costs recognized in the simplified method for the
years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥22 million ($202 thousand) and ¥17 million, respectively.

The Bank’s required contribution to the defined contribution plan for the
year ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were ¥326 million ($2,995 thousand)
and ¥334 million, respectively.

30. Income taxes
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred
tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the
allocation of plan assets and the long-term rates of return which are
expected currently and in the future from the various components of the
plan assets.
(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were
set forth as follows:
2019

2020

Discount rate�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Plan assets (except for retirement benefits
trust)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Plan assets (retirement benefits trust)�������������������
Estimated rate of salary increase�������������������������������������

0.43%

0.43%

3.58%
0.00%
4.10%

3.01%
0.00%
4.10%

2. Defined benefit plan adopting the simplified method
(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation adopting the simplified
method for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2020

98

2020

¥130

3. Defined contribution plan

Bonds�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Stocks�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Cash and cash equivalents�������������������������������������������������
General accounts����������������������������������������������������������������������
Total���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Balance at beginning of year�������������
Net periodic benefit costs��������������
Benefits paid�������������������������������������������
Contribution to the plan�����������������
Balance at end of year����������������������������

2020

¥121
21
(12)
—
¥130

2019

¥122
16
(17)
—
¥121

2020

$1,111
192
(110)
—
$1,194

2020

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for possible loan
losses��������������������������������������������������������
Devaluation of stocks and other
securities������������������������������������������������
Liability for employees’
retirement benefits��������������������������
Depreciation�������������������������������������������
Accrued enterprise tax���������������������
Deferred losses on derivatives
under hedge accounting�������������
Other�����������������������������������������������������������
Less valuation allowance����������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������
Deferred tax liabilities:
Reserve for advance
depreciation of fixed assets��������
Net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale securities���������
Defined retirement benefit
plans����������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������
Net deferred tax liabilities�����������

2019

2020

¥10,201

¥10,149

$93,733

4,979

5,081

45,750

3,222
1,496
179

3,909
1,395
252

29,605
13,746
1,644

3,656
1,934
(13,785)
¥11,885

1,705
1,910
(13,748)
¥10,655

33,593
17,770
(126,665)
$109,207

(175)

(175)

(1,608)

(39,331)

(51,301)

(361,398)

(391)
(39,898)
¥(28,013)

(1,167)
(52,643)
¥(41,987)

(3,592)
(366,608)
$(257,401)

31. Financial instruments and related
disclosures
1. Overall situation concerning financial instruments
(1) Basic policy for financial instruments
As a regional financial institution with its main business base in Shiga
Prefecture, the Group provides financial services centered on banking
operations.
The Group’s main operations are to extend loans to customers in its
business area, and make investments in securities by mainly using funds that
are received as deposits from customers and those that are obtained
through the financial market.
To carry out these operations, the Group has financial assets and financial
liabilities that are largely subject to interest rate volatility. To prevent adverse
effects from such interest rate volatility, the Group conducts Asset Liability
Management (ALM), the comprehensive management of assets and
liabilities.
(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
The financial assets held by the Group are primarily loans to customers
within its business area and are subject to credit risk of incurring losses when
the value of such assets declines or disappears due to deterioration in the
financial condition of its customers. The Group’s domestic loan portfolio
attempts to distribute risk by industry sector to eliminate its exposure to
credit risk caused by changes in the business environment in certain
industries.
The Group holds investment securities, primarily comprised of bonds,
corporate stocks and investment trusts, for the following purposes: to sell
them to customers, for purely investment purposes, and for strategic
investment. These are subject to market risk of incurring potential losses due
to fluctuations of interest rates, foreign exchange rates, stock markets and
others, and the credit risk of the issuers.
Foreign currency-denominated loans and bonds are subject to foreign
exchange risk in addition to the risks as described above. They are managed
to reduce foreign exchange risk by procuring foreign currency funds through
currency swaps, repurchase transactions, or call transactions.
Financial liabilities are primarily deposits from customers as well as
borrowed money and bonds with stock acquisition rights. Borrowed money
and bonds with stock acquisition rights are — under certain conditions,
such as when the Group is unable to access the market — subject to risks
that losses are incurred due to an inability to secure required funds or being
forced to raise funds at significantly higher than normal interest rates.
Moreover, some of the Group’s borrowings are made at variable interest rates
and are subject to risks of losses from increasing fund procurement costs
associated with rising interest rates.
To respond to customer needs and hedge market risks for assets and
liabilities, the Group uses derivative transactions, including interest rate
swaps, currency swaps, currency options, and forward exchange contracts.
For some of these transactions, the Group applies hedge accounting based
on internal regulations that comply with the “JICPA Practical Guidelines for
Financial Instruments” and the Group’s own hedging policies.
To obtain short-swing profits, the Group transacts bond futures contracts,
bond options, and stock price index futures trading after setting position
limit and loss limits amounts.
These derivative transactions include market risk as well as credit risk.
(3) Risk management for financial instruments
(i) Credit risk management
Recognizing credit risk as the most important risk to business management
from the standpoint of its impact, the Group has established regulations and
standards pertaining to such risk. It has also developed a borrower rating
system based on a Foundation Internal Ratings-based approach and has
built a credit risk management system appropriate to its needs.
Notably, the Group has developed a rating system that involves asset
self-assessments. Under this system, for example, the Business Management
Department reports the results of its own asset ratings at meetings such as
the Meeting of Managing Directors.

With respect to individual credit management, the Group has instituted
its “Basic Rules of Loan Business,” in which it has clearly defined the way of
thinking and a code of conduct to which all employees involved in the loan
business should adhere. It has also established basic procedures to follow
when making credit decisions or managing credit, along with putting in
place a system that enables executives and employees to make credit
decisions in accordance with the principles of public benefit, security,
profitability, liquidity, and growth potential. More specifically, the Group has
developed and is operating a credit management system that handles credit
assessment, credit limits, credit information management, and internal
ratings; sets guarantees and collateral; and deals with problem debts of
companies (or corporate groups) or individual projects. This credit management system is being implemented in every bank branch and the Credit
Supervision Department.
With respect to extending credit to overseas borrowers, the Group
manages it by setting a credit limit for each country at the Meeting of
Managing Directors each fiscal year, after taking into account the foreign
currency conditions and the political and economic situation of the country
in which the borrower resides.
With respect to conducting market transactions for securities or other
instruments, a limit is set semiannually at the Meeting of Managing Directors
for bond issuer credit risk and counterparty risk for derivative and financial
transactions, and the credit status and the market prices are managed on a
daily basis. The Group has established a system in which reports about those
risks are routinely given to the Meeting of Managing Directors.
(ii) Market risk management
The Group has compiled a set of Market Risk Management Rules with the
goal of upgrading market risk management, strengthening internal controls,
and ensuring sound management. To achieve stable profits, the Group
institutes a financial plan and risk management policy semiannually and is
working to build an appropriate risk management system.
1) Interest rate risk management
As interest rate risk inevitably arises in banking business operations, the
Group manages all assets and liabilities (including off-balance transactions),
such as deposits, loans, and securities, in a comprehensive manner through
ALM.
Along with the aforementioned Market Risk Management Rules, the
Group has established standards for risk management methods and
reporting procedures. The Group conducts monitoring through such models
as Value at Risk (VaR) and the maturity ladder approach, and reports to the
ALM Committee on a regular basis.
2) Exchange rate risk management
For exchange rate volatility risk, the Group sets position limits at the Meeting
of Managing Directors to manage positions that are subject to exchange
rate risk. The Group controls positions by using derivative transactions,
including foreign currency transactions and currency swaps.
The Group establishes an acceptable level of risk using VaR and manages
the level of risk on a daily basis so that it stays within an acceptable range.
3) Price volatility risk management
To rigorously manage price volatility risk for transactions, including securities,
the Group has divided the organization into a market transaction sector,
business management sector, and risk management sector.
For market transactions including securities, the Group takes into
account overall Group risk and return, based on a financial plan and a risk
management policy, and formulates a business management plan in the
market sector.
When making investments, the Group calculates position amounts,
gains, and losses as well as VaR and Basis Point Value (BPV) based on the
abovementioned policy and plan. The extent to which the Group complies
with the established acceptable risk limit and other risk limits is monitored
on a daily basis and is reported to management.
4) Derivative transaction management
With respect to derivative transactions, the divisions concerned with the
execution of transactions, the evaluation of hedge effectiveness, and
business management have been separated, and an internal checking
system has been established. Because a majority of the Group’s derivative
transactions are performed for the purposes of hedging and cover transactions to customer transactions, the Group manages them so that asset and
liability risks and market risks are offset with each other.

SHIGA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2020

99

5) Quantitative information regarding market risks
Regarding market risks, the Group measures the quantitative risk of interest
rate risks and stock price volatility risks through VaR, a statistical method.
Principally by reporting these risks to the ALM Committee and other
organizations on a regular basis, the Group ensures appropriate monitoring
and management. In calculating the risk amounts, the Group adopts a
historical simulation method (a holding period of one year, a confidence
interval of 99%, and an observing period of two years).
Interest rate risks
The Group measures interest rate risks of all its assets and liabilities,
including loans, securities and deposits, and derivative transactions.
The Group’s interest rate risk amounts stood at ¥9,213 million ($84,654
thousand) as of March 31, 2020 and ¥5,753 million as of March 31, 2019.
Regarding liquid deposits, such as ordinary deposits, the Group
handles some as deposits that remain with the Group for an extended
period and manages them by allocating them to each period category
based on an internal model.
Stock price volatility risks
The Group holds certain shares for strategic investment and purely
investment purposes. The volatility risk amounts of the prices of such
shares stood at ¥45,345 million ($416,659 thousand) as of March 31, 2020,
and ¥70,288 million as of March 31, 2019.
Backtesting
To verify the appropriateness of the risk amounts that are measured
through VaR, the Group carries out backtesting in which VaR is compared
with gains and losses. In this way, the Group analyzes the effectiveness of
the risk measurement method. However, because VaR statistically
measures the amounts based on the historical market volatility, results
may vary due to assumptions, measuring methods, and other factors. In
addition, risks may not be able to be appropriately captured when the
market environment changes drastically.
Interest rate risks and stock price volatility risks that are held by the
Bank’s consolidated subsidiaries are excluded from the calculation of the
market risk amount as the impact from such risks on the Group is limited.
(iii) Liquidity risk management related to financing
The Group has compiled a set of Liquidity Risk Management Rules under a
basic policy of clearly understanding its cash position and ensuring stable
financing. In this way, it strives to establish an appropriate risk management
system.
With respect to daily financing, the Group monitors and manages the
financial environment, the balance of realizable current assets, the expected
amount of cash outflows, and other such factors. The Group reports the
financing situation and other related matters to the ALM Committee on a
regular basis.
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2. Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value and the consolidated balance sheet amount as of March 31, 2020
and 2019, are shown below. Immaterial accounts on the consolidated
balance sheet are not included in the table below. Some instruments, such
as unlisted stocks, whose fair value cannot be reliably determined, are not
included in the table below (see Note 2).
Millions of yen
2020
Consolidated
balance sheet
amount

Fair value

Cash and due from banks������������������������ ¥934,834 ¥934,834
Investment securities
Trading securities������������������������������������
—
—
Available-for-sale securities��������������� 1,299,561 1,299,561
—
Loans and bills discounted���������������������� 3,859,363
Allowance for possible loan
losses (*1)���������������������������������������������������
(27,412)
—
3,831,950 3,859,117
Assets total��������������������������������������������������������� 6,066,346 6,093,513
Deposits�������������������������������������������������������������� 4,886,433 4,886,683
66,683
66,685
Negotiable certificates of deposit�������
Call money and bills sold��������������������������
136,386
136,386
Payables under securities lending
transactions����������������������������������������������������
235,538
235,538
451,079
451,088
Borrowed money�������������������������������������������
Liabilities total�������������������������������������������������� 5,776,121 5,776,382
Derivative transactions (*2)
Deferred hedge accounting is
298
298
not applied�����������������������������������������������
Deferred hedge accounting is
(12,007)
(12,007)
applied���������������������������������������������������������
Derivative transactions total������������������� ¥(11,709) ¥(11,709)

Difference

¥—
—
—
—
—
—
27,166
27,166
249
2
—
—
8
260

—
—
¥—

Millions of yen
2019
Consolidated
balance sheet
amount

Fair value

Cash and due from banks������������������������ ¥811,032 ¥811,032
Investment securities
Trading securities������������������������������������
7,744
7,744
Available-for-sale securities��������������� 1,338,171
1,338,171
Loans and bills discounted���������������������� 3,779,056
—
Allowance for possible loan
losses (*1)���������������������������������������������������
(26,421)
—
3,752,635
3,777,053
Assets total��������������������������������������������������������� 5,909,582
5,934,001
Deposits�������������������������������������������������������������� 4,849,187
4,849,487
84,955
84,957
Negotiable certificates of deposit�������
Call money and bills sold��������������������������
49,989
49,989
Payables under securities lending
transactions����������������������������������������������������
218,995
218,995
367,480
367,819
Borrowed money�������������������������������������������
Liabilities total�������������������������������������������������� 5,570,607
5,571,249
Derivative transactions (*2)
Deferred hedge accounting is
not applied�����������������������������������������������
357
357
Deferred hedge accounting is
(5,603)
(5,603)
applied���������������������������������������������������������
Derivative transactions total������������������� ¥(5,246) ¥(5,246)

Difference

¥—
—
—
—
—
24,418
24,418
300
2
—
—
339
642

—
—
¥—

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020
Consolidated
balance sheet
amount

Fair value

Cash and due from banks������������������������ $8,589,855 $8,589,855
Investment securities
Trading securities������������������������������������
—
—
Available-for-sale securities��������������� 11,941,201 11,941,201
Loans and bills discounted���������������������� 35,462,308
—
Allowance for possible loan
losses (*1)���������������������������������������������������
(251,879)
—
35,210,419 35,460,047
Assets total��������������������������������������������������������� 55,741,486 55,991,114
Deposits�������������������������������������������������������������� 44,899,687 44,901,984
Negotiable certificates of deposit�������
612,726
612,744
Call money and bills sold�������������������������� 1,253,202
1,253,202
Payables under securities lending
transactions���������������������������������������������������� 2,164,274
2,164,274
4,144,886
Borrowed money������������������������������������������� 4,144,803
Liabilities total�������������������������������������������������� 53,074,712 53,077,111
Derivative transactions (*2)
Deferred hedge accounting is
2,738
2,738
not applied�����������������������������������������������
Deferred hedge accounting is
(110,328)
(110,328)
applied���������������������������������������������������������
Derivative transactions total������������������� $(107,589) $(107,589)

Difference

$—
—
—
—
—
249,618
249,618
2,287
18
—
—
73
2,389

—
—
$—

(*1)	General allowance for loan losses and specific allowance for loan losses provided to
“Loans and bills discounted” are separately presented in the above table.
(*2)	Derivative transactions recorded in “Other assets” and “Other liabilities” are aggregated and shown herein. Assets and liabilities attributable to the derivative
transactions are totally offset and the net liability position as a consequence of
offsetting would be represented with brackets.

(Note 1) Valuation method of financial instruments
Assets
(1) Cash and due from banks
As fair values of cash and due from banks without maturity approximate
book values, the Group deems the book values to be the fair values. Since
contractual terms of cash and due from banks with maturities are short (i.e.,
less than one year) and fair values of these instruments approximate book
values, the Group deems the book values to be the fair values.
(2) Securities
Fair values of securities that have market prices are based on their market
prices.
With respect to those without market prices, the Group uses the present
value that is calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the principal
based on contracts, using an interest rate obtained by adjusting interest
rates available in the interbank market in accordance with categories of
internal ratings and terms, taking into account the credit risk premium and
the liquidity risk premium.
Fair value information for securities by classification is included in Note 4
“Securities.”
(3) Loans and bills discounted
As fair values of loans and bills discounted with short contractual terms (i.e.,
less than one year) approximate book values, the Group deems the book
values to be the fair values.
Regarding loans with long contract terms (i.e., one year or longer), those
with floating interest rates reflect the market rate in the short term. Consequently, unless the credit conditions of borrowers have not significantly
changed after the execution of the loans, the book value of the loans is
presented as the fair value, as the fair value approximates the book value.
With respect to fair values of loans with long contract terms with fixed
interest rates, the Group uses the present value that is calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the principal based on contracts, using an
interest rate obtained by adjusting interest rates available in the interbank

market in accordance with categories of internal ratings and terms, taking
into account the credit risk premium and the liquidity risk premium. Meanwhile, the fair value of certain loans (including consumer loans) is calculated
by discounting the future cash flows of the principal based on contracts,
using an interest rate considered to be applicable in cases when similar
loans are executed.
With respect to claims against legally bankrupt debtors, virtually bankrupt debtors and debtors who are likely to go bankrupt (potentially bankrupt
debtors), since credit losses are calculated based on the present value of the
expected future cash flows or the estimated amounts that the Group would
be able to collect from collateral and guarantees, fair values approximate the
consolidated balance sheet amount net of the currently expected credit loss
amount, and the Group thus deems such amounts to be fair value.
Regarding loans, for those without a fixed maturity due to loan characteristics such as limiting loans to within the value of collaterals, the Group
deems the book value to be the fair value, since the fair value is expected to
approximate the book value based on the estimated repayment period,
interest rate, and other conditions.
Liabilities
(1) Deposits and (2) Negotiable certificates of deposit
For demand deposits, the Group deems the payment amounts required on
the consolidated balance sheet date (i.e., book values) to be the fair value.
The fair value of time deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit with
short deposit terms (i.e., less than one year) approximate the book value, and
the Group deems the book value to be the fair value. With respect to
deposits with long deposit terms (i.e., one year or longer), the Group uses
the present value calculated by discounting future cash flows of the
principal based on contracts, using the interest rate that would apply to
newly accepted deposits in accordance with the categories of deposit terms.
(3) Call money and bills sold and (4) Payables under securities lending
transactions
Since contractual terms of these instruments are short (i.e., less than one
year) and fair values of these instruments approximate book values, the
Group deems the book values to be the fair values.
(5) Borrowed money
As the fair value of borrowed money with short contractual terms (i.e., less
than one year) approximates the book value, the Group deems the book
value to be the fair value.
Regarding borrowed money with long contractual terms (i.e., one year or
longer), for floating rate borrowings, the book value is presented as the fair
value, because the fair value approximates book value. This is because the
floating rate borrowings reflect the market interest rate in a short period and
there has been no significant change in our credit conditions or in the credit
conditions of our consolidated subsidiaries before or after the borrowings
were made. With respect to fixed rate borrowings, the Group uses the
present value calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the
principal based on contracts, using an interest rate obtained by adjusting
interest rates available in the interbank market in accordance with categories
of terms, taking into account the Bank’s credit risk premium.
Meanwhile, fair values of borrowings of consolidated subsidiaries are
calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the principal based on
contracts, using interest rates considered to be applicable in cases when the
similar borrowings are made.
Derivatives
Fair value information for derivatives is included in Note 32 “Fair value
information on derivative transactions.”
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(Note 2) Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined
The following instruments are not included in “Available-for-sales securities” in the above table showing the fair value of financial instruments.
Consolidated balance sheet amount
Millions of yen

Unlisted stocks (*1) (*2)���������������������������������������������������������������������
Investment in capital of partnership and others (*3)�����
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2020

2019

¥3,853
3,692
¥7,545

¥3,871
2,230
¥6,102

2020

$35,403
33,924
$69,328

(*1) Fair value of unlisted stocks is exempt from disclosure because they do not have a market price and their fair value cannot be reliably determined.
(*2) Impairment losses for unlisted stocks amounted to ¥15 million ($137 thousand) and ¥86 million for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
(*3)	Fair value of investment in capital of partnership and others is exempt from disclosure because partnership assets are composed of unlisted stock and others and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined.

(Note 3) Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities
Millions of yen
2020
1 year or less

Due from banks�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Available-for-sale securities���������������������������������������������������������
Japanese government bonds������������������������������������������������
Japanese local government bonds�������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds�������������������������������������������������������
Others����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Loans and bills discounted (*)������������������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥896,491
133,595
21,000
42,857
33,591
36,145
929,566
¥1,959,653

1 to 3 years

¥—
169,407
—
32,521
68,554
68,331
764,871
¥934,279

3 to 5 years

5 to 7 years

¥—
113,101
16,000
18,605
23,812
54,683
557,557
¥670,658

¥—
59,717
—
21,453
27,861
10,402
372,416
¥432,133

7 to 10 years

¥—
142,653
10,000
86,887
23,600
22,166
361,766
¥504,419

Over 10 years

¥—
439,099
199,000
11,450
180,005
48,643
807,786
¥1,246,886

Millions of yen
2019
1 year or less

Due from banks�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Available-for-sale securities���������������������������������������������������������
Japanese government bonds������������������������������������������������
Japanese local government bonds�������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds�������������������������������������������������������
Others����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Loans and bills discounted (*)������������������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥777,817
220,197
48,000
73,320
70,320
28,556
889,025
¥1,887,040

1 to 3 years

¥—
226,901
21,000
54,518
65,687
85,696
752,316
¥979,218

3 to 5 years

5 to 7 years

¥—
133,105
4,000
26,815
38,377
63,913
557,491
¥690,597

¥—
50,599
12,000
11,142
17,423
10,033
346,657
¥397,257

7 to 10 years

¥—
81,025
—
34,962
18,314
27,748
396,575
¥477,600

Over 10 years

¥—
363,368
167,000
12,800
161,757
21,810
770,012
¥1,133,380

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020
1 year or less

Due from banks������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� $8,237,535
Available-for-sale securities���������������������������������������������������������
1,227,556
Japanese government bonds������������������������������������������������
192,961
393,797
Japanese local government bonds�������������������������������������
Japanese corporate bonds�������������������������������������������������������
308,655
Others����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
332,123
8,541,449
Loans and bills discounted (*)������������������������������������������������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� $18,006,551

1 to 3 years

3 to 5 years

5 to 7 years

7 to 10 years

Over 10 years

$—
1,556,620
—
298,823
629,918
627,869
7,028,126
$8,584,756

$—
1,039,244
147,018
170,954
218,799
502,462
5,123,192
$6,162,436

$—
548,718
—
197,123
256,004
95,580
3,421,997
$3,970,715

$—
1,310,787
91,886
798,373
216,851
203,675
3,324,138
$4,634,926

$—
4,034,723
1,828,539
105,209
1,654,001
446,963
7,422,457
$11,457,190

(*)	Loans in legal bankruptcy, virtual bankruptcy, and potential bankruptcy amounting to ¥37,409 million ($343,737 thousand) and ¥38,762 million, and, loans and bills discounted
without contractual maturities amounting to ¥27,988 million ($257,171 thousand) and ¥28,213 million are excluded from the table above as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.
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(Note 4) Maturity analysis for bonds, borrowed money, and other interest-bearing liabilities
Millions of yen
2020
1 year or less

Deposits (*)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Negotiable certificates of deposit����������������������������������������������
Call money and bills sold�����������������������������������������������������������������
Payables under securities lending transactions����������������
Borrowed money����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥4,541,372
66,683
136,386
235,538
345,883
¥5,325,863

1 to 3 years

¥323,574
—
—
—
41,701
¥365,276

3 to 5 years

5 to 7 years

¥21,486
—
—
—
63,483
¥84,969

¥—
—
—
—
11
¥11

7 to 10 years

¥—
—
—
—
—
¥—

Over 10 years

¥—
—
—
—
—
¥—

Millions of yen
2019
1 year or less

Deposits (*)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Negotiable certificates of deposit����������������������������������������������
Call money and bills sold�����������������������������������������������������������������
Payables under securities lending transactions����������������
Borrowed money����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥4,486,424
84,755
49,989
218,995
344,579
¥5,184,744

1 to 3 years

¥342,593
200
—
—
2,341
¥345,134

3 to 5 years

5 to 7 years

¥20,169
—
—
—
523
¥20,692

¥—
—
—
—
20,035
¥20,035

7 to 10 years

¥—
—
—
—
—
¥—

Over 10 years

¥—
—
—
—
—
¥—

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Deposits (*)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Negotiable certificates of deposit����������������������������������������������
Call money and bills sold�����������������������������������������������������������������
Payables under securities lending transactions����������������
Borrowed money����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

1 year or less

1 to 3 years

$41,729,045
612,726
1,253,202
2,164,274
3,178,195
$48,937,452

$2,973,205
—
—
—
383,175
$3,356,390

3 to 5 years

$197,427
—
—
—
583,322
$780,749

5 to 7 years

$—
—
—
—
101
$101

7 to 10 years

$—
—
—
—
—
$—

Over 10 years

$—
—
—
—
—
$—

(*) Demand deposits are included in “1 year or less.”

SHIGA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2020

103

32. Fair value information on derivative
transactions

(2) Currency-related transactions
Millions of yen
2020

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied
The following is the fair value information for derivative transactions to
which hedge accounting is not applied at March 31, 2020 and 2019.
The contractual value of swap agreements and the contract amounts of
forward exchange contracts, option agreements and other derivatives do
not necessarily measure the Bank’s exposure to market risk.
(1) Interest-rate-related transactions
Millions of yen
2020
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Net
unrealized
Fair value gains (losses)

Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Over-the-counter:
Currency swap���������������������������������� ¥49,142
Forward exchange contracts:
44,225
Sold����������������������������������������������������
34,599
Bought���������������������������������������������
Currency options:
83,720
Sold����������������������������������������������������
83,720
Bought���������������������������������������������
Total��������������������������������������������� ¥—

Over-the-counter:
Interest rate swap
Receivable fixed rate/pay
floating rate��������������������������������������
Receivable floating rate /pay
fixed rate���������������������������������������������
Total���������������������������������������������

¥326

¥217

¥8

¥8

7,509
¥—

7,509
¥—

(484)
¥(476)

(484)
¥(476)

Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Net
unrealized
Fair value gains (losses)

Over-the-counter:
Interest rate swap

Total���������������������������������������������

¥300
665
¥—

¥221

¥(0)

665
¥—

(15)
¥(15)

¥(0)
(15)
¥(15)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Net
unrealized
Fair value gains (losses)

Over-the-counter:
Interest rate swap
Receivable fixed rate/pay
floating rate��������������������������������������
Receivable floating rate /pay
fixed rate���������������������������������������������
Total���������������������������������������������

$2,995

$1,993

$73

$73

68,997
$—

68,997
$—

(4,447)
$(4,373)

(4,447)
$(4,373)

Notes: 1.	The above transactions were revalued at the end of each of the years and the
related gains and losses are reflected in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income.
		 2.	The fair values of the above derivatives are principally based on quoted
market prices, such as those of Tokyo Financial Exchange Inc., or discounted
values of future cash flows.
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¥699

¥699

—
—

(25)
100

(25)
100

50,742
50,742
¥—

(2,240)
2,240
¥774

1,005
(415)
¥1,365

2019

2019

Receivable floating rate /pay
fixed rate���������������������������������������������

¥29,222

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Receivable fixed rate/pay
floating rate��������������������������������������

Net
unrealized
Fair value gains (losses)

Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Over-the-counter:
Currency swap����������������������������������
Forward exchange contracts:
Sold����������������������������������������������������
Bought���������������������������������������������
Currency options:
Sold����������������������������������������������������
Bought���������������������������������������������
Total���������������������������������������������

Net
unrealized
Fair value gains (losses)

¥29,321

¥28,699

¥307

¥307

37,203
4,613

—
—

(7)
72

(7)
72

84,020
84,020
¥—

48,147
48,147
¥—

(2,288)
2,288
¥372

1,109
(477)
¥1,003

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Net
unrealized
Fair value gains (losses)

Over-the-counter:
Currency swap���������������������������������� $451,548 $268,510 $6,422 $6,422
Forward exchange contracts:
Sold���������������������������������������������������� 406,367
—
(229)
(229)
Bought��������������������������������������������� 317,917
—
918
918
Currency options:
Sold���������������������������������������������������� 769,273 466,250
(20,582)
9,234
20,582
(3,813)
Bought��������������������������������������������� 769,273 466,250
Total��������������������������������������������� $— $— $7,112 $12,542
Notes: 1.	The above transactions were revalued at the end of each of the years and the
related gains and losses are reflected in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income.
		 2. Fair value is calculated using discounted cash flows.

(3) Stock-related transactions are not performed.
(4) Bond-related transactions are not performed.
(5) Financial product-related transactions are not performed.
(6) Credit derivative transactions are not performed.

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

33. Comprehensive income

The following is the fair value information for derivative transactions to
which hedge accounting is applied at March 31, 2020 and 2019.
The contract amounts do not necessarily measure the Bank’s exposure to
market risk:

The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March
31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Net unrealized losses on
available-for-sale securities:

Millions of yen

Hedged
items

2019

2020

(1) Interest-rate-related transactions
2020
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

AvailablePrinciple treatment
for-sale
Interest rate swap:
Receivable floating rate/ securities
pay fixed rate����������������������� (bonds) ¥193,794 ¥193,794

Thousands
of U.S.
dollars
2020

Millions of yen

Fair value

The amount arising during
the period����������������������������������������������

¥(35,917)

¥(7,392)

$(330,028)

Reclassification adjustments to
profit or loss������������������������������������������

(4,353)

(12,248)

(39,998)

(40,271)
11,969
¥(28,302)

(19,640)
5,382
¥(14,258)

(370,035)
109,978
$(260,056)

The amount arising during
the period����������������������������������������������

¥(7,240)

¥(5,620)

$(66,525)

Reclassification adjustments to
profit or loss������������������������������������������

834

2,085

7,663

(6,406)
1,950
¥(4,455)

(3,535)
1,076
¥(2,458)

(58,862)
17,917
$(40,935)

The amount arising during
the period����������������������������������������������

¥(1,914)

¥1,470

$(17,587)

Reclassification adjustments to
profit or loss������������������������������������������

(632)

(6)

(5,807)

The amount of tax effect����������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������

(2,547)
775
¥(1,771)

1,464
(445)
¥1,018

(23,403)
7,121
$(16,273)

Total other comprehensive
income����������������������������������������������

¥(34,529)

¥(15,698)

$(317,274)

Before adjustments to tax
effect���������������������������������������������������������
¥(12,007)

The amount of tax effect����������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������

Millions of yen

Hedged
items

Principle treatment
Interest rate swap:
Receivable floating rate/
pay fixed rate�����������������������

Availablefor-sale
securities
(bonds)

2019
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

¥150,000

¥150,000

Deferred losses on derivatives
under hedge accounting:
Fair value

¥(5,601)

The amount of tax effect����������������
Total�������������������������������������������������������

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Hedged
items

2020
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

Before adjustments to tax
effect���������������������������������������������������������

Defined retirement benefit plans:
Fair value

AvailablePrinciple treatment
for-sale
Interest rate swap:
Receivable floating rate/ securities
pay fixed rate����������������������� (bonds) $1,780,703 $1,780,703 $(110,328)
Notes: 1.	Deferred hedge accounting is mainly applied.
		 2.	The fair values of the above derivatives are principally based on quoted
market prices, such as those of Tokyo Financial Exchange Inc., or discounted
values of future cash flows.

(2) Currency-related transactions
There were no currency-related transactions at March 31, 2020.

Before adjustments to tax
effect���������������������������������������������������������

Millions of yen

Hedged
items

Loans
denominated
Forward exchange
contracts��������������������������������������������� in foreign
currencies

2019
Contractual
value due
Contractual after one
value
year

¥453

¥—

Fair value

¥(1)

Notes: 1.	Deferred hedge accounting is mainly applied in accordance with the JICPA
Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25.
		 2. Fair value is calculated using discounted cash flows.

(3) Stock-related transactions are not performed.
(4) Bond-related transactions are not performed.
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34. Net income per share
Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, is as follows:
Millions of yen

Thousands of shares

Net Income Attributable
to Owners of the Parent

Weighted-Average
Shares(*)

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Basic EPS:
Net income attributable to common shareholders�������������������������������������
Effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Diluted EPS:
Net income for computation��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
For the year ended March 31, 2019
Basic EPS:
Net income attributable to common shareholders�������������������������������������
Effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
Diluted EPS:
Net income for computation��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥12,412

51,067

Yen

U.S. dollars
EPS(*)

¥243.05

$2.233

$1.968

6,880
¥12,412

57,947

¥214.19

¥14,681

52,015

¥282.24

6,844
¥14,681

58,859

¥249.42

(*) Shares and per share figures have been restated, as appropriate, to reflect a 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected October 1, 2018.

35. Subsequent event
Appropriation of retained earnings
The following appropriation of retained earnings will be authorized at the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 25, 2020:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Cash dividends,
¥22.5 ($0.207) per share��������������������������������������������������������������������

¥1,129

$10,373

Total��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

¥1,129

$10,373

36. Segment information
For the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019
Because the Group has only one segment, banking, the description is not presented.
Related Information

(1) Information about services
Millions of yen
2020
Lending services

Operating income from external customers����������������������

¥37,299

Securities investment Fees and commissions

¥20,145

¥15,621

Other

Total

¥15,804

¥88,871

Millions of yen
2019
Lending services

Operating income from external customers����������������������

¥38,274

Securities investment Fees and commissions

¥28,621

¥14,957

Other

Total

¥16,704

¥98,558

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020
Lending services

Operating income from external customers����������������������

$342,727

Securities investment Fees and commissions

$185,105

$143,535

Other

Total

$145,217

$816,603

(2) Information about geographical areas
(a) Operating income
Operating income from external domestic customers exceeded 90% of total operating income on the consolidated statements of income for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019; therefore geographical operating income information is not presented.
(b) Tangible fixed assets
The balance of domestic tangible fixed assets exceeded 90% of the total balance of tangible fixed assets on the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31,
2020 and 2019; therefore, geographical tangible fixed assets information is not presented.

(3) Information about major customers
Operating income to a specific customer did not reach 10% of total operating income on the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31,
2020 and 2019; therefore, major customer information is not presented.
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37. Related party transactions
Transactions of the Bank with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2020, were as follows:
Transaction amount
Related party

Misao Daido

Taiyo & Co.

Category

Director or relative

Description of transactions

Millions
of yen

Year-end balance

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Accounts name

Millions
of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Lending operation loan, net of
collection�����������������������������������������������

¥(2)

$(18)

Loans����������������������

¥34

$312

Interest receipts������������������������������������

0

0

Other assets�������

0

0

Commission receipts, etc.��������������

0

0

Lending operation loan, net of
collection�����������������������������������������������

(4)

(36)

Loans����������������������

15

137

0

0

Other
liabilities�������������

0

0

0

0

Company in which director or
Interest receipts������������������������������������
relative has the majority of
Commission receipts, etc.��������������
the voting rights
Lending operation loan, net of
collection�����������������������������������������������

10

91

Loans����������������������

77

707

Guarantee of payment���������������������

(36)

(330)

Other assets�������

11

101

36

Customers’
liabilities for
acceptances
and
guarantees�������

10

91

0

Acceptances
and
guarantees�������

10

91

0

0

Other
liabilities�������������

0

0

0

0

Lease income�����������������������������������������

Interest receipts������������������������������������
Company in which director or Guarantee commission
receipts����������������������������������������������������
relative has the majority of
Commission receipts, etc.��������������
KUSANEN CO., LTD. the voting rights

4

0

Transactions of the Bank with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2019, were as follows:
Transaction
amount
Related party

Misao Daido

Taiyo & Co.

Category

Description of transactions

Millions of yen

Year-end
balance
Accounts name Millions of yen

Lending operation loan, net of
collection�����������������������������������������������

¥ (2)

Loans����������������������

¥36

Interest receipts������������������������������������

0

Other assets........

0

Commission receipts, etc.��������������

0

Lending operation loan, net of
collection�����������������������������������������������

(4)

Loans.......................

20

Company in which director or
Interest receipts������������������������������������
relative has the majority of
Commission
receipts, etc.��������������
the voting rights

0

Other liabilities..

0

0

Lending operation loan, net of
collection�����������������������������������������������

(38)

Loans.......................

66

Guarantee of payment���������������������

(36)

Other assets........

9

Director or relative

Lease income�����������������������������������������

3

Interest receipts������������������������������������

1

Company in which director or Guarantee commission
receipts����������������������������������������������������
relative has the majority of
KUSANEN CO., LTD. the voting rights
Commission receipts, etc.��������������

0
0

Customers’
liabilities for
acceptances
and
guarantees........
Acceptances
and
guarantees........
Other
liabilities..............

46

46
0
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Composition of Capital Disclosure (Capital ratio of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, Basel III)

Capital ratio (consolidated)
(Appended Form 2 of Supplementary Provision of the Notification of Japanese Financial Services Agency No. 7, 2014)
Millions of yen, %
CC1: Composition of regulatory capital (consolidated)
a
Basel III
Template
No..
Items
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves
1a+2-1c-26 Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related capital surplus and retained earnings
1a
of which: capital and capital surplus
2
of which: retained earnings
1c
of which: treasury stock (-)
26
of which: national specific regulatory adjustments (earnings to be distributed) (-)
of which: other than above
1b
Subscription rights to common shares
3
Accumulated other comprehensive income and other disclosed reserves
5
Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by non-controlling interests (amount allowed in group Common Equity Tier 1)
6
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves (A)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
8+9
Total intangible fixed assets (excluding those relating to mortgage servicing rights)
8
of which: goodwill (including those equivalent)
9
of which: other intangibles other than goodwill and mortgage servicing rights
10
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences
11
Deferred gains or losses on derivatives under hedge accounting
12
Shortfall of eligible provisions to expected losses
13
Securitization gain on sale
14
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities
15
Asset for retirement benefits
16
Investments in own shares (excluding those reported in the Net assets section)
17
Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity
18
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
19+20+21 Amount exceeding the 10% threshold on specified items
19
of which: significant investments in the common stock of financials
20
of which: intangible fixed assets relating to mortgage servicing rights
21
of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
22
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold on specified items
23
of which: significant investments in the common stock of financials
24
of which: intangible fixed assets relating to mortgage servicing rights
25
of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
27
Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
28
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments (B)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1)
29
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) ((A)-(B)) (C)
Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments
Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related capital surplus of which:
31a classified as equity under applicable accounting standards
31b Subscription rights to Additional Tier 1 instruments
30
Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related capital surplus of which:
classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards
32
Qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related capital surplus issued by
special purpose vehicles and other equivalent entities
Additional Tier 1 instruments issued by subsidiaries and held by non-controlling interests (amount allowed in group Additional Tier 1)
34-35
33+35
Eligible Tier 1 capital instruments subject to transitional arrangements included in Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments
33
of which: instruments issued by bank and its special purpose vehicles
35
of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries
36
Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments (D)
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
37
Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instrument
38
Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments
39
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
Significant investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
40

b

c

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
268,582
57,613
220,282
8,184
1,129
—
131
105,957
—
374,671

Reference to
Template
CC2

260,205
57,613
(6)+(7)
209,664
(8)
5,921
(9)
1,150
—
129
(14)
140,741 (10)+(11)+(12)+(13)
—
401,077

1,359
—
1,359
—
—
8,998
—
—
—
0
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
10,357

1,661
—
1,661
—
0
6,869
—
—
—
0
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
8,531

364,314

392,545

—
—

—
—

—

—

—

—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—

—

(1)
(3)
(11)

(2)
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Millions of yen, %
CC1: Composition of regulatory capital (consolidated)
a

Basel III
Template
No..
Items
42
Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deduction
43
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments (E)
Additional Tier 1 capital
44
Additional Tier 1 capital ((D) – (E)) (F)
Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1)
45
Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) ((C)+(F)) (G)
Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related capital surplus of which:
classified as equity under applicable accounting standards
Subscription rights to Tier 2 instruments
46
Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related capital surplus of which:
classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards
Qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related capital surplus issued by special purpose vehicles and other equivalent entities
48-49 Tier 2 instruments issued by subsidiaries and held by non-controlling interests (amount allowed in group Tier 2)
47+49 Eligible Tier 2 capital instruments subject to transitional arrangements included in Tier 2: instruments and provisions
47
of which: instruments issued by bank and its special purpose vehicles
49
of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries
50
Total of general allowance for credit losses and eligible provisions included in Tier 2
50a
of which: provision for general allowance for credit losses
50b
of which: eligible provisions
51
Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions (H)
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
52
Investments in own Tier 2 instruments
53
Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments
54
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
55
Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
57
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments (I)
Tier 2 capital (T2)
58
Tier 2 capital (T2) ((H)-(I)) (J)
Total capital (TC = T1 + T2)
59
Total capital (TC = T1 + T2) ((G)+(J)) (K)
Risk weighted assets
60
Risk weighted assets (L)
Capital ratio (consolidated)
61
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (consolidated) ((C)/(L))
62
Tier 1 capital ratio (consolidated) ((G)/(L))
63
Total capital ratio (consolidated) ((K)/(L))
64
CET1 specific buffer requirement
65
of which: capital conservation buffer requirement
66
of which: countercyclical buffer requirement
67
of which: G-SIB/D-SIB additional requirement
68
CET1 available after meeting the minimum capital requirements
Regulatory adjustments
72
Non-significant investments in the capital of other financials that are below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
73
Significant investments in the common stock of other financials that are below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
74
Intangible fixed assets relating to mortgage servicing rights that are below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
75
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences that are below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
Provisions included in Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
76
Provisions (general allowance for credit losses)
77
Cap on inclusion of provisions (general allowance for credit losses)
Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach
(prior to application of cap) (if the amount is negative, report as “nil”)
78
79
Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach
Capital instruments subject to transitional arrangements
82
Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements
Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
(if the amount is negative, report as “nil”)
83
84
Current cap on T2 instruments subject to transitional arrangements
Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
(if the amount is negative, report as “nil”)
85

112

b

c

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
—
—

—
—

—

—

364,314

392,545

—
—

—
—

1,000
—
—
10,000
10,000
—
91
91
—
11,092

5,467
—
—
18,000
18,000
—
150
150
—
23,618

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

11,092

23,618

375,407

416,163

2,657,243

2,652,748

13.71
13.71
14.12
2.50
2.50
0.00

14.79
14.79
15.68
2.50
2.50
0.00

6.12

7.68

23,774
666
—
—

23,712
868
—
—

91
515

150
511

—
13,589

—
13,685

—

—

—
12,000

—
18,000

—

2,000

Reference to
Template
CC2

(5)

(4)

(4)

Matters concerning the disclosure of leverage ratio

1. Matters concerning the composition of consolidated leverage ratio
Millions of yen
Corresponding Corresponding
Line # on
Line # on
International International
Template
Template
(Table 1)
(Table 2)
Item
On-balance sheet exposures
1
On-balance sheet exposures before deducting adjustment items
1a
1
Total assets reported in the consolidated balance sheet
1b
2
Amount of assets of subsidiaries that are not included in the scope of the leverage ratio on a consolidated basis (-)
Amount of assets of subsidiaries that are included in the scope of the leverage ratio on a consolidated basis (except those
1c
7
included in the total assets reported in the consolidated balance sheet)
1d
3
Amount of assets that are deducted from the total assets reported in the consolidated balance sheet (-)
2
7
Amount of adjustment items pertaining to Tier 1 capital (-)
3
Total on-balance sheet exposures (A)
Derivative transaction exposures
Replacement cost associated with derivatives transactions, etc. (with the 1.4 alpha factor applied)
4
Replacement cost associated with derivative transactions, etc.
Add-on amount for potential future exposure associated with derivatives transactions, etc. (with the 1.4 alpha factor
applied)
Add-on amount associated with derivative transactions, etc.
Amount of receivables arising from providing cash margin in relation to derivative transactions, etc.
The amount of receivables arising from providing collateral, provided where deducted from the consolidated balance
sheet pursuant to the operative accounting framework
6
Amount of receivables arising from providing cash margin, provided where deducted from the consolidated balance
sheet pursuant to the operative accounting framework
7
Amount of deductions of receivables (out of those arising from providing cash variation margin) (-)
Amount of client-cleared trade exposures for which a bank or bank holding company acting as clearing member is not
8
obliged to make any indemnification (-)
9
Amount of adjusted effective notional amount of written credit derivatives
10
Amount of deductions from effective notional amount of written credit derivatives (-)
11
4
Total exposures related to derivative transactions (B)
Repo transaction exposures
12
Amount of assets related to repo transactions, etc.
13
Amount of deductions from repo transactions, etc. (-)
14
Amount of counterparty risk exposure for repo transactions, etc.
15
Amount of agent transaction exposures
16
5
Total exposures related to repo transactions, etc. (C)
Other off-balance sheet exposures
17
Notional amount of off-balance sheet transactions
18
Amount of adjustments for conversation to in relation to off-balance sheet transactions
19
6
Total exposures related to off-balance sheet transactions (D)
Consolidated leverage ratio
20
The amount of capital (Tier 1 capital) (E)
21
8
Total exposures ((A) + (B) + (C) + (D)) (F)
22
Consolidated leverage ratio ((E) / (F))
5

FY2019

FY2018

6,243,056
6,285,002
—

6,081,796
6,115,271
—

—

—

41,945
10,357
6,232,699

33,475
8,531
6,073,264

—

—

3,472

2,871

—

—

8,558
11,071

7,019
4,829

—

—

—

—

—

—

—
—
23,102

—
—
14,720

—
—
1,741

—
—
3,054

1,741

3,054

961,561
818,184
143,376

962,540
820,927
141,612

364,314
6,400,920
5.69%

392,545
6,232,652
6.29%

 orresponding Line # on International Template, Table 1 refers to that in Table 1 and Table 2 in the rule text of “Basel III leverage ratio framework and disclosure requirements” published
C
by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision on January 12, 2014.

2. Reasons for any significant disparities in consolidated leverage ratio compared to the previous fiscal year (if any)
Non-consolidated leverage ratio decreased by 0.58% compared to the previous fiscal year.
This was mainly due to an increase of ¥171.9 billion in total exposures.
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Stock Information
As of March 31, 2020

Major shareholders
Number of shares held
(Thousand shares)

As a percentage of
total number of issued shares
(excluding treasury stock) (%)

NORTHERN TRUST CO. (AVFC) RE SILCHESTER INTERNATIONAL INVESTORS
INTERNATIONAL VALUE EQUITY TRUST (Managing agent, The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited Tokyo Branch)

2,147

4.27

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account)

1,701

3.38

Nippon Life Insurance Company

1,610

3.20

Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company

1,599

3.18

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account)

1,360

2.70

Employee Stock Ownership of Shiga Bank

1,211

2.41

Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Insurance Inc.

1,180

2.35

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account 9)

1,165

2.32

NORTHERN TRUST CO. (AVFC) RE U.S. TAX EXEMPTED PENSION FUNDS
(Managing agent, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Tokyo Branch)

1,160

2.31

JP MORGAN CHASE BANK 385151 (Managing agent, Settlement & Clearing
Services Department of Mizuho Bank, Ltd.)

813

1.62

13,951

27.78

Total

Number of shares held by type of shareholder (Thousand shares)
Government (incl. Local governments)
127 (0.02%)
Individuals and others
134,619 (25.48%)
Financial institutions
162,782 (30.81%)
Foreigners
111,762 (21.15%)

Other corporations
110,179 (20.85%)
Note: Figures in parentheses represent voting rights as a percentage of the total voting rights held by each shareholder segment.
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Securities houses
8,939 (1.69%)

https://www.shigagin.com

